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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

OPERATING PERFORMANCE DATA KRERBFHE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—EC-CE —E-- “E-ZE “T-NE “F-N\#&
For the year ended 31 December RMB'000 RMB'000  Change RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE+-A=1-BIFE ARETTR ANRBTFT # ARETT ARETFT AREFTL
Revenue WA 23,805,354 26521193 -102% 19,576,938 22,002,943 19,155,709
Gross profit EF 2,755,622 5851971 -529% 2707118 2993437 3,145,825
Profit for the year FREEH 201,186 2741616 -927% 530,354 922,749 1,167,943
Profit attributable to shareholders T3 JE{5 A 156,808 2685170 -94.2% 517,065 883,726 1,163,092
Earnings per share BREH
— Basic —EX  RMBARM017T MBARM2BT %42 RMBARM0STT RMBARM09TT RMBARMI127T
— Diluted —#%  RMBARM017T RMBAR®2BT  -%2% RMBAR®0S6T RMBARMOTT RMBARH127T
FINANCIAL POSITION DATA AR R BB
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ZECCE —EC-% —2-%F —2-NE TN\
As at 31 December RMB'000 RMB000  Change RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“+-A=+-H ARETTR AREFL #3 AREFT ARETFT ARETT
Total assets BEE 26,151,299 24,442,884 7.0% 20,157,279 21,174,661 18770015
Non-current assets EREEE 12,522,445 11,394,265 99% 10,829,540 11,374,054 9,336,032
Current assets TBEE 13,628,854 13,048619 44% 9327739 9,800,607 9433983
Total liabiliies BaE 16,049,823 13,841,932 16.0% 11,684,541 13,075,286 11933193
Current liabilities TBAaRE 12,166,884 10,089,446 20.6% 8011,160 7583220 6773423
Non-current liabilities EREEE 3,882,939 3752486 35% 3673381 5,492,066 5,159,770
Net current assets MYEEFE 1,461,970 2959173 -506% 1,316,579 2217387 2,660,560
Net assets BEFE 10,101,476 10600952 =4.7% 8472738 8099375 6,836,822
Equity attributable to shareholders [ B 9,501,623 10038270 -5.3% 7863267 7473456 6738637
FINANCIAL INDICATORS BB EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
B2+ -_A=+-HILEE 2§ CZT--f CZZZTF ZZ-HhFE ZZ-N\F
Inventory turnover days FERAERY 126 95 95 98 101
Trade and bill receivables EUE 5 R EEFR
turnover days EEXRE 28 25 30 27 32
Trade and bill payables ERESHREERE
turnover days BEX & 78 63 61 62 73
Current ratio TN & 1.1 13 12 13 14
Net debt to equity ratio (Note 1)  BEFEERLE
et 0.63 045 0.52 086 088
Return on equity (Note 2) EmEmE (fz2) 2% 30% 7% 12% 18%
Note 1. Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and i RESFRENBEAENRAESRERS
pledged bank deposits over equity attributable to shareholders at SEYARERPRITERER AR B
each year end. RERETHESH -
Note 2: Based on each year's profit attributable to shareholders over the etz RBEFRBRELENRAZSBEE

average of the equity attributable to shareholders at the beginning

and ending of the financial year.
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BRI KRR
CORPORATE PROFILE AND STRUCTURE

CORPORATE PROFILE

Texhong International Group Limited (formerly known as Texhong
Textile Group Limited ) (the “Company’, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) (stock code: 2678) is one of the global
largest cotton textile manufacturers and is a leading textile
enterprise focusing on manufacturing high value-added core-spun
textile products. The Group is principally engaged in the
manufacture and distribution of quality yarns, grey fabrics, garment
fabrics as well as garments. Since 1997, the Group has grown rapidly
and has over 5,000 customers in the People’s Republic of China
(“China” or “the PRC") and overseas, with its sales network spanning
across the PRC, Vietnam, North America, Europe, Brazil, Turkey,
Bangladesh, Japan and South Korea. With its sales headquarter
established in Shanghai, the Group has production bases in
operation in the PRC, Vietnam, Turkey, the Americas respectively,
with major production facilities comprising about 4.17 million
spindles and over 2,100 weaving and knitting machines and the
related dyeing equipment as of 31 December 2022.
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On behalf of the Company’s
board of directors (the “Board”),
I am pleased to present the
annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December
2022 to the shareholders of the
Company.
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A=+ —-HLEFENZFX
& o

Hong Tianzhu % X %1
Chairman £ J&




ERHESE (R
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

RESULTS

The textile industry underwent unprecedented challenges and
changes in 2022. On the one hand, while most foreign countries
and markets have gradually recovered from the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Chinese market faced its most difficult
period in the fight against the virus in 2022. Since the second
quarter, the highly transmissible Omicron strain caused a serious
situation in some cities and regions in the PRC, leading to the total
or partial suspension of major commercial and trading hubs, whilst
normal operations in different aspects of businesses such as
procurement, production, logistics and retail were severely affected.
On the other hand, the overall global consumption demand was
weaker than expected in 2022. The weakened downstream market
led to higher inventory levels in the textile and apparel industry,
thereby exerting pressure on exports of textile products and
apparels. Meanwhile, the significant fluctuation in the Renminbi
exchange rate posed a huge challenge to export trade as well as
corporate foreign exchange management. Regarding raw materials,
with the Russia-Ukraine tension severely impacting the commodity
price, coupled with multiple and frequent COVID-19 epidemic
outbreaks weakening market demand in China, domestic and
international cotton prices both continued to decline in the second
half of 2022. Meanwhile, international cotton prices experienced a
milder decline under the influence of global inflation, widening the
gap between domestic and international cotton prices. Such a
challenging macro environment resulted in a decline in the capacity
utilization rate of many factories in the industry, and in turn a sharp
decline in the output and profitability of textile and apparels.

In such a market environment, the Group swiftly adjusted its
product structure and capacity deployment in response to market
dynamics and demand to ensure maximum capacity utilization,
while vigorously integrating resources and rectifying inefficient
production capacity. To improve management efficiency, the Group
took actions to strengthen internal management system and
restructure personnel, so that the management system truly
matches up with the business development strategy of the Group.
The Group also proactively collaborated with downstream customers
and brands to maintain information exchange, and minimize waste
and conflicts in various parts of the supply chain. Thanks to the
concerted efforts of all the Group’s employees, the Group's sales
revenue reached approximately RMB23.8 billion. Despite a slight
decrease from the preceding year, the sales revenue remained at a
reasonable level, considering the exceptionally positive
circumstances of the market in the preceding year, and the market
and raw material price challenges faced by the Group this year.
Nonetheless, the Group's profitability was still affected. In 2022,
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB156.8 million, and basic earnings per share were
RMBO0.17.
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ERHESE (R
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

OUTLOOK

Moving forward to 2023, domestic and foreign retail markets
continue to encounter relatively notable challenges. The turnaround
of the overall situation in the Chinese textile industry is uncertain,
but with the relaxation of COVID-19 pandemic prevention policies in
the PRC, business operations and consumption have gradually
returned to normal. Concurrently, the trend and resolute policies
aiming at driving economic development lend robust support to the
industry’s revitalization.

In the upcoming business year, the Group plans to vigorously adjust
its organizational management and production structure to adapt to
changes in the macro environment. The Group also intends to
rationalize or even exit inefficient businesses and production
capacity. While implementing lean operations, the Group will also
enhance the efficiency of its middle and back office management
and fully utilize its existing production capacity, thereby improving
profitability. Given the influence of the global geopolitical situation,
a significant shift in demand-driven textile production capacity is
inevitable. The Group has already commenced the deployment for
overseas production capacity many years ago and has laid a solid
foundation for production and operation abroad. Such a foundation
has enabled us to be better prepared for industry reshuffling, so that
we can adjust the division of domestic and foreign production
capacity to meet market demand rapidly. Meanwhile, we are joining
forces with downstream parties, leveraging the advantages of our
yarns to pave the way for adopting the major strategy of regional
and platform-based development. The Group believes that with
years of industry-leading experience and the first-mover advantage
of global deployment, we will be able to persevere and move
forward to embrace a brighter future in the midst of turbulence.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all of our shareholders for their continued interest in
and support for the Group.

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

28 March 2023
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BEERBIWE S
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group is pleased to report its annual results for the year ended
31 December 2022 (the “Year”) to its shareholders. During the Year,
the Group's revenue decreased by 10.2% to approximately RMB23.8
billion as compared with the previous year. The Group's net profit
was approximately RMB201.2 million, a decrease of 92.7% as
compared with the previous year. Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company was approximately RMB156.8 million, a decrease of
94.2% as compared with the previous year. Basic earnings per share
also decreased to RMBO0.17 from RMB2.93 of previous year.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to statistics from the National Bureau of Statistics of the
PRC, the aggregate sales achieved by sizeable textile enterprises
amounted to approximately RMB2,615.8 billion in 2022, representing
a 1.1% decrease year-on-year, with a net profit of approximately
RMB100.1 billion in aggregate, down 17.8% year-on-year. The total
sales of sizeable textile garment and apparel enterprises amounted
to approximately RMB1,453.9 billion, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 4.6%, with a net profit of approximately RMB76.4 billion,
down 6.3% vyear-on-year. According to data from the General
Administration of Customs of the PRC, the PRC exported around
US$156.8 billion worth of textile products in 2022, representing a
year-on-year increase of 1.4%, while the value of garments exported
reached approximately US$184.1 billion, a year-on-year increase of
3.4%.

According to statistics from Vietnam Customs, the export volume of
yarns and staple fibre manufactured in Vietnam fell by 16.8% to
approximately 1.6 million tonnes in 2022, generating approximately
US$4.7 billion in revenue, a decrease of 16.0% as compared with
2021. Garments exports increased by 14.7% year-on-year to
approximately US$37.6 billion in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW

With widespread vaccination and the relaxation of pandemic
prevention policies around the world, the global economy has
gradually emerged from the gloom of the novel coronavirus variant.
However, due to the combined impacts of the Russia-Ukraine
tension, high global inflation and aggressive interest rate hikes by
central banks, demand from the textile industry has decreased since
the second quarter, and the global economy slowed down
extensively in 2022. For the Group, revenue in 2022 decreased to
approximately RMB23.8 billion, a decline of 10.2% as compared with
the previous year. During the Year, the Group's revenue was mainly
derived from the sale of yarns, grey fabrics, garment fabrics and
garments, which covered the entire industry chain. Revenue from
the sale of yarns remained the primary source of the Group's
revenue, accounting for approximately 73.9% of the Group's total
revenue for the Year. Revenue from vyarn sales amounted to
approximately RMB17,587.5 million, representing a decrease of
13.8% when compared with the previous year, mainly due to the
lower sales volume from weak demand. Also due to weaker demand
and destock pressure as elaborated below, revenue from garment
fabrics decreased to approximately RMB3,514.3 million, down 2.7%
when compared with the previous year.

In 2022, although the economies of various countries around the
world gradually emerged from the gloom of the epidemic, as cotton
prices remained high from the beginning of the year until May
2022, the textile industry generally maintained high inventory levels
to cope with the continued rise in prices of raw materials. Since the
second half of the year, in the face of global inflation and central
banks’ tightening monetary policies of various nations resulting in a
slowdown in demand, the textile industry was generally facing
pressure of destocking and material costs were at relatively high
levels. The yarn business, as an upstream industry of the textile
industry, was the first to be affected by the slowdown in demand as
the midstream and downstream industries were generally under
pressure to destock. In view of the macroeconomic changes, the
Group actively adjusted its product categories and structure to
ensure its continued production, and actively eliminated inventory
on the sales side, resulting in a final yarn sales volume of about
657,000 tonnes for the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 19.7% as compared with the previous year. Due to
pressure to destock and weaker demand in the textile industry, the
annual revenue of yarns for the Year decreased by 13.8% to
approximately RMB17,587.5 million as compared with the previous
year. Affected by the decline in raw material price and selling price
as well as the weakened demand in midstream and downstream
markets, coupled with poor logistics and short-term shutdowns in
the PRC domestic market due to epidemic control measures, the
Group was unable to fully utilize its yarn spindle scale of
approximately 4.17 million spindles, resulting in a decrease in the
gross profit margin of yarns to 10.6% for the Year.
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THBWER S (E)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

As for grey fabrics, the sales volume during the Year was
approximately 50.3 million metres, a slight decrease of 6.5% as
compared with the previous year. Benefiting from the adjustment of
grey fabric varieties and the increase in raw material prices, sales
revenue of grey fabrics increased by 23.7% to approximately
RMB728.0 million despite the slight decrease in sales volume.
However, due to the impact of relatively higher raw material prices,
the gross profit margin of grey fabrics decreased to 10.2%.

Similarly, for woven garment fabrics, production volume and sales
were both under pressure due to downstream destocking and lower
demand, and the sales volume during the Year decreased by 15.2%
to 116.3 million metres. Benefiting from the quality advantages of
woven garment fabrics and the wide recognition by brand
customers, the increase in raw material prices can be effectively
transferred to clients. In addition, woven garment fabrics are traded
in US. dollars and the appreciation of the US. dollar against
Renminbi during the Year resulted in an increase of woven garment
fabric prices in 2022 with an increase of sales revenue by 3.0% to
approximately RMB2,647.9 million. Likewise, the gross profit margin
climbed to 24.6% from 23.1% in 2021.

For knitted garment fabrics, the domestic sales market shrank
significantly due to the epidemic control measures and lockdown in
Shanghai and Guangzhou during the peak season for domestic
orders in the PRC. Coupled with the slowdown in demand from
overseas markets due to inflation, the sales volume of knitted
garment fabrics decreased to approximately 15000 tonnes from
approximately 18,000 tonnes in previous year, and sales revenue
decreased by 16.8% to approximately RMB866.4 million for the Year.
The new factory in Vietnam was in the trial production stage in the
first half of 2022, which had an impact on the gross profit margin in
a considerable extent. Additionally, fewer orders were placed, so that
the production capacity could not be fully utilized, resulting in a
lower gross profit margin of 5.3% for the Year.

The jeanswear business generated sales revenue of approximately
RMB91.3 million, mainly from the sales business of garment factories
in the PRC. At the end of 2021, the Group sold a garment factory in
Vietnam to a joint venture partner, resulting in a decrease in overall
sales of jeanswear in 2022 by approximately RMB581.1 million as
compared with the previous year. Due to the impact of higher raw
material prices and shutdowns caused by domestic outbreaks, the
gross profit margin was approximately 3.7%.

For the trading business, it mainly represented our US. garment
fabrics and garments trading business. Gross profit margin was
approximately 7.1%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The non-woven fabrics business is still in its initial stage, with sales
revenue in 2022 amounting to approximately RMB62.1 million. The
sales revenue was lower compared to the previous year, mainly due
to the frequent domestic COVID-19 outbreaks and weak market
demand in the textile industry. Currently, the Group is actively
developing further strategic cooperation with well-known customers
in the industry, and aims to achieve significant progress in 2023.

Based on the above analysis, mainly affected by the decline in raw
material price and product selling price as well as the weaker
market demand for yarns in 2022 as compared to previous year,
coupled with poor logistics, short-term shutdowns due to the
domestic epidemic and rising logistics costs, the overall gross profit
margin of the Group decreased to 11.6% from 22.1% in 2021.
Coupled with the rising interest costs and the exchange losses,
profit attributable to shareholders for the Year was approximately
RMB156.8 million, representing a decrease of 94.2% as compared
with the previous year. Basic earnings per share were RMBO0.17,
representing a decrease of 94.2% as compared with the previous
year.

PROSPECTS

As of 31 December 2022, the Group's major production facilities
consist of approximately 4.17 million spindles, over 2,100 weaving
and knitting machines and related dyeing equipment, of which 2.44
million spindles were in the PRC and 1.73 million spindles were
located overseas. For the global textile market, lockdown and
control on pandemic prevention in the PRC and Russia-Ukraine
tension led to a surge in commodities prices, which in turn
triggered global inflation. As such, demand had severely weakened
in the second half of 2022 with supply exceeding demand in the
short term. With the upward adjustment of interest rates in the
United States coming to an end, inflation is expected to be
gradually alleviated in the first half of 2023, and the high levels of
inventory in the textile industry is expected to be resolved in the
first half of 2023. In addition, with the full relaxation of pandemic
prevention and control measures in the PRC since January 2023, it is
believed that demand will gradually pick up in the first half of 2023
and the Group's profit margin would in turn achieve a better
improvement in the second half year of 2023.
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THBWER S (E)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

PROSPECTS (Continued)

In 2022, the overall situation of the textile industry fluctuated
against the backdrop of global inflation. High raw material cost and
some adjustments to Sino-U.S. trade policies brought both
challenges and opportunities to the Group. In 2023, the Group will
further adjust its product structure and market regions through
reorganization, and aims to further reduce production and
administration costs and improve management efficiency via
equipment upgrades and the establishment of platform-oriented
functional business departments. Based on current market
conditions, and excluding the sales volume of the trading business,
the Group targets to sell 750,000 tonnes of yarns, 110 million meters
of woven garment fabrics and 24,000 tonnes of knitted garment
fabrics in 2023.

In terms of new investment, the Group will adopt an active plan and
a relatively conservative strategy. Equipped with near-finished
230,000 spindles by the end of 2022, the production facilities of the
Group will reach approximately 4.40 million spindles. The Group also
aims to strengthen cooperation with industry leaders in the garment
fabrics and non-woven fabrics business to strengthen its overall
product quick reaction capability and gain further access to the
industry chain for boosting sales revenue. In 2023, the Group will
actively deploy restructuring of production facilities. It is expected to
receive certain amount of proceeds from asset disposal, as well as
the compensation from the government for demolition and
relocation. Currently, the Group's on-going projects mainly include
the construction of a yarn factory in Turkey and the production base
in America including the factories for yarns and woven fabrics, the
first phase of which is aimed to be completed by the end of 2023.
With the commencement of the operation of the new production
base in America, coupled with existing factories in America, it aims
to establish an industry cluster with the cooperation of industry
partners to achieve economies of scale with which logistics costs
can be reduced and the Group’s overall profitability can be
improved.

On 12 July 2022, the Group continued to be included in the
“Fortune 500 Chinese Companies 2022" list, which is a testament to
the Group’s growth and widespread recognition. The Group will
continue to work tirelessly to bring long-term and sustainable
returns to its shareholders.

With the above adjustment strategies and business development
plans, the Group prepares itself to respond to market changes and
seize new opportunities while maximizing its use of resources and
production capacity, thereby preserving and generating value to the
shareholders of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

5ot %5 o R
HE

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Sales

During the Year, the sales of the Group mainly comprised the sales
of yarns, grey fabrics, non-woven fabrics, garment fabrics, as well as
jeanswear. Yarns continued to be the Group’s major product. Given
the decrease in sales volume of yarns, the revenue of yarns in 2022
decreased by approximately 13.8% as compared to that of 2021.
Sales analyses of the Group by products are shown below.
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— = —
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FRA AEENHEETZRAHEYR K
oo~ EED A EAFRE - OREBERN
SENIRES ANYREEHEN TR
FHRHERER
138% ° NI RARBEZRERMMNHEDN
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RMB million
AREEETL
12,000
11,000
10,000
9,000
8,000
7,000
6,000
8,721.8 10,107.3
5,000
4,000 8,365.7 [ 10,292.5
3,000
2,000
1,000 .
o o s 013 [ler2s WMM‘t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
R oFE ST B F T —F —BoCF T —F —BC-oF —T-—F bt B F T —F
Stretchable Other yarns Fabrics Jeanswear Trading Non-woven fabrics
core-spun yarns b A R ER HTRREE g5 Fashzin)
BHEEDR
. Stretchable . Other yarns . Grey Woven garment Knitted garment Jeanswear Trading . Non-woven
core-spun yarns HAb iR fabrics fabrics fabrics A BREE g5 fabrics
BABITHER b2 T EETER SHgER st
Revenue
2022 2021 change
-2z —E—F WA &8
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBTT
Stretchable core-spun yarns 8 ) BN AR 8,865,690 10,292,499 -13.9%
Other yarns Efh# iz 8,721,760 10,107,339 -13.7%
Grey fabrics b2l 727,980 588,442 23.7%
Woven garment fabrics % 4 E R 2,647,893 2,570,170 3.0%
Knitted garment fabrics fag gy 866,442 1,041,746 -16.8%
Jeanswear AR 91,344 672,485 -86.4%
Trading = 1,822,180 1,125,067 62.0%
Non-woven fabrics ‘T 62,065 123,445 -49.7%
Total wEst 23,805,354 26,521,193 -10.2%
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THBEIWE S (18)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B &g (&)
Sales (Continued) HE (&)

Sales Volume

$HE
Stretchable core-spun yarns and other yarns
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B O BE ()
sales (Continued) HE (&)
Sales volume Selling price Gross profit margin
HE £E EFE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--F —E--fF ZE--& —E-—F CZE--F —E-—%
Stretchable core-spun yarns 58 /B4 4% (E,/
(Tonne/RMB per tonne) AREEHE) 316,867 395914 27,979 25,997 15.6% 22.6%
Other yarns Hi 4z (g,
(Tonne/RMB per tonne) ARBEIE) 340,296 422433 25,630 23926 5.6% 24.0%
Grey fabrics (Million metres/  #A1 (BBXK,/
RMB per metre) AREGK) 50.3 538 14,5 109 10.2% 29.7%
Woven garment fabrics BEEH (BER/
(Million metres/RMB ARBEX)
per metre) 116.3 1372 22.8 18.7 24,6% 23.1%
Knitted Garment fabrics SEGEB (E/
(Tonne/RMB per tonne) AREFHE) 14,991 17,740 57,797 58,723 5.3% 16.0%
Jeanswear (Million pieces/  FHRE (BEH,/
RMB per piece) AREGH) 17 106 53.7 634 3.7% 13.3%
Non-woven fabrics & (W
(Tonne/RMB per tonne) ARBEE) 3,156 6,452 19,666 19,133 -32.0% -124%

The Chinese textile market is the Group’'s major market, and
accounted for 61.7% of our total sales of 2022. With the gradual
recovery of overseas markets from the impact of the pandemic, the
percentage for our overseas sales has increased in 2022.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group has more than 5,000
customers. As the Group produces differentiated products, the
Group does not rely on orders from a particular customer. The top
ten largest customers of the Group only accounted for 15.8% of the
total sales of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Gross profit and gross margin

For the year ended 31 December 2022, gross profit of the Group
decreased from RMB5,852.0 million for 2021 to RMB2,755.6 million
for 2022. The overall gross profit margin decreased by 10.5
percentage points to 11.6% as compared to that of 2021, mainly as
a result of the decrease in the gross profit of the yarns business.

Cost structure

For the year ended 31 December 2022, cost of sales rose by 1.8% to
RMB21,049.7 million when compared with 2021. Raw materials cost
accounted for about 76.2% of the total cost of sales of 2022. Cotton
is our major raw material.

The breakdown of our cost of sales in 2022 and 2021 is shown
below:

Bt & B R (&)

EFNRERNR
BE-_ZT-_—_F#+-_A=+—HILFE K&
BHENHE - - —FARE58520ETHE
LEZT - FHARKE2755618TT c BEEF
R - B - —F [ EI0SEEDEEE11.6% @ =
DERWBRESER TR -

RAZRE
BE_ZTS-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE {H4E
AR T - —F FF18%E ARBE21049718
TLe MZT = —F 7 EM R ARG B ERA
#4976.2% ° 1RIE BRI EZREM L -

THAAEER - -_—_FR T - —FHH
SR AR -

Consumables Others Consumables Others
HFER HAth JHFE HAth
2.7% 0.7% 2.8% 1.3%
Utilities Utilities

B) 1) R ke B h Rkt

7.0% 7.4%

De%reciation Depreciation

3.9% 3.9%

Direct Labour

HEIE

9.5%

Raw Materials
RARE
76.2%

2022

Selling and distribution costs

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's selling and
distribution costs amounted to approximately RMB886.4 million,
representing a decrease of 7.3% when compared to that of 2021. It
was mainly due to a decrease in the costs of freight as a result of
the significant decrease in sales volume of yarns.

General and administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's general and
administrative expenses amounted to approximately RMB1,316.1
million, which represented a decrease of 9.3% when compared with
2021, and accounted for 5.5% of the Group's revenue. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in salaries of management
personnel.

Direct Labour
BHEIE
10.4%

Raw Materials
R
74.2%

HER DX
BHE-_Z-_—_F#+-A=+—HILtFE K&
BZEERDHAYR T - —FTR73%E

MARKB864(ET  TERHNYRIHEERX
BT BECEBRR DT -

—BRITHBEX

BHE-_ZT-_—_F+_-_A=+—HIFE K&
Bz RETEEAIHBEAREKI3161E T
B —FRL3n HEAREBRR AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) BA#5 ol R (2)
Cash flows ReRE

2022 2021
—_=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBFT
Net cash generated from operating activities KRBTSR E FE 1,620,127 2,441,604
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEHERES FE (1,725,984) (2,362,774)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEEHERES FE (30,664) (257,036)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEFHNTE 99,535 —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERNRERESEEY 2,468,421 2,505,407

For the year ended 31 December 2022, net cash generated from
operating activities of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB1,620.1 million, which represents a decrease comparing with
2021 mainly due to the significant decrease in the gross profit
margin of the Group in 2022. Net cash used in investing activities
amounted to approximately RMB1,726.0 million, which was mainly
used for the payment of the new production capacity and
equipment renovation of yarns and garment fabrics in the PRC,
Vietnam and the Americas during the Year. During the Year, net
cash used in financing activities amounted to approximately
RMB30.7 million, which was mainly due to the adjustment of debt
structure by the Group via increasing the amount of low-cost
Renminbi short-term loan in replacement of letter of credit in U.S.
dollar.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank and cash balances
(including pledged bank deposits) amounted to approximately
RMB2,580.1 million (as at 31 December 2021: RMB2,695.7 million). As
at 31 December 2022, inventories and trade and bills receivables
(including financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income) of the Group increased by approximately RMB438.4 million
to approximately RMB7,590.1 million and decreased by
approximately RMB275.9 million to approximately RMB1,743.8 million
respectively (as at 31 December 2021: approximately RMB7,1
million and approximately RMB2,019.7 million respectively). Tumover
days for inventories and trade and bills receivables were 126 days
and 28 days respectively, compared to 95 days and 25 days in 2021
respectively. The inventory turnover days significantly increased from
last year, mainly due to the sharp decrease in market demand and
thus the increase in inventory of finished products in the second
half of 2022. The turnover days for trade and bills receivables were
slightly higher than that of the previous year, which was mainly
because of the increase in letter of credit receivables from overseas
customers due to the increase in overseas sales in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

Trade and bills payables of the Group increased by approximately
RMB21.1 million to approximately RMB4,597.5 million as at 31
December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021: RMB4,576.3 million), the
payable turnover days was 78 days, compared to 63 days in 2021.
The increase in trade and bills payables was mainly attributable to
the increase in the purchase unit price of raw materials in 2022 as
compared to that in 2021. Since the balance of trade and bills
payables as at the end of 2020 was relatively low, the average
balance of trade and bills payables in 2022 was significantly higher
than that in 2021, and thus the turnover days for trade and bills
payables significantly increased from that in 2021.

The total bank borrowings of the Group increased by approximately
RMB1,328.3 million to approximately RMB8,543.4 million as at 31
December 2022. Current bank borrowings increased by
approximately RMB1,323.5 million to approximately RMB5,155.2
million while non-current bank borrowings increased by
approximately RMB4.8 million to approximately RMB3,388.2 million.
Non-current bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022 had no
significant change as compared to 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021 the key financial ratios of the

B E R (2
RBESRUBER(F)

WZZ-_—F+-A=+—8 AEENEH
B o REBERELMHARB2110E8TTEHA
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H: AR®457631E70) - B RIBAEXRE A
78K MZE=Z—FRIR3K -EBNEZRE
ﬁ RIEEMEBERERA S - —_FEMRIRE
BER_Z-_—FLERERAR AR _ZE_ZF
FR EBNESRERFBHBERE Sk
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Group were as follows: AEBzFEFBLERAT :
2022 2021
— T —E-—4F
Current ratio MENLL =& 1.12 129
Debt to equity ratio’ BfEREmE 0.90 0.72
Net debt to equity ratio? BEFHEER X 0.63 0.45
Gearing ratio® BEABHLE 0.61 0.57
f Based on total borrowings over equity attributable to shareholders ! REBEBEERURREIEERTE

2 Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits over equity attributable to shareholders

3 Based on total liabilities over total assets

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB8,543.4 million, among which
approximately RMB3,495.2 million (40.9%) was denominated in
Renminbi, approximately RMB2,444.8 million (28.6%) was
denominated in U.S. dollars ("US$” or "USD"), approximately
RMB2,597.6 million (30.4%) was denominated in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS” or "HKD") and approximately RMB5.8 million (0.1%) was
denominated in Australian dollars (“AUD"). These bank borrowings
have borne interest rates ranging from 0.80% to 7.23% per annum
(2021: 0.80% to 5.05%).

? RELEECREZRE MRS FEDRDER
RITEFO B AR (S R H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding current bank
borrowings of approximately RMB5,155.2 million (2021:
approximately RMB3,831.7 million). The increase in current bank
borrowings was mainly because of the adjustment of debt structure
by the Group via using the amount of low-cost Renminbi short-term
loan in replacement of letter of credit in U.S. dollar.

In respect of the Group's borrowings, the Group has to comply with
certain restrictive financial covenants.

As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of approximately RMB5.8
million were secured by bank deposits with a net book amount of
approximately RMB6.0 million, and bank borrowing of
RMB200,000,000 were secured by export tax rebates entitled to be
collected.

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings of approximately
RMB40.0 million were secured by the Group's buildings with a net
book amount of approximately RMB164.4 million and land use rights
with a net book amount of approximately RMB34.4 million.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Vietnam. Most of the
Group's transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, US$ and HKS. Foreign exchange risk may arise from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is mainly attributable to its borrowings and raw
material procurement denominated in USS or HKS. The Group
manages its foreign exchange risks by performing regular reviews
and closely monitoring its foreign exchange exposures.

To mitigate the depreciation risk of RMB, the Group has purchased
certain amount of currency option contracts and currency swap
contracts so that a significant part of its foreign currency exposure is
hedged.

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the capital expenditure of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB2,391.0 million (2021:
approximately RMB2,346.6 million). It mainly related to the
development of new production capacity of yarns and garment
fabrics and equipment renovation in China, Vietham and the
Americas during the Year.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Human resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total workforce of 30,206
employees (as at 31 December 2021: 33,639), of whom 17,359
employees were located in the sales headquarters and our
manufacturing plants in Mainland China. The remaining 12,847
employees were stationed in regions outside Mainland China,
including Vietnam, Turkey, the Americas, Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Macao Special Administrative
Region of the PRC. The Group will continue to optimize its human
resources structure and offer a competitive remuneration package to
its employees, making reference to factors including the prevailing
market conditions and the performance of the Group and the merits
of the employees regardless of their gender, race, age or creed. As
the Group's success is dependent on the contribution of a group of
skillful and motivated employees who form functional departments,
the Group is committed to creating a learning and sharing culture in
the organization, placing strong emphasis on the training and
development of individual staff and team building.

Dividend policy

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable dividend payout
ratio of about 30% of the Group’s net profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company, providing shareholders with an
equitable return. An interim dividend of 38 HK cents per ordinary
share was paid on 14 October 2022. In the second half of 2022, the
Group's results were affected by the decline in raw material price
and product selling price as well as the weakened demand on yarn.
The Board does not recommend a payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Events after the Reporting Period
Change of Company name

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 28 December 2022 and the issue of the Certificate
of Incorporation on Change of Name issued by the Registrar of
companies in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2023, the English
name of the Company has been changed from “Texhong Textile
Group Limited” to “Texhong International Group Limited” and the
dual foreign name of the Company in Chinese has been changed
from "R HEEEEER AR to "RITEKREEER A F" with
effect from 4 January 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Events after the Reporting Period (Continued)

Latest developments regarding acquisition of assets in
Vietnam

As announced by the Company on 7 November 2022, 8 December
2022 and 3 February 2023 and the circular of the Company dated 9
December 2022, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an asset purchase agreement (the “Asset Purchase
Agreement”) with Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited for the
acquisition (the “"Acquisition”) of certain parcels of land located
inside Texhong Haiha Industrial Park and certain infrastructure
erected thereon. Completion of the Acquisition is subject to the
fulfilment of the conditions precedent set out in the Asset Purchase
Agreement. The last outstanding condition precedent, being the
obtaining of the land use right certificate for the land comprising
Land Lot 2 (as defined in the circular of the Company dated 9
December 2022), has been fulfilled on 24 March 2023. As such, the
parties to the Asset Purchase Agreement have scheduled for
completion of the Acquisition to take place on 31 March 2023 and
consequently, the continuing connected transactions announced by
the Company on 3 February 2023 will also cease immediately upon
completion of the Acquisition on 31 March 2023.

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

The following are the key risks that the Group considers to be of
great significance to the Group in its current status. These risks may
have adverse effect on the Group’s business.

For the possible impact of each risk on the Group should it occur,

we have made a detail description and set down corresponding
control measures and mitigation plan to manage the risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

The impact of risk relating to the business of the Group will change
over time. The size, complexity and coverage of our business and
the changing environment in which the Group operates also mean
that the list cannot be an exhaustive list of all material risks that

could affect the Group.

PR HE

SENERERERE -

AEBMWEKRER &)

HASEEXREENRROT EBEREER - &
CERBENEESERNNRKEERE
MR LB ERERIERTAEREMBTERN

Risks description

ER

Major control measures and risk mitigation

TEERERRERYR

Changes of risk
level from last year

BRAFEEFEE(L

Business concentration

ES 2 1

Product concentration: The Group has
established its market position as a manufacturer
of high value-added core-spun textile products
and core-spun yarn is the major earning source of
the Group. In the event of any change in fashion
trend, customers may prefer other textile
materials. Competition in such market may also
intensify suddenly. If the Group fails to respond
to the change in an efficient and effective
manner, the profitability of the Group may be
adversely affected.

Geographical concentration: The Group has
several production bases located in the Mainland
China, which is the major market of the Group
and, thus, the Group is subject to the economic,
political and social condition and change in
domestic demand for the products of the Group
in China.

EnET  ARBERETEEYEERRMN
1&m%%§m§ﬁﬁmﬂu &m@@ﬁ$
SETERANY - WERESHREEMNEL
P A% ﬁﬂﬁ@%%%ﬂ Xsk&E#Zm
BHBRIFRAEEERR W%$EI$WL
RREMOEED AEBENBTEINE
FHPE -

S AREEPEAMERZEALES
i WEPERESREEERME - Rk AR
RERIPELE  aNEERRARTE
EERRTERANTEROHENTE -

Enhance customer communication with an outstanding
marketing team which thoroughly and promptly
understands the requirements of customers

Step up cooperation with raw material suppliers and
monitor the market trend of change in new textile
materials

Boost input for research and development team and
improve product functionality and develop new products
in response to market demands

Explore downstream industries and increase the
contribution of downstream products

Facilitate the development of import and export business
continuously to tap into overseas markets

Promote diversified development in the industry so as to
survive under adverse macro-environment, in view of the
fact that the textile industry is large in scale despite its
vulnerability to the economic and social environment

BARFNTHEHEN  NEEEPER TR
BEETPEX

mERRHEEANSE  BITENHENHE
8%
MATEEGRA - EHEFREEERNERAR
MEM

METHER EMTHERNLE
TEMBELOXBOFRE RGN TS
BAGBOREHZALERMERETE  BaAR
ARBRREA  BRETENSTILERBAINER
EMHNZBERET LR

\4

Causes of the trend:
With the continuous development
of the Group's downstream
industry, the proportion of income
and revenue from non-woven
fabrics to the Group's business has
significantly increased

\4

FRBZHRR :
EERBERRTHEX @
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

AEBNERRR &)

Risks description

ER A

Major control measures and risk mitigation

TEERERRARYR

Changes of risk
level from last year

BRAFEEFEE(L

Risk of fluctuation of cotton prices

REEKKDER

Cotton is the major production material of the
Group and the fluctuation of cotton prices may
not align with fluctuation of end-product prices
at all times. In the event of intense fluctuation of
cotton prices, the gross profit margin of the
Group will be heavily affected.

RIETAKEIRNEERR  BIEEBRNK
PEET - FRLRERNERKY 2R
%o MERLERBNND HeUAREE
MEEKREATE -

Foreign exchange and interest risk

HNERFZRE

Fluctuation of exchange rate may result in
material losses on foreign currency and affect the
raw material procurement costs and financing
costs of the Group. In the event of intensified
fluctuation of the exchange rate of USD/RMB, the
profitability of the Group may be subject to
material uncertainties.

In the event of increase in prevailing interest
rates of banks, liabilities at floating rates may
cause an increase in financing costs of the
Group.

EXRH L GHEANMEER  FELKE
MRERBRAURBERA - 5 XT/ A
RENEXRBME ARENBFIENTEE
BHEEEATHEL -

HERTRITNE LT FBEHENEERE
BYREERERASZM

Closely monitor the dynamics of cotton futures and
supply and demand balance and correlation in the spot
market and hedge risks mainly through measures like
maintaining stable procurement and inventory strategies
Diversify the development of the synthetic fiber category
and reduce the Group’s reliance on the cotton category

BRI TEHEYRAUARREMENHRBFERA
B TRUAABBENRERFERBSRERY
R

EMEERRERE  REAKEHRYmENK
i

Foster communication with financial institutions and
market analysis institutions to interpret the dynamics of
financial market and make specific adjustments to
financing structure

Increase loans in RMB to reduce the ratio of loans in USD
to directly mitigate risks

Lock up exposure of liabilities in foreign currencies,
including foreign liabilities arising from daily operation
and financing, using foreign exchange financial products,
such as forward contracts and options

Closely monitor various important economic data
published by the People’s Bank of China and the Federal
Reserve and keep abreast with its interest rate policy
Obtain quotations for interest rate swap from financial
institutions regularly and utilize financial instruments in a
timely manner to switch from floating to fixed interest
rate

MEESBEBRHSOMEENER  BRERD
S8R HEENARRELE
EMARBEFAREXTER LY ERRERR
MAESREH  HRFIIESRERRIENEAE
MO BREEREENIIERERBENINBRE
ZOBITEARRIRZBRENZREREEH
B HENERRSERT
BERBBRBEANTARE  BRIAERT
ARFHNEEBEEFX

t

Causes of the trend:
Fluctuation of cotton market
price has increased the
difficulties of raw materials
procurement of the Group

t

FRBZHRA :
WM IREHRARKEEN
TEERMERBNEE

t

Causes of the trend:
Inflation and employment data
of the United States continues
to affect the status of USD
interest rate

t

FREBHRA :
FEREMAXBEREY
EXTHEHE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) AEENERRR @)

Changes of risk
Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year
B i TEERERRERYEEK BRAFREFE(

Financing risk

MERR

The business scale of the Group is relatively large,
but it also seizes the opportunities to increase its
investment with higher financing needs. In  the
event that the financial institutions which provide
the existing facilities cease to offer such financing
to the Group or banking facilities on similar terms
and the Group fails to obtain alternatives, the
Group may not have sufficient funds for its
commitment of capital projects and may restrict or
hinder the business operation of the Group. In the
event that the operating environment deteriorates,
it may even affect the operation of the existing
business of the Group.

TEEXBREBA A0 lE—Like
BIRE  ARROBERE - WARMRE
BENSREEFLAAEBREAERER
BUGRORITRE - MARETRER R
MBS AARER RS ENNESAR
ANBERA - B A BRI R A KA A
EpRE  BRERRRL EEWRFED
$EEEE%$WEL°

Enhance the transparency of the Group's operation for
banks' understanding and maintain good working
relationship between the Group and financial institutions
Monitor various financing indicators in real-time and
provide timely alerts to ensure compliance in respect of
various indicators

Diversify the portfolio of financial institutions and
financing products

Devise a reasonable spread for financing with different
terms to strike a balance between financing costs and
risks

B FTHREEETHRABRBRNERE  #ETK

%@ﬁﬂﬁ%%%éﬁ@%
ERENRERERE  REBL  BREEERER

@m

ENRERENREEREANSENT

AERBETRAERNRE  ®EREXALBERR

t

Causes of the trend:
Downturn in international
market demand has affected
the profitability of the Group's
business

)

FRBENnRA :
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) REENERRR @)
Changes of risk

Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year
2B i TEERREREBRHR BERATREFR{
Customer credit management risk
EFEREERR
The Group focuses on producing a wide range of Monitor and evaluate credit terms granted to customers <>
products and does not rely on a particular reqularly Unchanged
individual customer. The Group works with more Monitor the collectability of receivables in real-time and
than 5,000 customers from an enormous and provide alerts and warnings for amount overdue and
widespread portfolio. Increasing business volume customers with abnormal business operation
and business type lead to increasing total Closely monitor market dynamics and operation of
receivables customers to devise plan for customer visit and collect

the latest information of customers

Enhance customer reconciliation system

Adopt collectability of receivables as a criterion of staff

performance assessment to promote staff members’

awareness of payment demand

Arrange export credit insurance for all overseas customers

with newly established relationship
FEENAERARENERRES - MR ERREHARELOERS >
REE—ZP - ARERFEFRS00K & EREERMGER HBHNLREKEERENE EEH

PRZAMEN T - XHEREHELY
TEE NG S Y BB N

PRRYERETRERR
TBRIMSDENELEERN  SIEEPETN
iHE BERFPRMER

HER P R
BELZHOERELRAZHRENEY  BEXH
ABHERES
HRFBRAAENEIEPORELOERRR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

AEBNERRR #)

Risks description

B g

Major control measures and risk mitigation

TEERERRERYR

Changes of risk
level from last year

BEBATRLEFE{

Product liability risk
EmSEERR

The Group offers a wide range of products and
its portfolio is ever-expanding, creating a huge
risk of product liability for the Group. Although
the Group has not suffered any material losses
from product liability claim, there have been
individual claims from customers in respect of
product quality.

TEEERmELS  BHmEREEN 4
AEBERIIFRTEANAR - #ALE
ERAREREEERAENEREL  ERE
EXPHRERZENRERNREEMN -

Tax risk

RER

The operation presence of the Group covers
various countries and regions, including the
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Vietnam,
Turkey and the Americas. In the course of tax
planning and daily operation, we are subject to
the following tax risks:

Risk of tax incompliance caused by
misunderstanding of regional tax policies;

The interpretation of tax policies and the
legal conformity of tax preparation must
be confirmed by the tax administration
authority. In the course of such
confirmation, the enforcement of tax
administration may be different.

AEERNKERSAETEAY B R

P88 tEERENSSERRMLE -

ERBEARATERBRET  RMARAT

R EE :
HiEERERRERERMELN
RBERRR
RERRBREEREEINSEUR
REIBRBIRABPINER - FE
RBRT  RETRAETELR R
Eo

Increase efforts on quality control and devise
improvement solutions for quality fluctuation

Control production process using state-of-the-art
measurement equipment and online quality control
system

Improve production technology training for staff members
and cultivate responsibility awareness of plant
production staff and management members at each
level

Actively reach out to customers for product liability
incidents and coordinate for resolution and hold relevant
staff accountable internally

%KE%%%ﬁEﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂ
MATENRAGEREREEEHES HERE
EMBIRETE

BMETAERMMNEN  REIMEEABRER
BEABHNELEH
REREASHETFREER  BARE HRE
RABAREL

Engage financial officers familiar with local tax policies and
regulations to conduct tax audit and handle tax
examination of the government

Engage professional local tax consultation institutions for
consultations on tax compliance advices, tax incentive
policies and tax preparation solutions

Liaise with local tax authority frequently to have thorough
understanding of change in tax policies and policy
interpretation, thereby reducing risks of tax incompliance
and enforcement of tax administration

BAME LB BREAEOHBARETHER
£ RHERHBRE
BAENEEORBANRBEINBARRE B
BEEREN DA B RSS
RENHBUEEEAR  2ELENBRERDR
BERE  AOBBRARRO RSN
g

«>
Unchanged

i

t

Causes of the trend:
Intensifying tax regulations in
different countries
Increasing international coverage
of operation presence, resulting in
mounting overseas tax risk
The requested implementation
of the minimum tax rate
jointly by the OECD countries
around the world will increase
our tax burdens and risks

L )

BkiBsHRA :
ZERREE TN
TEEEARERL  NE
TN S R
2IROECOBEZRE A BERIE
REMER  5HEERHH
nEEaERER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

AEBNERRR &)

Risks description

R g

Major control measures and risk mitigation

TEERERRERYR

Changes of risk
level from last year

BRAFRLFE{E

Legal and other regulatory risk

ERRAMEERR

As a listed company on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”), the
Group must comply with the "Securities and
Futures Ordinance” and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange as
well as the laws and regulations in places which
the Group operates in. As social and economic
environment evolves, many countries and
relevant authorities continue to promulgate laws
and rules to update economic matters, such as
corporate governance, foreign investment,
commerce, tax and trade. The introduction or
amendments of these laws and regulations may
adversely affect the business and prospects of the
Group.

ARBER-—MREEMARZABERA

(T8 %p)) EMAR  BAET(E %&%f
A MR AR LRI ARAEEE
%%Eﬂ%&é&iﬁ°%%ﬁ@ﬁ@%%m
21 FENRERBESTHRAEHND

Ba BIRE BE- M%&T%%%@
BOERRR - GLARRERO LR E
EYRREAREEBE RIS ERAETE -

Energy supply risk
R B B

Electricity consumption of the Group's
production process is huge and electricity
shortage may adversely affect the operation of
production facilities of the Group.

TEERREBRETRANENE N ENH
Fhﬁ R AREAERBOEBERTF

E’?
vE

Engage qualified legal advisors or consultation institutions
to review and provide advice on relevant documents to
ensure legal compliance

The company secretary is responsible for offering advice
to the board of directors and board committees in
respect of the latest legal, regulatory and governance
matters and ensuring their awareness of such matters

EEAARNZRBNIAARBEENAEXELR
HER  BREWERAREX
REANERENEFGRESZRERSHNER
EERERSERMERNEREMNEEZXSEE

Equip production factories subject to potential electricity
shortage with generators to minimize the duration of
electricity shortage

Conduct technological renovation on equipment to
reduce energy consumption

Liaise with the government to seek permit for
uninterrupted electricity supply

RURERENERNEETHREARESR B8
REENHERRANER

HREBETRIONE - BERERER

BYFER ﬁTz%H%ﬁVﬁaﬁ%%ﬂ

>
Unchanged

\4

Causes of the trend:
With the increase in capital
investment of clean energy for
factories by the Group, the
Group’s energy costs are
expected to be effectively
reduced

\/

FRBZHRA :
REEENIREEZE RN
BeRA - BRrEBURE
SEAEERAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

AEBNERRR #)

Risks description

R g

Major control measures and risk mitigation

IREERRRARHE

Changes of risk
level from last year

BBRAFRLFE{E

Human resources risk

ANERER

The Group operates in a labour-intensive industry.
While our new plant, with more advanced
production facilities, has helped to reduce our
deployment of labour force to a certain extent, our
need in manpower remains relatively high
compared to some other industrial segments. If we
experience any labour shortage or technical
inadequacy of its labour force, the efficiency in
utilization of our production facilities will be
impaired, and our profitability will be affected as a
result.

The Group has been expanding its operation
abroad. The cultural difference between our
foreign and Chinese employees may bring risk to
the regular and normal operation of our Company.

TEEFRTEASPRELNE  EAHT
Bk TERTENTERE A TREL
RETST  BRALAMTE  HRETH
FREABR - EABTRIABLEREL
EREHEERBFIMAERE - EMPER
SEMBNEES -

TEBBIMUBTEEA BB TEHER
BTN LERTRALRNIREERRA

’ZA

a0 o
A

Commence effective performance-based unit count in
recognition of the principle of ‘better reward comes with
greater contribution’

Expand the scope of staff training to create a highly
efficient and capable workforce

Prepare and work further ahead on any decisions related
to employees and that any issue which may arise will be
promptly dealt with

Address issue concerning the conditions of our canteen
and staff quarters, enhance the quality of our employees’
livelihood, and improve our backup supporting service
Train up and enhance the management capability of our
management staff, roll out skill and capability
reinforcement programme, strengthen the sense of
belonging and honour of our staff

Improve staff retention through maintaining and
expanding our presence in the locality

BRRRENGH BRIZ556G]0RA
BABTHIIRG  £EEEE THARSRNTIE

i

BRI I AEMRERIRIMTER  HHEER
53573

WERE BEME EREIEEEZ WMiTEY
RERE

R ERABMERKT  HRAPRABIN
Bz HABTHOENARARK KRER
RREITBIRAR BRI BARANEEHNTESN

\

Causes of the trend:
The influence of COVID-19
epidemic on the movement of
people tends to end, and the
stability of people has
increased

\4
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

AEBNERRR &)

Risks description

R g

Major control measures and risk mitigation

TEERERRERYR

Changes of risk
level from last year

BRAFRLFE{E

Environmental protection compliance risk

RREKER

The Group's production process is subject to a
wide range of the environmental protection laws
and regulations in various countries and territories.
The Group has not been subject to any fines or
penalties concerning environmental pollution in
the past. However, there can be no assurance that
governments of any countries and territories will
not introduce new laws and regulations to impose
stricter control on environmental pollution in the
future. Additionally, the risk faced by the Group
may also increase as a result of investments in
downstream sectors.

Changes in existing environmental protection laws
and regulations may require the Group to incur
substantial expenditure to upgrade its existing
environmental protection facilities and the
profitability of the Group may be adversely
affected.

rEBLERRBETRARMERNRERE
ERRIED - REBEREYL BRRRSRM
RERLFUEE - BERETRESE SR
BRTERAR&SIARBBEHNRRD RO
ERRIED - 2o ARBEORH THREFR
EmA s namEmR -

RERRERRKIHREE A< ARE
ELRANRS - URITARBRERERE

MREES  ARENRFIENTEZ TN
2,

Selectively pick our suppliers, enter into purchase
agreements with suppliers which guarantee the raw
materials supplied are in compliance with environmental
protection standard (in particular dyestuff and chemicals)
Establish a factory internal check system and procedure
in compliance with product-wise regular core
environmental protection standard, set up a highly
regulated control system and strictly implement it

Pay attention to news about development in
environmental regulations, cause new factories to
operate in strict compliance with any new regulations
and existing factories to transform and upgrade their
facilities in order to meet with environmental protection
standard

EEfES  BHERRIRERNRREROHRE

& L %1|:ﬂ)§24t§&'ﬁ@

BUERERZORRESNIRARAGERR

BUBRBAEHE R ELRBRT

BIRRERTANEHES  URHRIBERR

”%%ﬁﬁ“ HRETRBRETSERRES
T KEEFREAREE

>
Unchanged

E=)
R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is essential to the success of the Group and
the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (THE “CG CODE")

The Company is committed to maintaining high levels of corporate
governance and has steered its development and protected the
interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and open manner.
The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board has adopted the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Part 2
of Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the year ended
31 December 2022 (the "Year”), the Company had complied with the
then applicable code provisions of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises six Directors and its composition is
set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)
Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)
Tang Daoping (Chief Operation Officer)
Hui Tsz Wai (resignation effective on 31 March 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”):

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 58 to 60.
There was no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

To ensure that the Board has access to independent views and
input, various mechanisms are adopted. The Company has three
INEDs representing more than one-third of the Board. At least one of
the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules. The Board has received from each of the INED an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers that all the
INEDs are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

AEBEBNERFRKFPZERER  UB#
FRE HEUERBIMERRA -EFZSHEE
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“A=+-RALEE(ER]) - AREEET
O R 1 B <P B <P RIS o
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KK (B L EHRITEARE)

BB (ZEEE)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to
review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results. During
the Year, six Board meetings and two general meetings were held
and attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the
general meeting is set out as follows:

=3 4F )

EFeEHMAHGE  IwmARE 2 ERBR
AREENMBARR  WEREANMEREE
EERPHESE - NERN CRTAREES
EHELMABRRREG  REFHFEFSEH
RERAGZIBREINMT

Number of
Board Number of
meetings General meetings
attended/held attended/held
HE diE
BTESS BHIRRK
BRI RERE
Executive Directors: HITES:
Hong Tianzhu (Chairman) HERW(FE) 6/6
(Note 1)
(Brat1) 2/2
Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and KoKVE (B EEFTEARZ)
Chief Executive Officer) 6/6
(Note 1)
(Brat1) 2/2
Tang Daoping (Chief Operation Officer) FBT (EEEZ) 6/6 2/2
Hui Tsz Wai (resignation effective on HFEMWRZZE-_—_F=A=+—H
31 March 2022) BHE) 11 0/2
(Note 2) (Note 2)
(Hizt2) (Kiiz2)
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BMFEHTES :
Cheng Longdi T2 [E 1% 6/6 1/2
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA T R $8MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD 6/6 2/2
Tao Xiaoming F8 5 A 6/6 2/2

The Board is responsible for considering and decision making for
matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, investment
plans, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or reappointment, material contracts and transactions
as well as other significant policies and financial matters. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the senior
management under the supervision of the Board.

Notes:

(1) Each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang had been interested
in matters proposed for consideration at two of the board meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2022 which pertained to
connected transactions of the Company. They had abstained from
voting on the relevant board resolutions and were not counted
towards the quorum of such board meetings in accordance with
Article 107(H) of the Articles of Association of the Company but were
in attendance. For further details of the connected transactions,
please refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report.

) Mr. Hui Tsz Wai ceased to be an executive Director on 31 March 2022,
his attendance was stated by reference to the number of board
meetings and general meetings held during his tenure. However, he
attended all subsequent board meetings and general meetings after
his resignation in his capacity as company secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at approximately quarterly
intervals and as required by business needs. At least 14 days' notice
of a Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
company secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing
the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the intended date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as
practicable for other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board
meeting are circulated to all Directors for their comment before the
same will be tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the company secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the company
secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
will be continuously updated on the major development of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant and in compliance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG
Code, the Company would arrange and fund suitable continuous
professional development for the Directors to participate in order to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the Year, the Company had provided all the Directors with
regular updates regarding the Company’s performance as well as
updates on latest amendments and developments to the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from
time to time.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“‘the Securities
Code") regarding securities transactions by Directors and officers on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code (“Model Code”) for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

A copy of the Securities Code has been sent to each Director of the
Company first on his/her appointment and thereafter twice
annually, 30 days and 60 days before the date of the Board
meetings to approve the Company’s interim results and annual
results respectively, with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives of the Company until after such results
have been published, and that all his dealings must be conducted in
accordance with the Securities Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Under the Securities Code, the Directors are required to notify
Mr. Hong Tianzhu or Mr. Zhu Yongxiang or a Director (other than
himself/herself) designated by the Board for the specific purpose
(the “Designated Director”) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement from such Designated Director before dealing in
the securities and derivatives of the Company.

During the Year, the Company, having made specific enquiry on all
the Directors, confirms that all the Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Securities Code and the Model
Code.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual.

Mr. Hong Tianzhu is the chairman of the Company. Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang is the vice chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, Professor Cheng Longdi,
Professor Tao Xiaoming has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director for an initial term of one year commencing
from their respective date of appointment as an INED renewable
automatically for successive term of one year each commencing
from the next day after the expiry of the then current term of
appointment, unless terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either the independent non-executive
Director or the Company expiring at the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter. The Company has paid an annual director’s fee
of HKD300,000 to Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, HKD150,000 to
Professor Cheng Longdi, and HKD180,000 to Professor Tao Xiaoming
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Save for the above directors’
fees, none of the independent non-executive Directors has received
any other remuneration for holding their office as an independent
non-executive Director.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and an environmental, social and governance
committee (the "ESG Committee”), each of which has its specific
written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and
resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the company
secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the committees
are required to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures and
arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned on page 30 in the
section “The Board” above, have been adopted for the committee
meetings so far as practicable.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee since
November 2004, which currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi.
The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen. The Remuneration Committee has adopted terms of
reference which are in line with the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice in accordance with the Company’'s policy if considered
necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(a)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, this should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration; and

to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held during the Year to review and discuss
the existing policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors,
and make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of both the executive and non-executive Directors and
senior management and the attendance of each member is set out
as follows:

BEEZES(H)
FWNEES (&)
FTHEESEFAEZLBR—REH - FAE

BIT-RZEEgH UBBNIRERZH
TTHMBRERE U TEFEMIFNTE
EREREEBZYMEGBRAESSRHE
& OMERBZHEBREINGT

Number of committee
meeting attended/held

Committee member ZEEHE HE BITZE88B2RE
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TR#E 1/1
Tao Xiaoming fa B BA /1
Cheng Longdi TRER /1
In addition to the Committee meetings, the Remuneration REEggz/) FHEESTRFANERE

Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during the
Year. The remuneration payable to Directors will depend on their
respective contractual terms under their employment or service
contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the senior executives and key
employees of the Group, including the executive Directors, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) in April 2014 for a term of ten years. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 66 to
69 and note 18 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since November 2004,
the current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen. To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit
Committee has been chaired by an INED with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Audit Committee has adopted terms of
reference, which are in line with the code provisions of the CG
Code. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(a

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company's annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
to review significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them, and to review the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports before submission to the Board;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to
discuss;

to review the Company'’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;

to discuss with the management the risk management and
internal control systems and ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems;

to consider any findings of major investigations of risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the
Board or on its own initiative and management’s response;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Two

BEEZES(H)
EREE] (&)
ERLEESEFAZLBRMIEEH - FAE

committee meetings were held during the Year and the attendance BITMARZEE®EE  MEKEZHERBRN
of each member is set out as follows: ™

Number of committee

meeting attended/held

Committee member ZEEHE HE BITZE88B2RE

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TR#E 2/2

Tao Xiaoming fa B BA 2/2

Cheng Longdi TRER 2/2

During the meetings held in the Year, the Audit Committee had FRNRT2GH BREEGORITZIER
performed the work as summarised below: oy

() reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by (i) % 5] &?ﬁt)ﬁ SNEZEMEZZAEEE

the external auditor regarding the final audit of the Group for E_E_—F+A=+—HILEFEZ

the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “2021 Final Audit"); E?’i‘%ﬁ(f— T —FFEREZ]) 2%

HHERER

(i) reviewed the external auditor's report of findings in relation to
the 2021 Final Audit;

(iii)  reviewed the financial reports for the year ended 31 December
2021 and for the six months ended 30 June 2022; and

(iv)  reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system of the
Group including financial, operational and compliance control
and risk management functions of the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditors.

Nomination Committee

On 19 March 2012, the Board has approved the establishment of
the Nomination Committee which became effective on 1 April 2012.
The current members of Nomination Committee comprises an
executive Director and the chairman of the Company, Mr. Hong
Tianzhu and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Professor Tao Xiaoming, Professor Cheng Longdi and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen. The chairman of the Nomination Committee is
Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The Nomination Committee has adopted terms of
reference which are in line with the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice in accordance with the Company's policy if considered
necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

(a

to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on:

(i) the role, responsibilities, capabilities, skills, knowledge
and experience required from members of the Board;

(i) the policy on the terms of employment of non-executive
Directors;

(i) the composition of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and other board committees of the
Company;

(iv)  proposed changes to the structure, size and composition
of the Board;

(v)  candidates suitably qualified to become members of the
Board;

(vi)  the selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

(vii)  the re-election by shareholders of the Company of any
Directors who are to retire by rotation having regard to
their performance and ability to continue to contribute
to the Board;

(viii) the continuation (or not) in service of any independent
non-executive Director serving more than nine years
and to provide recommendation to the shareholders of
the Company as to how to vote in the resolution
approving the re-election of such independent
non-executive Director;

(ix)  the appointment or re-appointment of Directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(d)

38

to make recommendations to the Board on: (Continued)

(x)  succession planning for Directors in particular the
chairman and the chief executive; and

(xi)  the policy concerning diversity of Board members;

to give full consideration to the following in the discharge of
its duties as mentioned above or elsewhere in these terms of
reference:

(i) succession planning of Directors;

(i) leadership needs of the Group with a view of
maintaining or fostering the competitive edge of the
Group over others;

(i) changes in market environment and commercial needs
of the market in which the Group operates;

(iv)  the skills and expertise required from members of the
Board;

(v)  the Board's policy concerning diversity of Board
members adopted from time to time; and

(vi)  the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with
regard to directors of a listed issuer;

in respect of any proposed service contracts to be entered into
by any members of the Group with its director or proposed
director, which require the prior approval of the shareholders
of the Company at general meeting under rule 13.68 of the
Listing Rules, to review and provide recommendations to the
shareholders of the Company (other than shareholders who
are directors with a material interest in the relevant service
contracts and their respective associates) as to whether the
terms of the service contracts are fair and reasonable and
whether such service contracts are in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole, and to advise
shareholders on how to vote;

to ensure upon the appointment to the Board, non-executive
Directors receive a formal letter of appointment setting out
what is expected of them in terms of time commitment,
committee service and involvement outside meetings of the
Board;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

(h)  to conduct interviews with any Director upon their resignation
in order to ascertain the reasons for his departure; and

(i) to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held during the Year to review the
structure and composition of the Board and the re-election of the
retiring Directors and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

EEZEg @)

REZEE (&)

(h ERBEZEFBENESY 7THRERR
RRA &

() ZEEFSTHBERZENEMEIR -

REZESEFAZLEAA—RERE - FAE
BIT—REEELH  URITEFEHERER
A AREERTEE MEXNEZ2LFE
SR

Number of committee
meeting attended/held

Committee member ZEERE HE /" BITZEEEBEZRE
Hong Tianzhu R 1/1
Tao Xiaoming ba i BF 1/1
Cheng Longdi TRER 1/1
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TR#E 1/1

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

The Company has established the ESG Committee since 23 August
2021, which currently comprises executive Director of the Company,
namely Mr. Tang Daoping and three independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi. The chairman
of the ESG Committee is Mr. Tang Daoping and Mr. Hui Tsz Wai
ceased to be a member on 31 March 2022. The ESG Committee has
adopted written terms of reference. The ESG Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice in accordance with the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (Continued)

The major roles and functions of the ESG Committee are:

U]

(iff)

(iv)

to formulate and review the Company’s concepts, strategies,
frameworks, principles and policies in respect of
environmental protection, corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility, make relevant
recommendations to the Board and implement the
environmental protection, corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility policies formulated by the
Board;

to review and monitor the Company’s environmental
protection, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility policies and practices to ensure compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

to take measures to promote the Company's environmental
protection, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility, and formulate corporate objectives, goals, key
performance indicators and measures to ensure performance
in response to the areas of environmental protection,
corporate governance and corporate social responsibility (as
appropriate);

to monitor expenditures arising from Company's environmental
protection, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility work; and

to review the annual “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” and make recommendations to the Board for
approval.

The ESG Committee shall meet at least once a year. One committee
meeting was held during the Year and the attendance of each
member is set out as follows:

BEEZES(H)
RE - HEREREES (/“’”)
ESGZEEMETEAE KR

() HIEMBHARRERERE - BERER
&m%% SEEFTENEBES KK IE

RAIRBEK - MESSRLAMHER
EE% THITEFSHTHIRERE -
XBahbEHEETHE

(i s REREARARNRERE BXRER
REEHGEABRREER - UERET
ERRETRTE

(i) FREUERIEEARRNRFERE - BXE
AREEREEML  UHELETEH - B
1% BEASEE RGN - LRERERE
R - REEAREEMHGEME (WER)
FEAKRR

(v) ERARTIRERE CRERARDER
SEEIEEENRS K

v BRFEGRE HERERWRSE) XM
EEgiRNEBEREELE -

Sy

TINERE° E'EWE;—“E
&K E 2 HEIERE

Number of committee
meeting attended/held

HE " BITEEFERZRE

Committee member ZEEHE
Tang Daoping & B
Tao Xiaoming b8 & A
Cheng Longdi TRER
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE
Hui Tsz Wai FFE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The director nomination policy (the “Director Nomination Policy”) of
the Company aims to set out the criteria and process in the
nomination and appointment of directors of the Company; ensure
that the board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company; and ensure the Board continuity and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

Criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors

The criteria for selecting any candidate for directorship are set out as
follows:

bringing an independent view and judgment and make
constructive recommendation on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conducts;

taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for Non-Executive Director) and other relevant
Board Committees, if invited;

devoting sufficient time to the Board and/or any Committee(s)
on which he or she serves so as to allow them to benefit
from his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and
participation in the Board;

scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting
of performance;

ensuring the Nomination Committees on which he or she
serves to perform their powers and functions conferred on
them by the Board; and

conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitutional documents of the Company or
imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules, where
appropriate.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an INED, his or her
independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among other
things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
subject to any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange
from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s
education, qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to
consider whether he or she has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise for filling the office of an INED with such qualifications or
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Nomination process
(a) Appointment of New Director

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

(i) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable).

(i)~ The Nomination Committee should then recommend to
the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

(iv)  For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

Nomination process (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Re-election of Director at General Meeting

()

(ii)

(ii)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or
re-elect a candidate as director at the general meeting,
the relevant information of the candidate will be
disclosed in the circular to shareholders and/or
explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting in accordance with the Listing
Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

Re-election of INED at General Meeting

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual
as an INED at the general meeting, it should set out in the
circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the process used for identifying the individual and why
the Board believes the individual should be elected and
the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;

if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the Board;

the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

how the individual contributes to diversity (including
gender diversity) of the Board.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)
Nomination process (Continued)
(c) Re-election of INED at General Meeting (Continued)

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
Director Nomination Policy and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and business needs, to
comply with all applicable laws and regulations from time to
time and maintain good corporate governance practice.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

On 5 August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which aims to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on merit while taking into account diversity including gender
diversity. The Nomination Committee will regularly review the
measurable objectives to ensure its effectiveness to achieve diversity
on the Board. The following measurable objectives have been set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy:

inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
working experience (outside of PRC);

ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors and there shall be at least one female member on
the Board;

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with knowledge
and skills in different aspects.

As at the date of this annual report, the above objectives have been
achieved. 5 out of 6 members of the Board have overseas working
experience and 1 out of 6 members of the Board have accounting
or other professional qualifications. The Board is also a mixed-gender
board with female representation brought by Professor Tao
Xiaoming, an independent non-executive Director. The Board
recognises the importance and benefits of gender diversity at Board
level and shall continue to take initiatives to identify suitable female
candidates for board succession planning and enhancement of
gender diversity in the Board. To increase gender diversity on the
Board, the Board has actively sought out candidates who are
qualified and suitable. At present, the Nomination Committee
considers that an appropriate balance of gender diversity of the
Board is maintained. The Nomination Committee will monitor the
Group's business needs and consider further appointment of female
directors as appropriate. In order to build a pipeline of potential
successors for the Board to increase gender diversity in the Board in
the upcoming vyears, the Group will also proactively provide
trainings to our senior managements to create an inclusive
workplace and may also work with human resources firms to
identify potential successors for the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written nomination
procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process and
criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company. The Nomination Committee shall,
based on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure
(such as appropriate experience, personal skills and time
commitment etc.), identify and recommend the proposed candidate
to the Board for approval of an appointment.

Set forth below are the gender ratio in the Group’s workforce as at
31 December 2022:
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Male (%) Female (%)
B (%) Z 1% (%)
Directors ) 83.3 16.7
Workforce (including senior management) TEEX (BHESREEE) 49.7 50.3

Based on the existing composition of the workforce, the
management has deemed that the workforce has more or less
achieved gender parity and no targets have been set. The targets
will be revisited periodically based on a range of criteria, including
current and expected size of each department in the future,
changes in the number of female staff members in each
department, and the needs of each department with reference to
the Group’s business development plans.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a Director. The package will also include the latest published
financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior
management will subsequently conduct such briefing as is
necessary to give the new Directors more detailed information on
the Group's businesses and activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND ESG
COMMITTEE

The Board is mainly responsible for keeping the effectiveness of the
corporate governance and system of internal non-financial controls
of the Group. The Board shall introduce and propose relevant
principles concerning corporate governance and to review and
determine the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and to
ensure a high standard of corporate governance practices in the
Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND ESG
COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Board regularly reviewed and monitored the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors,
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements the Board has also reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the disclosures in this
Corporate Governance Report. In August 2021, the Company
established the ESG Committee to oversee and report to the Board
on matters relating to environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
practices of the Group and to ensure compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements on ESG including corporate governance
principles applicable to the Company. For details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Board Committees” above.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with
the support from finance department, the financial statements of the
Group. In preparing the financial statements for the Year, the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the Companies
Ordinance were complied with.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, are set out in the Auditor's Report
on pages 85 to 93.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Framework

The risk management and internal controls system will assist the
Group to fully achieve its strategic objective by identifying and
assessing all the risk exposure of the Group and setting down
corresponding control measures, with a view to attain the long-term
vision of the Group. We believe that effective risk management and
internal controls system will enhance shareholders’ value in the long
term. The risk faced by the Group directly relates to its control
measures and mitigation plan.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued) BER&B (#)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) EpEE R AIBEEE ()
Framework (Continued) ER(E)

Accordingly, the risk management and internal controls framework Bt NEESREREERASETERAT
of our Group is as follows:

The Board Audit Committee
Exg N EREEE

*  To set strategic objectives .
*  To assume overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal controls system
* To assess and determine the nature of the risks and our
level of tolerance for each of them
»  To review the effectiveness of our risk management and
internal controls system
»  To provide direction on the importance of risk .
management and risk management culture

To assist the Board in
monitoring risk exposure,
design and operating
effectiveness of the
underlying risk
management and internal
controls system

To monitor and review
the effectiveness of the
internal audit department
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Internal Audit Risk Management and

AR E

Internal Controls Team

EREEMARBEEE A

To assist the Audit
Committee in
reviewing the
effectiveness of our
risk management and
internal controls
system

To perform analysis
and independent
assessment on the
adequacy and
effectiveness of our
risk management and
internal control system

wEIEZE B e et
REBERBEER
B EE TR R AT AR AR
HFRAPIRO LB TR Ko
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To design, implement,
and monitor risk
management and
internal controls
system

To assess the risk
profile of the Group
and each of our
operating units and the
risk mitigating
measures

To give confirmation to
the Board on the
effectiveness of the
risk management and
internal controls
functions
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Framework (Continued)

The operating model of the Group’s risk management and internal
control framework conforms to the internal controls framework of
COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) in the following five aspects:

. Control Environment

The Group has established a clear organization structure and
delegated powers necessary to perform different business
functions to management at different levels but it is subject
to the limit set by the Board. The Board meets regularly to
discuss and approve the business strategies and working
plans set by each operating units. The Group will report our
financial performance to the Board on monthly basis.

Our governance rules and requirements are very transparent
to employees. We hope to build up risk awareness and
internal controls responsibility in our corporate culture by
creating an internal organizational environment driven by the
management operating philosophy, risk awareness, integrity
and ethical values.

. Risk Assessment

The Group identifies, assesses and grades the risks that are
most relevant to the success of the Group based on the
possibility of occurrence and the impact on the financial
result of the risk. Risk management and internal controls team
is responsible for setting the appropriate tone from the top,
performing risk assessment, as well as taking care of the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls.
Meanwhile, it requires department heads from each of the
operating units to identify operating risks from the bottom in
order to determine the major risks and the risk levels of the
Group.

. Control Activities

The Group has policy and procedure in place for all business
functions, including authorization, approval and audit,
recommendation, performance review, asset protection and
division of duty, to ensure effective execution of organization
objectives and mitigation of risk activities.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Framework (Continued)

. Information and Communication

The risk management and internal controls team performs risk
assessment and prepare the Annual Report of Risk
Management on a semi-annual basis, which sets out the
identified risks and related control procedures. The report will
be submitted to the Board and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually.

. Monitoring

The Group self-assesses its controls and risks by internal
review and circulating major control procedures to its
employees to maintain continuous monitoring of the internal
control procedures. Rectification will be made according to
findings of the control procedures in order to improve
internal monitoring.

Risk Management and Internal Controls Team
Composition

A risk management and internal controls team has been set up by
the Group in 2016, which comprises Mr. Tang Daoping (executive
Director and chief operation officer), and members including general
manager and department head from each of our operating units,
and general managers and department head of finance and human
resources department of our subsidiaries. Mr. Hong Tianzhu, an
executive Director and chairman of the Group and Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang, an executive Director and vice chairman and chief
executive officer of the Group act as advisors of the working team.

Major Tasks

Set out below are the major responsibilities of our risk management
and internal control team:

The team shall formulate proposal and plan for building and
promotion of corporate culture in risk awareness and to lead
in providing risk management training.

The team shall prepare and conduct annual and interim reviews
on risk profile and formulate mitigating measures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Controls Team (Continued)

Major Tasks (Continued)

50

The team shall summarize and analyze the findings of the
review exercise, to advise any modification to the risk
management strategy, to lead and assist relevant departments
in formulating counter measures in addressing any material
risks.

[t shall conduct annual internal evaluation on its own risk
management function, to lead and mobilize the
establishment and modification of risk management and
internal controls system, to give guidance to subsidiaries on
initiation of setting up of risk management system.

[t shall prepare the annual report on Risk Management and
submit the same to our Audit Committee for review and
approval.

It shall be responsible to formulate or modify the relevant risk
management and internal controls system and to oversee its
implementation, to give guidance and assist the subsidiaries
on setting up and optimizing their risk management practical
measures.

[t shall be responsible for the organization, compiling of
minutes and oversight of implementation of relevant
resolutions concerning the risk management function in the
meetings of the Audit Committee and Board meetings.

It shall strictly comply its plan to counter risks by implementing
the measures stipulated therein and to monitor the work rate
and efficiency of such implementation on an ongoing basis,
and advise on remedy in a timely manner.

It shall monitor the status and development of any risk events
and formulate and devise contingency plan in a timely
manner, to forthwith report or inform the Audit Committee
on such matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Controls Team (Continued)

Work Accomplished During the Year

Our risk management and internal controls team held two meetings
during the Year, and reported twice to the Audit Committee and the
Board on the annual risk assessment and findings of internal
controls review. The team accomplished the following work during
the Year:

1. issued relevant documents on risk assessment and internal
controls within the Group to enhance its risk management
culture;

2. performed a general review on the major risk exposure of the
Group, especially in areas relating to raw material purchase,
foreign exchange and exchange rate, credit management and
taxation;

3. discussed the possible risk and impact on operating result with
department heads from each of our operating units;

4. reviewed and improved corresponding internal controls
measure;
5. prepared and submitted the annual report on risk assessment

and internal controls to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Details of the major risks of the Group are set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 20 to 28.

Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. For the Year, our
Board had conducted its annual review of the representations made
by the management in respect of risk management and internal
controls, and considered that our Group’s risk management and
internal controls system effective and adequate. No significant areas
of weaknesses and deficiency that might have affected the financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group were identified. The Board is of the view that the
resources, qualification and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, as well
as those relating to the Company's ESG performance and reporting
and their training and budget are adequate.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness (Continued)

The risk management and internal controls system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve our
business objectives. Like all other systems, it could not entirely
eliminate the impact of all unforeseeable risks and events beyond
our control that might emerge and occur during the course of our
operation. Consequently, the Board may only provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that there was no significant
misrepresentation or deficiency as to the completeness and
effectiveness of our Group’s risk management and internal controls.

Disclosure of Inside Information

Regarding procedures and measures of internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group:

1. is aware of its obligation under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that
inside information should be announced on a timely manner;

2. conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations prevailing in Hong Kong;

3. has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of information to
the public through channels such as financial reporting,
announcements and its website;

4. has included in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorized use of non-public or inside information;

5. has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the

implementation of the Continuous Disclosures Policy and
relevant trainings are also provided.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
External Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the Year, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Company’s external auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set
out as follows:
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Paid/Payable

Services rendered to the Group [ 7 5 B 3R it 2 PR 7% et ENE A
RMB'000
ARBFIT
Annual audit service FEEZRS 3,500
Special audit service R EZRE 3,000
Non-audit services (including consulting service JEIZRTS (BIFEE TEFMIRE - 1+
for transfer pricing and environmental, social & K E AR S A EEE R kAL E
and governance report, agreed-upon FEMEER RV EENHR R
procedures for selected financial information ERF)
of the Group, and preliminary
announcement of results) 1,335
Total: CEE 7,835

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars that are posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Company's annual general meeting (the "AGM”) is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The chairman actively participated in the AGM held during the year
and personally chaired the meeting to answer any questions from
the shareholders. A separate resolution had been proposed by the
chairman in respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An
AGM circular and AGM notice had been distributed to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles”) and the Listing Rules,
setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures
and other relevant information. The chairman explained the
procedures for conducting a poll at the beginning of the AGM, and
answered any questions from shareholders regarding voting by way
of poll.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The following procedures for shareholders (the “Shareholders”, each
a "Shareholder”) of the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (the "EGM") of the Company are prepared in
accordance with Article 64 of the Articles:

One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than 8% of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings shall have the right, by written notice (the
"Requisition”), to require an EGM to be called by the Directors
for the transaction of any business specified therein.

Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company via email at the email
address of the Company at main@texhong.com.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such Requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within
21 days of the deposit of such Requisition, the
Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall
be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for raising enquiries

1.

54

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of
the Company via email at the email address of the Company
at main@texhong.com.

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together

with their detailed contact information for the prompt
response from the Company if it deems appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures and contact details for putting forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings

1. To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its
proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact
information via email at the email address of the Company at
main@texhong.com.

2. The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be
verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar
that the request is proper and in order and made by a
Shareholder, the Board determines whether to include the
Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting to be set out
in the notice of meeting.

3. The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(i) Notice of not less than 21 clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general
meeting;

(i) Notice of not less than 14 clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in meeting other than an
annual general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code but about promoting and
developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. Through the
communication with Shareholders via various channels, the Board
was able to receive invaluable feedback and opinion from
Shareholders. The Board reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the above shareholders’ communication policy
during the Year and concluded that it was effective. We will
continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current
practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
development. Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders are
also welcome to enhance our transparency.
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME AND STOCK SHORT
NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 28 December 2022, the issue of the Certificate of
Incorporation on Change of Name issued by the Registrar of
companies in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2023, the English
name of the Company has been changed from “Texhong Textile
Group Limited” to “Texhong International Group Limited” and the
dual foreign name of the Company in Chinese has been changed
from "R BEEBR A A" to “RIBIFREBE AR D F]" with
effect from 4 January 2023.

The stock short name for trading in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange has been changed from “TEXHONG TEXTILE” to “TEXHONG
INTL GP” in English, and from “RYLAT&" to "RILEIREE" in
Chinese with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 2 February 2023. The stock
code of the Company remains unchanged as “2678".

For further details of the change of company name and stock short
name, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7
November 2022 and 30 January 2023.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During the Year, the following amendments were made to the
constitutional documents of the Company:

1. By a special resolution passed at the AGM held on 6 May 2022,
the Articles were amended and a new set of Articles was
adopted to (i) allow general meetings to be held as electronic
meetings or hybrid meetings; (i) bring the Articles in line with
amendments made to Listing Rules and applicable laws of the
Cayman Islands; and (i) make certain minor housekeeping
amendments for the purpose of clarifying existing practice
and making consequential amendments in line with the
aforesaid amendments.

2. By a special resolution passed at an EGM held on 28 December
2022, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles
(collectively, the “Memorandum and Articles of Association”)
were amended and a new set of Memorandum and Articles of
Association was adopted to reflect the change of name of the
Company as disclosed above.
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AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT
(Continued)

The respective versions of the amended and restated constitutional
documents above are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Tianzhu, aged 55, is an executive Director and chairman
of the Group. He is the founder of the Group. He is responsible for
the strategic development and strategic deployment, project
investment and decision-making for major issues, leadership and
policy decision-making for establishment of corporate culture of the
Group. He has over 20 years of experience in the textile industry.
Prior to establishing the Group, Mr. Hong was a vice general
manager of & /T2 & iR&#H:E B R A7 (injiang Yifeng Garment
Weaving Company Limited). Mr. Hong's interest in the shares of
HKS$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company (“Shares”) is
disclosed under the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors —
Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, aged 56, is an executive Director, vice
Chairman and chief executive officer of the Group. He is responsible
for the strategy implementation, operational planning and
decision-making, decision-making for major issues and
organizational implementation of the Group. Mr. Zhu graduated
from the FI#E#%54E TEBT (Nantong Textile Industry College) in
1987. Prior to joining the Group in 1997, Mr. Zhu was an assistant to
the general manager of 8% —#B%7 #M (Nantong No. 2 Cotton
Textile Factory). Mr. Zhu's interest in the Shares of the Company is
disclosed under the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors —
Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Tang Daoping, aged 57, is an executive Director and chief
operation officer of the Group. He is responsible for the operation
management of the Group. Mr. Tang graduated from &M EEE
fBRE (Xuzhou Radio and TV University) in 1996 majoring in
accounting and administrative management. Mr. Tang has over 30
years of experience in the textile industry. He was a workshop
manager of MEZE R4 4% (Suining Cotton Textile Factory) prior to
joining the Group in 1998 as a vice general manager. Mr. Tang was
promoted and became a director of Jiangsu Century Texhong in
September 2002. Mr. Tang's interest in the Shares of the Company is
disclosed under the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors —
Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations” in this annual report.

58 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED XIIEIMEEERAA

=

BITES

MRABEE 555 AEENRTEFTKE
& o HEERAEBBIBA  BEASEEMNH
BEEMNSEAD BERENEZE T (ER
K DEXEEBHSIBANIRE RN
BEB-_THFL&R ERLASER - FEE
ETI8LREHEBRATMEIGLIE - Mtk
ARAAA AR FREMEI0E T Z KRG
(B zm=EATRIEETERE —€F
MATEABE R AR B sk R ARE A B 2 IRk
HEARD REEE  Em kAR | — BT -

RKFERE S65% AKREONATES 8=
J&HRAT A

AF - B EANEENEE B - *z.
BREMBMAR BRI HEAREAKE
I ° %%Eﬁé—ﬂ)\tiﬂ%%%@@%ﬁﬁklg
Bt e R—NANEFIMARKEEA - KREEBE
F‘ﬁL”‘_ﬁﬁﬁ B B ASIR BN IR o REEHERAK
RAWBOERAEAFRIEEZERE —EF

RITERBERR AR B ST EEOXE 2 Bty
MR R ERE 2SRRI -

BEFERLE 7 ARERTEFREER
WM&E,JK%IE’J LEEE - HBEER—N
NAREFEENFMNERERAR LB
THREERE INOBERER=TF&R - K
LREERGEMOEIREE  BR NN
NEMARKERBIRERE - ZEER-_FT
TENABARIHGELRINES - 554
RARRNBROEREAFRIEETERE —
B RITHAFN AR R S RBAE 2 i
o MR D REEE RS MAR ] BRI

-



EFEREREERR &)

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai, aged 49, is an executive Director and company
secretary. He was responsible for the management of finance and
treasury management of the Group before his resignation as
Director. With effect from 31 March 2022, Mr. Hui ceased to be an
executive Director and remained as the company secretary. Mr. Hui
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor of business administration (honours) degree. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has more than 20 years working experience
in finance related area. Prior to first joining the Group in November
2004, Mr. Hui had been working at one of the big four international
accounting firms for about nine years. Mr. Hui had been the chief
financial officer of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Tao Xiaoming, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 3 March 2014. Professor Tao
is an elected fellow of The Textile Institute, the American Society of
Mechanical Engineers, the Royal Academy of Arts and Design and
Commerce of the United Kingdom, and has been the chair professor
in Textile Technology at the Institute of Textiles and Clothing of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University since April 2002. She was elected
as the world president of The Textile Institute for a tenure of three
years from May 2007. Professor Tao received a bachelor's degree in
textile engineering from China Textile University (R B0 %5 4% A £2)
(currently known as Donghua University (3R % K £2) of the PRC in
January 1982 and a doctorate degree in textile physics from
University of New South Wales in August 1987. From September
1987 to September 1988 and from October 1990 to September
1994, she had been a scientist of the Commonwealth Scientific and
Industrial Research Organisation of Australia. From October 1988 to
January 1990, she had been a lecturer of Donghua University.
Professor Tao was a recipient of prestigious individual awards of the
field: the honorary fellowship of the Textile Institute in 2010, the
founder award of the Fiber Society of the United States in 2013, and
Guanghua Engineering Scientific and Technological Award of
Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2020. With seven academic
monographs, over 800 research papers published and over 41
patents granted, she has been internationally recognised in
particular for her pioneering work on smart textiles and clothing and
textile engineering such as low-twist yarns, solospun yarns and
fabric sensing technology which have been widely applied in the
textile industry.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Professor Cheng Longdi, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 November 2004.
Professor Cheng obtained his doctorate degree in textile
engineering from Donghua University in 2002 and has obtained the
membership of the China Textile Engineering Society. He is currently
a professor (2nd grade) in College of Textiles and a deputy director
of the Key Laboratory of Textile Science and Technology of
Donghua University. Professor Cheng is a member of the expert
committee of each of the following institutions: the China Cotton
Textile Association of New Technology (as a deputy director), the
China Knitting Industrial Association, the China Bast and Leaf Fibers
Textile Association and the China Textile Machinery Association.
Professor Cheng was an engineer of the China Textile Academy
(formerly known as Textile Academy of Textile Ministry). Professor
Cheng is currently an independent director of Hengli Petrochemical
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600346) which is a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKloD, aged 69, was appointed as independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 21 November 2004.
Mr. Ting is an accountant in public practice and has more than 30
years' experience in this field. Currently he is a partner and director
of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) and Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited respectively. He
is currently an independent non-executive director of six other listed
companies in Hong Kong, namely China SCE Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 01966), Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited (stock code: 00046), Dongyue Group Limited (stock code:
00189), New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (stock code: 00472),
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (stock code: 01666) and
Tongda Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 00698) respectively. He
is also a non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 00116).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Sha Tao, aged 57, is a vice president of the Group and director
of our grey fabric production and management center. Mr. Sha
obtained his bachelor's degree in textile from %5 T ¥ 257
(Wuxi Light Industry University) in 1986. Mr. Sha has over 30 years of
experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1998,
he was a factory manager of one of the factories of F B2 — 184
£ (Nantong No. 2 Cotton Textile Factory).

Mr. Hu Zhiping, aged 59, is a vice president of the Group and
general manager of Taizhou business segment. Mr. Hu graduated
from #8583 K22 (Wuxi Professional University) in textile in 1984
Mr. Hu has over 30 years of experience in the textile industry. He
was a vice general manager of &5 EER R AR (Wuxi Xieda
Weaving Company Limited) prior to joining the Group in 1998.

Mr. Cao Youchang, aged 54, is a vice president of the Group and
director of the yarn production and management center of the
Group. He is responsible for the yarn production of the Group.
Mr. Cao graduated from 3B %54 T 2F% (Nantong Textile Industry
College) with a bachelor's degree in textile engineering in 1994.
Mr. Cao has over 26 years of experience in the textile industry. He
joined the Group in 2000, and served as the director of yarn
technology of the Group.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang (Vice chairman and chief executive officer)

Mr. Tang Daoping (Chief operation officer)
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai (resignation effective on 31 March 2022)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),
ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD (Chairman)

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),
ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD (Chairman)

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),
ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

ESG COMMITTEE

Mr. Tang Daoping (Chairman)

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai (Vice chairman) (ceased on 31 March 2022)

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),
ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Hong Tianzhu
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

HEAD OFFICE

Room 03, 37/F
Cable TV Tower
9 Hoi Shing Road
Tsuen Wan

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Citibank

Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank

United Overseas Bank Limited

China Merchants Bank Company Limited

DBS Bank

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Chiu & Partners

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
2103B

21st Floor

148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.texhong.com

STOCK CODE
2678

AMRREE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of yarns, grey
fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics as well as garments.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in note 41 to the accompanying financial statements.

Business segments

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of yarns, grey
fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics as well as garments.
Business analysis of revenue, segment results, total assets and capital
expenditure are set out in note 5 to the accompanying financial
statements.

Geographical segments

The Group mainly operates its business in China, Southeast Asia and
the Americas. Geographical analysis of revenue, segment results,
total assets, and capital expenditure are set out in note 5 to the
accompanying financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For details of business review in relation to the development,
performance, position and likely future development of the
Company’s business as well as principal risks facing the Company,
please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance of such rules and
regulations on the business. During the year ended 31 December
2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to
maintaining the highest environmental and social standards to
ensure sustainable development of its business. The Group
understands that a better future depends on everyone's
participation and contribution in environmental protection. All
employees are encouraged to participate in environmental and
social activities which benefit the community as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Group advocates cleaner production and pursues both
environmental and economic benefits through means such as
reducing pollutant emissions, improving energy efficiency and
reducing material consumption. The Group also advocated
conservation of resources in office and encouraged employees to
develop good habits, conserve resources and energy to build a
green and comfortable office environment.

Details of the Group's environmental policies and performance can
be found in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Group dated 28 March 2023.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are its valuable assets.
Thus, the Group provides competitive remuneration packages to
attract and motivate its employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration packages of its employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, the Directors or senior management have maintained
good communication, exchanged feedback and shared business
updates with them when appropriate. During the year ended 31
December 2022, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its business partners.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 96 of this
annual report.

An interim dividend of 38 HK cents per ordinary share was paid by
the Group on 14 October 2022. The Board does not recommend a
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 19 to the
accompanying financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note
7 to the accompanying financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 17 to the accompanying financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company'’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2022 is set
out in note 39 to the accompanying financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 2 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting on 7 April 2014 (the
"Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to the Group. All directors, employees, suppliers
of goods or services, customers, persons or entities that provide
research, development or other technological support to the Group,
shareholders of any member of the Group, advisers or consultants of
the Group and any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business
alliance or other business arrangement and growth of the Group are
eligible to participate in the Share Option Scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commencing on the Adoption Date with a remaining life of
approximately one year.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 88,468,117 Shares, representing 10%
of the Shares in issue on the Adoption Date and 9.64% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report respectively (the
“General Scheme Limit"). The Company may renew the General
Scheme Limit with shareholders’ approval provided that each such
renewal may not exceed 10% of the Shares in the Company in issue
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

As at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and the date of this report,
the number of Shares available for grant under the Share Option
Scheme was 81,968,117 Shares, representing approximately 8.36% of
the Shares in issue as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
adopted by the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-months period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “Individual Limit").

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal consideration
of HKS1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence on a day after the date upon which the offer for the
grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later than
10 years from the date of grant of the option, subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of
options to a grantee, there is no minimum period required under
the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can
be exercised.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer
of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme as to the fair value of
the share options granted are disclosed in note 17 to the financial
statements. The fair values of share options calculated using the
binomial model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due
to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of
assumptions of the expected future performance input to the
model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself. The fair
value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables used may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Movements of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022 are summarised
as follows and details of which are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements:

BIRE )
REBEEZE-_—_F+_A=+—HLEFE IR
BEREFSREZEREZEH 2B W
T HFEHNGATERRMF 18

Number of share options
BRERA
Weighted
average
Closing price closing price
per Share Outstanding Outstanding ~ immediately
immediately asat Lapsed Cancelled asat before the
before the  Exercise price 1 January during during 31 December date(s) of
List of grantees Date of grant (Note) Exercise period date of grant per share 2022 the year the year 2022 exercise
RZBzzf RZBZZE
RERLAAN -A-H TZAZT-B REORARA
ARARE BB fit:d ZERUTE  SRORE E3inid REAGE  RERKR  REREH AT NETHUHE
HKS HKS HKS$
B B B
Related entity participant
BERRsHZ
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai 23 March 2015 1 January 2016 to 22 March 2025 827 870 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
FFEEE “3-1%Zf-1=R “R-NF-A-RE
S by
23 March 2015 1 January 2017 to 22 March 2025 827 870 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
S s b g ZE-tE-f-HF
ZRZRFZACTCR
23 March 2015 1 January 2018 to 22 March 2025 827 870 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 -
ZE-RESACTEE Z3-\F-f-EE
S by
28 December 2015 1 January 2020 to 27 December 2025 584 570 200,000 - - 200,000 -
ZE-EFfCAZTAR ZZIRE-A-EE
TECRETIACTHR
28 December 2015 1 January 2021 to 27 December 2025 584 570 300,000 - - 300,000 -
ZZ-REFZAZTAR
TECRETIACTHR
Total 3,500,000 - - 3500000
&t
Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until Bt BREZEBRHAEREBHEEZ/TE M
the commencement of the exercise period. WBARIE -
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this report were:

Mr. Hong Tianzhu

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang

Mr. Tang Daoping

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai (resignation effective on 31 March 2022)
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen*

Professor Cheng Longdi*

Professor Tao Xiaoming*

* Independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with Articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the Articles,
Mr. Tang Daoping and Professor Cheng Longdi will retire as
Directors by rotation and they, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and Mr. Tang
Daoping, all being executive Directors, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of one vyear
commencing from 21 November 2015, and will continue thereafter
for successive terms of one year until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other
expiring at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and
Professor Cheng Longdi, all being independent non-executive
directors, has been appointed for an initial term of one year
commencing from their respective dates of appointment as an INED
renewable automatically for a successive term of one year each
commencing from the next day after the expiry of the then current
term, unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

70  TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED XRIIEMEBEERAT

=
BE_F__F+_A=+t-RILFEREZR
AREEH  EEZEEFMT

AR E

S RE
AFERER_FT-__F=ZA=1+—H&MT)
TRESE

RERHIR

P8 B B~

* BIYERMTESE

R A5 4R Bl 55 108(A) & 108(B) I + /538 F % A Fiz
BRAREHERTERHRE  BEFAER
WHEEREERRRAF RS EEIRET-

EERZEN

MITEFHRMAL - RKFERENRSGEFE
EERBAEARFTURBEL A-_F—1
Ft—A=-t+—HEF FXR/H—F KHE
BREESEN—F BEERVHEAEERFER
HEREMERE P —TRs—a#E IR
Az EEBALIERILE -

TRESRLE BHARELEERHEHGRE
MIEHMITES  DRIEZ U —FVSES - &
BZERBIUIFRNTERTZ BHER - AIRHA
BZEHERRZREDEN—F BEEM
— IR FHERA SRR RERNRER S —
FELATIR=ZEAZEEBAEILESL -

PEEFEAR R REAEAME R R LR
BR - MABRREERERA AT REN
SNZEEERINSHARBER —FATARLE -



EEEREWR)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The service contracts entered into by the Company with each of the
Directors, which are currently in force and were in force during the
year ended 31 December 2022, contain indemnity provisions which
are permitted indemnity provisions under the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) subject to the limitations
specified in sections 468 and 469 thereof, for the benefit of the
executive Directors. Pursuant to such provisions, the Company shall
indemnify and hold harmless any Directors on demand from and
against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, and expenses,
including without limitation, any proceedings brought against such
Directors, arising from the performance of his duties pursuant to or
his appointment under the service contracts, so far as permitted by
law, except in any case where the matter in respect of which
indemnification is sought was caused by the default, neglect,
omission or fraud of the executive Directors. The Company has also
taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover to indemnify
the Directors for liabilities that may arise out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, no claims were made against the
Directors.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors confirmation of his independence and the
Company considers that each of them to be independent based on
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE HIGHEST
PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named basis during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 40 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Details of the five highest paid individuals during the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in note 29 to the accompanying
financial statements.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE HIGHEST
PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration of the
senior management by band is set out as follows:

EE - AUBESHZESE REERER
EEEBZME @)

UTAEz—2-_—F+_A=+—BILFE
SRERE FENEE ST

Number of
Remuneration bands senior management
E2 1 EREEEAY
Below RMB1,000,000 A #1,000,0007T LA TR 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,000,001 782 A R 2,000,0007C 1
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR #2 000,001 752 A R 3,000,0007C 1
RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000 AR #3000,001 702 A K% 4,000,0007C 0
RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000 AR 8400000172 A R 5,000,0007C 0
Above RMB5,000,000 AR #5,000,0007T A 0
REMUNERATION POLICY el B R

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to the legal framework, market condition and performance
of the Group and individual staff including the Directors. The
remuneration policy and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Group are reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee, which are contained in the paragraph
headed “Remuneration Committee” under the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group's retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 29 to the accompanying financial statements.

All of the Group's retirement benefit schemes are defined
contribution schemes. All contributions are vested immediately
when contributed and no contribution may be forfeited to reduce
the existing levels of contributions by the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "SHARE OPTIONS” above,
there was no equity-linked agreement entered into by the
Company, or which subsisted, during or at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2022.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management as
at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 58 to 61 of
this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFQ"), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

ESERFETHRAERERQFREM
MBOEE 2 R4 - RO REEE
ZREBRKR

NZZE-—F+-fA=+—H AREEKES
MEBTBRABRAARLRERAEEZE (E&
REBEDESNEEZFRBEEN ([F 5 M E
BAEDI]) EXVED) 2% fm  BERG R EEE
RIEERIEES R BAE G FE 35210 - LENA
REIATHEZECLMAZEZ AR - iR
B ETRBI TS A ZEST AR E AU EM SR
BHMARNA MR 2 EE KRBT

Name of Number of
Group member/ ordinary shares
Name of directors associated corporation (Note 1) Approximate
of the Company TEBREAT Nature of interest LTEREE percentage
ARmESHR BB EE A EEMEE (B&t1) OB
Mr. Hong Tianzhu the Company Interest of controlled 544,742,400 (L) 59.34%
AR AE ViN/NEE] corporation(s) (Note 2)
PREHDE AR (Hiit2)
the Company Beneficial owner 5,400,000 (L) 0.59%
PAN/NE] BEnEAA
550,142,400 (L) 59.93%
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang the Company Interest of controlled 219,900,000 (L) 23.95%
ROKFESLAE PiN/N) corporation(s) (Note 3)
PESDE AR (B73)
Mr. Tang Daoping the Company Beneficial owner 1,253,000 (L) 0.14%

b i

ENNT

BEmlEAA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

2. Among these 544,742,400 Shares, as to 392,842,400 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by New Green
Group Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Texhong Group Holdings Limited, a company wholly
owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu and as to 151,900,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade Partner
Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned as to 57.44% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu through New
Green Group Limited. Under the SFO, Mr. Hong Tianzhu is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares held by New Green Group Limited and
Trade Partner Investments Limited. Mr. Hong Tianzhu is a director of
Texhong Group Holdings Limited, New Green Group Limited and
Trade Partner Investments Limited.

3. Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and as to 151,900,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade
Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned as to 42.56% by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang through
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is a director of
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited and Trade Partner Investments
Limited.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2022, the
interests or short position of the persons other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

FERRERDARD - HERSL R
EERzZERRAE @)

(Continued)
Ordinary Shares of the Company: PIN/NE] o il g
Number of
ordinary shares
Name of the Nature of (Note 1) Approximate
substantial shareholders interests ZEREE percentage
TERRHE BB Rty (Htet1) BABEIt
New Green Group Limited Beneﬁcialewner 392,842,400 (L) 42.79%
En#EAA (Note 2)
o)
Interest of controlled corporation(s) 151,900,000 (L) 16.55%
Fir iz A A= (Note 3)
(H1a3)
544,742,400 (L) 59.34%
Trade Partner Investments Limited Beneficial owner 151,900,000 (L) 16.55%
EmiEAA (Note 3)
(KiaE3)
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited Beneﬁcialgwner 68,000,000 (L) 741%
BERBEA A (Note 4)
(Kiat4)
Interest of controlled corporation(s) 151,900,000 (L) 16.55%
BT A 2 (Note 3)
(K7aE3)
219,900,000 (L) 23.95%
Texhong Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation(s) 544,742,400 (L) 59.34%
Friz sk AR (Notes 2 and 3)
(Kti2k%3)
Ms. Ke Luping Interest of spouse 550,142,400 (L) 59.93%
& 2+ BB (Note 5)
(KiaEs)
Ms. Zhao Zhiyang Interest of spouse 219,900,000 (L) 23.95%
HEGLZ L BB (Note 6)
(Kiates)
Mr. Hui Ching Lau Interest of controlled corporation(s) 64,200,000 (L) 6.99%
TR AE PR A AR 2= (Note 7)
(Hiat7)
Event Star Limited Beneficial owner 64,200,000 (L) 6.99%
EmiEA A (Note 7)
(Hiaz7)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

2. These 392,842,400 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by New Green Group Limited, the entire issued share capital
of which is beneficially owned by Texhong Group Holdings Limited, a
company wholly beneficially owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the
SFO, each of Texhong Group Holdings Limited and Mr. Hong Tianzhu
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by New Green

Group Limited.

3. These 151,900,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned as to 57.44% by Mr. Hong
Tianzhu through New Green Group Limited and 42.56% by Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang through Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Under the
SFO, each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Texhong Group Holdings Limited,
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, New Green Group Limited and Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held

by Trade Partner Investments Limited.

4, These 68,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang. Under
the SFO, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is deemed to be interested in all the

Shares held by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited.

5. Ms. Ke Luping is the spouse of Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the SFO, Ms. Ke
Luping is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in

which Mr. Hong Tianzhu is interested.

6. Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and as to 151,900,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade
Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned as to 42.56% by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang through
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is the spouse
of Mr. Zhu Yongxiang. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is deemed to
be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Zhu

Yongxiang is interested.

7. These 64,200,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Event Star Limited, a company which is 100% controlled by
Mr. Hui Ching Lau. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Ching Lau is deemed to be

interested in all the Shares held by Event Star Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above,
at no time during or at the end of the year ended 31 December
2022 was the Company, its holding company or its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements which enabled the Directors (including
their spouses or children under 18 years of age), to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of Shares in or debenture of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set out in note
38 of the financial statements and in the section headed
"Connected transactions” in this annual report, no Director nor an
entity connected with such director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set out in note
38 of the financial statements and in the section headed
"Connected transactions” in this annual report, no contract of
significance has been entered into between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

In addition, no contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company which
were not contracts of service with any Director or any person
engaged in full time employment of the Company were entered
into or subsisted during the year.

BERODIUBEEIEZLZH

B it TRE R | — i EEN BE_FT_—
FHt_A=T-BLEFERIRZALERE
ARRATE - EERARSENB AR ESEET
YZHREF(BRERBIRB T N\HRZTF
20) VASE 38 W B 2K 2 m) S Ho AT fa) B B 8 A) 2 X
Mk EHERE 2 T ERES M -

EXEN

BAFRP B RRMEBREERS ] — &AM
HeBETRPAPEZI  BEERLEZ
EXARECERNEMNRAEEEBN S B
BEXBARRRHEE(AMER B BFTAT LR
FRIFAEMARBEENRS RHXAH
hHEBE ARG (TRERKER) -

BAFRP B RRMEBREERS ] — &AM
HBETRPAWEZIN  RRBHEAEM
B A B R AN R B s AR (AT Y A B 2 4R AR
ROEBR LWMARA) 2HBMBIZERAL -

ESh - ZA2x B) ol B AT AAT Y /B 2 ) 4 AR AR R =X
HALAAIB B8 2 R I B 7T 37 ) A8 2 &) 3l AR AR B
BRARERBZEREGH -

EEEEN

BMEARARREBREMNERESIEHZE
BRITRzAQ(LHREMNEFHLEARA
ZRBETEBIEZEMAL) BT LRFE -

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-—HF4#3% 77



EFEREWR)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the percentages of
purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 15.4%
— five largest suppliers combined 29.4%
Sales
— the largest customer 3.2%
— five largest customers combined 11.0%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers of the Group noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
conducted the following connected transactions which were
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the Listing
Rules:

Continuing connected transactions — Utilities , Wastewater
Treatment Services and Administrative Services Agreement

On 25 August 2021, Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited
(“Texhong Industrial Park”) and the Company entered into a master
supply agreement (the “Master Supply Agreement”) pursuant to
which Texhong Industrial Park agreed to provide and supply utilities,
wastewater treatment service and administrative services (the
“Services”) to the Group for its uses at the production facilities
operated by the Group at the Texhong Haiha Industrial Park (the
“Industrial Park”) with effect from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022.

Consideration for the Services were determined with operating costs
attributable to supply of the Service incurred by Texhong Industrial
Park, and/or additional factors where applicable, such as
government-prescribed prices (in the case of supply of power and
water), the prevailing market price of the resource (in the case of
supply of gas) and prevailing market prices of comparable services
(in the case of wastewater treatment services provided).

The annual cap for the Master Supply Agreement was set at RMB430
million (equivalent to approximately HK$517.2 million), which had
been determined by reference to the Group's estimated demand for
the Services. The actual cost of the Services under the Master
Supply Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB295 million (approximately HK$330 million).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transactions — Utilities , Wastewater
Treatment Services and Administrative Services Agreements
(Continued)

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 25 August
2021 for further details of the Master Supply Agreement.

Listing Rules implications

Texhong Industrial Park is a connected person of the Company by
virtue of its being an associate of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of
the Company and an executive Director and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, the
chief executive officer of the Group and an executive Director.
Therefore, the transactions contemplated under the Master Supply
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have, for the purpose of
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed and confirmed that the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions undertaken by
the Group were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (i) either on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditors of the Company, has issued a
letter to the Company to confirm the matters stated in Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transaction entered into subsequent to
31 December 2022 — Utilities Supply Framework Agreement

Since the completion of the Acquisition had been expected to take
place on or around 31 March 2023, in the meantime, to secure
continual supply of utilities by Texhong Industrial Park to the Group
for its operations at the Industrial Park and to ensure compliance
with Listing Rules for setting an annual cap for continuing
connected transactions, on 3 February 2023, Texhong Industrial Park
and the Company entered into an agreement (the “Utilities Supply
Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which Texhong Industrial Park
supplied utilities to the Group for its production facilities at the
Industrial Park with effect from 1 January 2023 up to the completion
date of the Asset Purchase Agreement.

The Directors had anticipated that the aggregate annual fee payable
by the Company to Texhong Industrial Park under the Utilities
Supply Framework Agreement for the year ending 31 December
2023 would be RMB26 million. The annual cap had been
determined by the Directors with reference to the Group’s estimated
demand for supply of utilities for production for the year ending 31
December 2023 assuming the completion under the Asset Purchase
Agreement shall take place on or around 31 March 2023.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transaction entered into subsequent to
31 December 2022 — Utilities Supply Framework Agreement
(Continued)

As disclosed in the section headed “Events after the Reporting
Period” in this report, the parties to the Asset Purchase Agreement
have scheduled for completion of the Acquisition to take place on
31 March 2023 and consequently, the continuing connected
transactions contemplated under the Utilities Supply Framework
Agreement will also cease immediately upon completion of the
Acquisition on 31 March 2023.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 3
February 2023 for further details of the Utilities Supply Framework
Agreement and Master Supply Agreement.

Continuing connected transaction entered into subsequent to
31 December 2022 — Wastewater Treatment and
Administrative Services Framework Agreement

As the Master Supply Agreement had expired on 31 December
2022, to ensure continual provision of wastewater treatment services
and administrative services by Texhong Industrial Park to the Group,
on 17 January 2023, Texhong Industrial Park and the Company
entered into a framework agreement (the “Wastewater Treatment
and Administrative Services Framework Agreement”) pursuant to
which Texhong Industrial Park shall provide wastewater treatment
services and administrative services to the Group with effect from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

The Directors anticipate that the aggregate annual fee payable by
the Company to Texhong Industrial Park under the Wastewater
Treatment and Administrative Services Framework Agreement for the
three years ending 31 December 2025 are RMB29 million, RMB33
million and RMB36 million, respectively. The annual caps were
determined by the Directors with reference to the Group's estimated
demand for wastewater treatment services and administrative
services for the three years ending 31 December 2025, which have
been assessed with reference to the estimated output from the
available production capacity of the Group’s production facilities at
the Industrial Park and the business development needs of the
Group, respectively.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17
January 2023 and the section headed “Connected Transactions” for
further details of the Wastewater Treatment and Administrative
Services Framework Agreement and Master Supply Agreement,
respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Connected transaction — acquisition of assets in Vietnam

On 7 November 2022, the Hong Kong Subsidiary entered the Asset
Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Hong Kong Subsidiary
conditionally agreed to purchase and Texhong Industrial Park
conditionally agreed to sell two parcels of industrial land located in
the Industrial Park with an aggregate site area of approximately
141,609.88 square meters and certain infrastructure erected thereon
(the "Assets”) at a maximum consideration of US$54.6 million. The
purpose of acquiring the Assets was mainly to allow the Group to
internally generate supply of certain utilities for use by members of
the Group, instead of paying monthly fee to Texhong Industrial Park
for procuring the same and thereby reduce the Group's reliance on
Texhong Industrial Park.

The consideration shall be paid in instalments and was determined
after arm’s length negotiation between the Group and Texhong
Industrial Park on normal commercial terms with reference to (i) the
aggregate valuation of the Assets as at 30 September 2022; and (ii)
the estimated costs of the Assets being constructed incurred or to
be incurred during 1 October 2022 and up to completion of the
acquisition of the Assets in accordance with the terms of the Asset
Purchase Agreement.

For the connected relationship between Texhong Industrial Park and
the Company, please refer to section headed “Connected
transaction — lease of land in Texhong Industrial Park” above.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7
November 2022 and 8 December 2022 for further details.

For subsequent developments in regards to the Asset Purchase
Agreement since 31 December 2022, please refer to the section
headed “Subsequent Events after the Reporting Period”.

Related-party transactions disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

There was no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries or,
associates and joint ventures by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

BERXS (#)

BERXS —WBEHMEEE
R-_ZE-_—F+—A+tH HENBAREL
BEEBEEHZ Bl a5MBAREKER
EWEMKIIXREAKERELEMIERL
H AR FE 49141,609.88 F R T#[& 2z T
THARERE P2 ATERE(ZEEE]) -
EaREAs40EFETL - WHZEEEZERN
FTERRTASEENPEES TRERAKAME
REBKERARER  MBARKITEERERE
BB RESERAK - B mmimd AEE K
BRI TERER -

REZ BN THAEERXT TXEE
R—REEERALATFERET  WE2F(0)Z
EEENE__FNA=TZ2BIHE: &
(WZEEEN_S-_—_F+ B REETK
BRIBEEEEERZ BRI BBEZSEEEE X
HEEEZ AR -

BRI TIXERERRR]ZHNESEHK
F2HLENEERS — HERTTIXEED
TH|—Ef o

EHEE—FSHE BRMARFTAEA-Z =
“HF+—AtHE-ZE-__F+-ANHZA
o

MBS —F+_-_A=1+—BHEEEHEE
WENERERR  B2EMERREE] -

REMBHmMRMIBRENEBR T HHEX L
MRABABER TEXHAFEHAERS ©
ARRERE ETRAUE AT ETEBOH
BT -

BEARKRERHEESE
AREREBE—ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHF
TESANELNEEWE QR SBEATME
BAFEE -

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=-—HF3% 81



EFEHREWR)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND FUTURE
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

There were no significant investments held during the year ended
31 December 2022, and the Company does not have any future plan
for material investments or capital assets as at the date of this
report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company under
the Listing Rules at any time during the financial year ended
31 December 2022.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 21 November 2004. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and
Professor Cheng Longdi. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The rights and duties of the Audit
Committee comply with the code provisions of the CG Code. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
Group's financial reporting process and internal control system and
providing advice and recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 19 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee comprises an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company, Mr. Hong Tianzhu and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Tao Xiaoming, Professor
Cheng Longdi and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen. The chairman of
the Nomination Committee is Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The Nomination
Committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line with
the code provisions of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice in accordance with the
Company'’s policy if considered necessary.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 21 November
2004. The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi. Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee has rights and duties consistent with
those set out in the code provisions of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee is principally responsible for formulating
the Group's policy and structure for all remunerations of the
Directors and senior management and providing advice and
recommendations to the Board.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Company has established the ESG Committee on 23 August
2021. The ESG Committee currently comprises four members,
namely, Mr. Tang Daoping (chairman), Prof. Tao Xiaoming, Prof.
Cheng Longdi and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen. Mr. Hui Tsz Wai
ceased to be a member on 31 March 2022. The ESG Committee is
mainly responsible for overseeing and reporting to the Board on
matters relating to ESG of the Group and ensuring compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements on ESG including corporate
governance principles applicable to the Company.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made
charitable contributions amounted to approximately RMB4,765,000.

LITIGATION

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is engaged in any
litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or
claim of material importance was known to the Directors to be
pending or threatened against the Company or any of its
subsidiaries that would have a material adverse effect on the
financial condition or results of operation of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

i
pwc

To the Shareholders of Texhong International Group Limited
(formerly known as Texhong Textile Group Limited)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Texhong International
Group Limited (formerly known as Texhong Textile Group Limited)
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out
on pages 94 to 228, comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

i Pricewaterhouse Cooper, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

Impairment provision for inventories

B Fopk K 1B
BB A B R B X E AR A T
BARR : FRHE
7 A

Key Audit Matter
BEREREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMEERTEREBREXRSENS £

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

WARR AmEE

Refer to Note 2.29 and Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements

LB BIERN F229R M aE5

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised RMB23,805,354,000 of revenue from sales of
goods.

RBE-ZFT_—_S+-A=+—HILFE B5HE
MR mEE WA R AR 23,805354,0007T

Revenue is recognised when control of the underlying
products has been transferred to the customers.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped
to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customer, and the
customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract.

WARHEBERNZEHEEBETEFPEER - BE
miEEE T RERRIKBAEEBRER
F - ARFEREHEAREMER - HIBERN -

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s key
controls in respect of the Group's process of recognition of
sales transactions, including contract approval, recording of
sales based on contract terms, and reconciliations with cash
receipts and customers’ goods receipt notes.

B EEBERHERFH 22 - BRESOME - L%
RENGRZHEREWRE REFEmBIREEE - 12
B A RREEIRE 2 R -

We tested the revenue derived from different customers and
different locations for selected samples by examination of
the relevant supporting documents, including sales orders,
invoices, goods delivery notes and customer’s receipt notes
to revenue recorded.

FRREHEE  BENDCRBRAZZEERETFK
BEREBEAXM  RARSTENERNIATRES
Ko A7) 3 B EE A WA o

We confirmed selected trade receivables balances as at the
balance sheet date. The items tested were selected on a
sample basis by considering the amount, nature and
characteristics of the customers.

HMABCHKENRNEERGERANERE ZFIBE °
AHBEESEREEFMEE HERERGHMEERE -
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Key Audit Matter
HREZEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMEELTEEERERSEENS X

We focused on this area due to the huge volume of sales
transactions generated in various locations and from
decentralised customers, and thus significant audit time
and resources were devoted in this area, in particular
relating to the occurrence, accuracy and timely
recording of such transactions.

HRETRBERDENTFEEREHERS @ &
BMPZFEWTE IRAAEEFZREEE Rt
R LHREABARISMNEL - ERERKLE
CEAEANEE -

Impairment provision for inventories

FERERE

Refer to Note 2.16, Note 4.1 and Note 13 to the
conso//daz‘ed financial statements.

Bltr e B8R &1 at2.16 ~ Bfata1 RHTaE13 -

:":'E
AR Z /

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's balance of gross
inventories was RMB8,194,991,000, against which a
provision of RMB604,886,000 was made.

AT —F+-A=1+—08 BEEENBGFEL
A AR 8,194,991,0007T ﬁﬁﬁitkf’ﬁm}\ﬁﬁ%
604,886,000 7T FY 1% ©

3

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

FEUARAT#FRFENBEETER - A SR )FE
RBBEBBEPGTEE (HRMAEFT TR R
HEPT R EETAR) -

88

We tested sales transactions that took place shortly before
and after the balance sheet date to assess whether revenue
was recognised in the correct reporting periods.

BAAAEERGBRANRIABENHER S - UTHE
WAREFE EHEH HREHAER -

We tested post balance sheet date sales return, on a sample
basis, by tracing to the relevant supporting documents of
the original sales and the sales return.

SRR Wtk

HPVE BB RIA SHE oo S IR KA AR
AAEERERAMRNOEEERE -

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s
revenue recognition in relation to sales of goods was
supported by the relevant evidence that we have gathered.

EREZZF  BMEREEEENEREENRARER
SRR EREER R -

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s key
controls and assessment process of impairment provision
for inventories and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
managemem bias or fraud.

HrER qu;%quTEEEIEEEI’J%_{F“& LAt [E] A &L R = Y
KE - PSRN - T HAE - 2B R EE R E R B R
FFHBURRE - AIRER  RPA R EEIRE N R E &
E R HI TR A2 - WAT (A E R wmey E A =g o

We discussed with management and evaluated the
appropriateness of the method and assumptions used in

impairment provision for inventories.
ﬁdFEJEEﬁi EEJEL?TET W ERFE T B RE B S P E R Y

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment to
assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation

process.
ﬁgéﬁ%i@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% ABEEREE AT ARED
%
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Key Audit Matter
HRBEREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMEELTEEERERSEENS X

The estimation of impairment provision for inventories
involves significant management judgements based on
the consideration of key factors such as aging profile,
prior experiences, estimated future selling prices and
sellmg expenses.

FERERELE SR ERERBEARRAZZSHEH
BB R I - fIRBREIAN - BAERRR - FRETRK
EEBRHEER -

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances
and the judgement exercised by management in
determining the net realisable value of the inventories.

BAEENUL 8 - EENZFEHRNABEALEE
BEEEGFENAIZRFER S R -

We tested the aging profile of inventories items on a sample
basis by checking to relevant documents including goods
receipt notes.

BABBZHAEN (RERESR)  RAREEHER
18 B R RRER AR A1 TORIER, ©

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of
the provision for inventories.

ZFIEREF SR ETEESOE LA BB -

We compared the selling price used in the determination of
net realisable value to actual selling price subsequent to
year end. We assessed the reasonableness and the accuracy
of the estimated selling expenses, estimated costs to
completion and other costs necessary to make the sale by
comparing with the historical selling expenses, costs to
completion, and other costs necessary to make the sale for
the similar inventories.

HAERBUNET AT 2R FENEBEFRARNERE
B - RO EFTHE R X - STREEET AR K (F H 3
EMHEHAAN G RN RERY AR RBLEEUFE
MBS HERX « TERAARIELHERFHEMAR

We observed the physical condition of inventories during
stocktake to identify if any inventories were damaged and
inquired management if appropriate inventories provision
has been made.

BPEFEREARBERFENERLR  UREFER
BHBREE  THAREEEREGEEHEENTEER -

Based on our audit procedures, we found the assumptions
adopted and judgement applied by management in the
determination of impairment provision for inventories was
supported by the relevant ewdence that we have gathered.

RERMNETIZF  RAER  EREEBEFERE
%ﬁé‘ﬁ;ﬁ%?ﬁﬂ’ﬂ?“&ﬁﬂ% B HI T 15 8 T PIR ER AT 1S B0 A8

AT e
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Dou Wang, Angel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31.December 2022
RZEB_G+H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt AR¥T T AREFr
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Freehold land K AERE L 6 188,492 163,957
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKRE 7 9,606,778 9,229,119
Investment properties wEYE 8 268,891 —
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 9 1,581,210 1,227,190
Intangible assets BLEE 70 65,417 69,078
Long-term receivables £ HA e AR 3K 15 146,000 292,000
Investments accounted for using the LARERIEABRZIEE
equity method 117 360,040 320,938
Deferred income tax assets BEFSHEE 24 305,617 91,983
12,522,445 11,394,265
Current assets REEE
Inventories 5E 13 7,590,105 7,151,667
Properties under development ERPYE 13 340,796 235,113
Trade and bills receivables and financial EWE 5 REBFIAR
assets at fair value through other BRATEFERR
comprehensive income BH:tAHEMEEA
Wk e mEE 14 1,743,761 2,019,660
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JBff K 1H « 2 & &
HAth FE U BR 3K 15 1,274,771 890,817
Derivative financial instruments MESMITEA 22 99,353 55,653
Pledged bank deposits BEMRITFER 16 111,647 190,302
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 16 2,468,421 2,505,407
13,628,854 13,048,619
Total assets EEHAE 26,151,299 24,442,884
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of AAREE AELER
the Company
Share capital: nominal value A - mE 17 96,958 96,958
Share premium &0 = B 17 462,059 462,059
Other reserves H i f# s 79 999,848 907,534
Retained earnings RE i F 79 7,942,758 8,571,719
9,501,623 10,038,270
Non-controlling interests IE 15 | R 2 599,853 562,682
Total equity ERER 10,101,476 10,600,952
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As at December 2022
RZEBE-_—F+-A=+—H

2022 2021
—=E:__ —E-—4F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt AR¥TF T AR T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings BE 21 3,388,214 3,383,377
Lease liabilities HESRE 9 258,695 82,627
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMGHAE 24 236,030 286,482
3,882,939 3,752,486
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables ENE S REERIE 25 4,597,463 4,576,337
Contract liabilities AHAaE 659,458 361,634
Accruals and other payables TEIR B A & H e
BRI 26 884,143 903,579
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAasE 123,880 188,766
Borrowings BE 21 5,155,158 3,831,662
Supply chain financing e & 20 549,041 —
Derivative financial instruments PTAESmIA 22 142,054 165,975
Lease liabilities HEERE 9 55,687 31,622
Long-term payables due within 1 year 1FEAEIH 2 REAELS
BRI 23 — 29,871
12,166,884 10,089,446
Total liabilities BEHAE 16,049,823 13,841,932
Total equity and liabilities HEzRAE 26,151,299 24,442,884

The notes on pages 102 to 228 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 228 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2023 and the
consolidated balance sheet was signed on its behalf by:

Hong Tianzhu Zhu Yongxiang
Director Director

REIE2EZHMERBEFHFEPBEHRER

o

— %5 -

MREBUENSE AU RERER_E_=F
—AZt+/\REESFgHE YHTHESERK
REECREHPNSEAEERAGER

HRB KRR
EF EF

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-—HF3 05



SAKEE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—HLFE

2022 2021
—=E=-= T4
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt AR¥ T AREFr
Revenue WA 5 23,805,354 26,521,193
Cost of sales 85 & AR A 28 (21,049,732) (20,669,222)
Gross profit ER 2,755,622 5,851,971
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEMAX 28 (886,380) (956,333)
General and administrative expenses — RITERAX 28 (1,316,058) (1,451,697)
Net accrual of impairment losses on TEREMEE
financial assets VERIEY =it (39,615) (30,873)
Other income H A 27 123,052 95,543
Other losses — net HhEE — F58 27 (34,760) (85,414)
Operating profit KEER 601,861 3,423,197
Finance income R TN 30 37,743 44,589
Finance costs MEER 30 (504,604) (167,252)
Finance costs — net HEBHE — F5 30 (466,861) (122,663)
Share of profits less losses of investments DG AEEARZ
accounted for using the equity method & m MNRE 1R 71 36,159 39617
Profit before income tax BRATS B A 171,159 3,340,151
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe, (FAx) 32 30,027 (598,535)
Profit for the year FERF 201,186 2,741,616
Attributable to: BT &S EAM :
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIEZEWN 156,808 2,685,170
Non-controlling interests FEE 1 e 2 44,378 56,446
201,186 2,741,616
Earnings per share for profit ARFEE AEMEEF
attributable to owners ZERER
of the Company
— Basic earnings per share — BREKXEF 33 RMB A R#0.17 RMBA R#2.93
— Diluted earnings per share — BREER 33 RMB A R #0.17 RMBA R #5293
The notes on pages 102 to 228 are an integral part of these RE102E28B 2T AL EHREAUBRERZ
consolidated financial statements. — =5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt AR FT ARKFr
Profit for the year FEEF 201,186 2,741,616
Other comprehensive losses Hih2HEEE
Items that will not be reclassified BT 8EH A HEE
subsequently to profit or loss Bm o EEH
Revaluation of buildings BFEM
— Gross — AR 8,198 —
— Deferred income tax — RIEFTISHL 23,662 —
Item that may be reclassified subsequently — H{E A& EF »1HZE
to profit or loss BmoEHEH
Currency translation differences B G =R 79 52,626 (1,838)
Total comprehensive income for FEXHRZASE
the year 285,672 2,739,778
Attributable to: AUTEFHERN:
Owners of the Company RABER A 229,789 2,683,332
Non-controlling interests FE 128 I 14 2 55,883 56,446
285,672 2,739,778
The notes on pages 102 to 228 are an integral part of these MRE102E2288 2 s A& BMgmEk .z
consolidated financial statements. — &5 e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AREHEE AER
Non-
Share Other Retained  controlling Total
Share capital premium reserves earnings interests equity
JEE L
BA  ROEE HtREE  RBEN Bn  ERAE
Note RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
Wit AREFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-ZE--%-F—HMN
o303 96,709 433,777 942,310 6,390,471 609,471 8,472,738
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year FEHEF — — — 2685170 56446 2,741,616
Other comprehensive income: Hir2E e
Currency translation differences ERGBESR 79 — — (1,838) — — (1,838)
Total comprehensive income FEXENELE
for the year — — (1,838) 2,685,170 56,446 2,739,778
Transactions with owners BREFEAZRS
Shares issued upon exercise of share TEBERERETRR
options 249 28,282 (9,284) — — 19,247
Capital withdrawn by non-controlling ~ H{B 2 AIZHERRREE
shareholders of subsidiaries — — — — (5,478) (5/478)
Dividend paid for non-controlling ) FEPE I M AR T 2
interests Bs = = = = (87,191) (87,191)
Dividends relating to 2020 ZZITFEZRE 4 = = = (150,461) — (150461)
Dividends relating to 2021 T -F7kE £ = = = (377,115) = (377,115)
Transfer to statutory reserves BRTETERE 79 — — 105,679 (105,679) — —
Transfer from revaluation reserve to RELRHEERERE
retained eamings pisk il
— Gross — 5 — — (11,279) 11,279 = =
— Deferred income tax — BERER = — 2,575 2,575) — —
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT = = (120,629) 120,629 (10,566) (10,566)
Total transactions with owners HREREAZRSBHE 249 28282 (32938) (503922 (103235  (611564)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-B--%+=A
Zt+-AN&ES 96,958 462,059 907,53 8571719 562682 10,600952
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-ZT-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATEEAERS
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserves earnings interests Total equity
M
BA  ReEE HtEE KRR iz ERdE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i A\ EE T ARETFT ARETT ARETT AEEFT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZBZZF-F—-HH
o303 96,958 462,059 907,534 8,571,719 562,682 10,600,952
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year FERA - — — 156,808 44,378 201,186
Other comprehensive income: Hir2mEkas
Surplus on revaluation of buildings BEMEFRBH
— Gross — 5 — — 8,198 - — 8,198
— Deferred income tax — REREH - - 23,662 - - 23,662
Currency translation differences EEHBRER 19 — — 0,121 — 11,505 52,626
Total comprehensive income FEXHEUEEE
for the year — - 72,981 156,808 55,883 285,672
Transactions with owners BREREAZRS
Capital withdrawn by non-controlling ~ HIB AR ERBEHE
shareholders of subsidiaries — — - - (3,476) (3,476)
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ HIBARIZHERRRTE
shareholders of subsidiaries - - — - 30,273 30,273
Dividend paid for non-controlling IR R R 2
interests KBS - - — - (45,509)  (45,509)
Dividends relating to 2021 2 -F27RE 4 - - —  (447492) —  (447,492)
Dividends relating to 2022 T F7RE EZ — — — (318,944 —  (318,944)
Transfer to statutory reserves BERTETRE 79 - - 27,137 (27,137) - —
Transfer from revaluation reserve to RERREERERE
retained eamings pisk il
— Gross — % - - (10,097) 10,097 — —
— Deferred income tax — REMBHR - - 2,293 (2,293) - -
Total transactions with owners HREFEAZRZAE - — 19,333 (785,769)  (18,712)  (785,148)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-Z--%+-AH
=+ -HHEeH 96,958 462,059 999,848 7,942,758 599,853 10,101,476

The notes on pages 102 to 228 are an integral

consolidated financial statements.

part of these
— &5 o
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EERSRER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
—E-— = —
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt AR FT AREFr
Cash flows from operating activities REKETHNRE
RE
Cash generated from operations CEEE RS 35(a) 1,935,434 2,842,501
Interest received 2 F S 37,743 44,589
Income tax paid BT ETE R (353,050) (445,486)
Net cash generated from operating activities AL & /EENFTI1SI & F58 1,620,127 2,441,604
Cash flows from investing activities RERETENES
RE
Net proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB QRS RIE
R 15 186,764 108,734
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B E ¥  BE LR E (1,833,211) (2,340,133)
Purchases of land use rights HEE T R (244,589) (63,738)
Purchase of freehold land BEKAERETH (9,147) —
Proceeds from sale of property under HEERPMEMS
development FIH — 934
Proceeds from sale of property, plant HEME  BER
and equipment REFTE5RIA 35@) 235,839 56,877
Inflow of cash to acquire subsidiaries, WM B A RIM IR &
net of cash acquired A MR B
Be — 7,854
Loans to related parties T EET BN 38(a) (91,433) —
Net proceeds/(payment on) from CRMIALEME
settlement of financial instruments (ZAF) k3B 558 16,559 (133,302)
Decrease in pledge of bank deposits EEARITFFR LD 16 13,234 —
Net cash used in investing activities WERDEER 2558 (1,725,984) (2362,774)

100 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED RIIEIM&EBER AR



HeElaRER (|

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_T-_—_F+-A=+—BILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E=-—fF
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt AR¥TF T ARKFr
Cash flows from financing activities REBETHNRE
RE
Proceeds from shares issued under the R E B IS st &l
employee share option scheme BT 2 RN FT1SERIE — 19,247
Proceeds from borrowings EE S RIAE 35(c) 8,699,249 6,493,800
Repayments of borrowings EEEE 35(c) (7,563,663) (6,083,040)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRzAE I 35(c) (60,092) (56,455)
Payment of long-term payables due SRR —F A EH
within 1 year RHIFE R 50IR 35(c) (30,726) —
Dividends paid EfRE (766,436) (527,576)
Capital injection from non-controlling (OEWNGIE S 2 i &
shareholders of subsidiaries A& 30,273 —
Capital withdrawn by non-controlling (OEWNGIE S 2 i &
shareholders of subsidiaries BE (3,476) (5,478)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests [ 3F¥2 A ZS IR 2
¥ (45,509) (87,191)
Interest paid ERFE (294,274) (210,343)
Loan from a minority shareholder RE—BLBERRZ
B% 10,000 —
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank BIHRITER
deposits (38 m),/m A 16 (6,010) 200,000
Net cash used in financing activities BB R SFE (30,664) (257,036)
Net decrease in cash and REeERASEEDRD
cash equivalents HEE (136,521) (178,206)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FzRe kRS
of the year B 16 2,505,407 2,683,613
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fEREE) 25 99,535 —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRZAERBRESE
the year (=R 76 2,468,421 2,505,407
The notes on pages 102 to 228 are an integral part of these REBI102E228B 2 M AL SR E6MBHE 2
consolidated financial statements. —&#B5H e
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e MEBERMmE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_FF-RA=1+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Texhong International Group Limited (formerly known as
Texhong Textile Group Limited) (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sales of yarns, grey fabrics, non-woven
fabrics and garment fabrics as well as garments.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
12 July 2004 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company'’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 9 December 2004.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Chinese Renminbi ("‘RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company
on 28 March 2023.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of buildings, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.
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e MEERMNE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-_—_F+-A=+—HLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRSs adopted by the Group
in 2022

A number of amendments to existing standards
became applicable for the current reporting
period. These amendments to existing standards
did not give rise to any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements. These amendments
are set out below:

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before intended use — Amendments to
HKAS 16

(i)  Reference to the Conceptual Framework —
Amendments to HKFRS 3

(iii)  Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract — Amendments to HKAS 37

(iv)  Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

The following new standard and amendments
to HKFRSs have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning on

1 January 2022 and have not been early
adopted by the Group:

(i) HKFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023.

(i) Amendments to HKAS 1 regarding
classification of liabilities as current or
non-current, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
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78 M= (1R)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_HFH-A=t+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

(iiff)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 regarding disclosure of
Accounting Policies, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

Amendments to HKAS 8 regarding
definition of Accounting Estimates,
effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023.

Amendments to HKAS 12 regarding
deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction,
effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
regarding sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or
joint venture, originally intended to be
effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. The effective date
has now been deferred/removed.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
regarding presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 regarding Lease
liability in a sale and leaseback, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024.

Amendments to AG 5 Merger Accounting
for Common Control Combinations,
effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023.
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e MEERMNE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group's accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of change in
equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting.

2. EESTHRBE®
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78 M= (1R)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method, after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive
income (“OCl") of the investee in OCl. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.
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e MEERMNE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Equity method (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in an associate is impaired. If this is
the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of net losses of associates’ in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recorded in
equity.

2. EESTHRBE®
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78 M= (1R)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_HFH-A=t+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

23

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries (Continued)

(f) Disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree, the equity interests
issued by the Group, fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement
and fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s net
identifiable assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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e MEERMNE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or
a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill
(Note 2.10). If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held
interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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2.

FH=A=+—HILFR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

24

2.5

2.6

Separate financial statements (Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwill.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
also required according to Note 2.11.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Committee of
Executive Directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance income and costs — net’. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘other losses — net’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group's entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated
income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2.

FH=A=+—HILFR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part
of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the companies in the Group, is classified as
investment property. Investment property also includes
property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs (Note 2.24). Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

An item of investment properties is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits is
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Buildings are shown at fair value, based on periodic, but
at least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset. All other property, plant and
equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation
of buildings are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset are charged to other comprehensive
income; all other decreases are charged to the
consolidated income statement. Each vyear the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount of the asset charged to the
consolidated income statement and depreciation based
on the asset's original cost is transferred from
‘revaluation reserve’ to ‘retained earnings'.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs or revalued amounts to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 1510 40 years  2.5% — 6.7%
— Machinery and equipment 6 to 15 years  6.7% — 16.7%
— Furniture and fixtures 3to 10 years  10.0% — 33.3%
— Motor vehicles 5to7years  143% — 20.0%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other losses — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained earnings.

Construction-in-progress, representing buildings on
which construction work has not been completed and
machinery pending installation, is stated at cost, which
includes construction expenditures incurred, cost of
machinery, interest capitalised and other direct costs
capitalised during the construction and installation
period, less accumulated impairment losses, if any. No
depreciation is provided in respect of
construction-in-progress until the construction and
installation work is completed and put into use. On
completion, construction-in-progress is transferred to
appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment.

Freehold land

Freehold land is the land owned for an unlimited time.
Freehold land is not amortized, which located in
Cambodia, Turkey, Mexico, Uruguay and Nicaragua.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised
but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units
are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a
limited useful life using the straight-line method
over the following periods:

Customer relationship 15 years

2.

ERSTBERMER)

2.10 EFEE

(a)

(b)

(c)

BE
BRI 2 3FT AT 8 o MK
N NGNS PN 37
BE-RAEBITTHE ESE
FETREMNRA HEFS
IR KB B BN A e
IR B ERETTERTRE
A, 3 AR AR = R AT R
BERXIR - HEEEHOK
aMEEERELEERA
BRI EREE -

HEERIEERCELE
Sz AEITRE R - B D
AR EELEDN
EGaMTEENRSES
BURREEEEMARE
h-REELBEMNRBRTE
EEMAERTRASEER
MMRERAENRERER

(BN B0) FERR

EFR%
EEXEBEHTBANEFH
FRBEHN A TEER -
EFBENAREHAR -
BE 12 12 B A OB R TR 8 3 KR
BEEYIK-

BELEREE
REBERERER T I
B EEREAIERFHR
BIVBET AN :

EERIE 154

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=-—#4#%#% 115



78 M= (1R)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE—_ZT_—_

2.

FH=A=+—HILFR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets
2.12.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (OCl) or through profit or loss),
and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OClI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

2.12.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

2.12.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
2.12.3 Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
2.12.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in
the period in which it arises.
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78 M= (1R)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_HFH-A=t+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESTEHRBE#R)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued) 212 SRMEE (&)

2.12.3 Measurement (Continued) 2123 5T E (&)
Equity instruments RATA
The Group subsequently measures all equity REBREEEMARAKRE
investments at fair value. Where the Group's EAVFEFE - EXAEETE
management has elected to present fair value BEEDSEENAMEZE KR
gains and losses on equity investments in OCl, 2R AEEN A FERE
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair rEE AFER=EREBE
value gains and losses to profit or loss following R ILFERIEE R TS ERN
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends DEEEZ ZERENR
from such investments continue to be recognised B 7N 5 (B 4R B GR IE HY) A
in profit or loss as other income when the BYREENERERAE
Group's right to receive payments is established. N
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at EAFEFABENS/RE
FVPL are recognised in other losses in the EQATEEHRIEZXER
statement of profit or loss as applicable. REMEEBGRERBR)
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment EAFEFAEMEZARES
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI FFERRAIRERNREEE
are not reported separately from other changes in (RREEERER) TEEQ
fair value. FEEMEB D HHIR -

2.12.4 Impairment 2.12.4 B E
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis B YA B H R ER R
the expected credit losses associated with its PIBR MR A FEFAREMmE
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and HmlmcERTANTESRE
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied EEEETRIE R T
depends on whether there has been a significant FERBRET EBRREE
increase in credit risk. [EBe = E AR N ©
For trade receivables, the Group applies the HEWEGREMES A&
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which EERAEBMEHREERZFE
requires expected lifetime losses to be WRATHELERE EFRE
recognised from initial recognition of the ke HEHEEABR B RE
receivables, see Note 14 for further details. REWGRIERER £ 25

IBRESBME 14
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e MEERMNE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising
the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designed as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of item being hedged. Derivative
instruments held by the Group do not qualify for hedge
accounting and are accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of these derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other losses — net'.

Government grants/subsidies

Grants/subsidies from government authorities are
recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidies will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants/subsidies relating to assets are
presented in the balance sheet by deducting the grant
in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.

Government grants/subsidies relating to compensation
for relocation are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period when
the relocation takes place.
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78 M= (1R)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE—_ZT_—_

2.

FH=A=+—HILFR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
takes into account the price ultimately expected to be
realised, less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises cost of land
use rights, construction costs, borrowing costs and
professional fees incurred during the development
period. On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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e MEERMNE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Supply chain financing

Supply chain financing is referred to as reverse
factoring. It involves three parties: a supplier who
supplies goods; the Group; and a bank or financier. The
bank offers to facilitate payments of the trade payables
arising between the Group and supplier, and it might
provide finance so that the supplier can be paid earlier
(and/or the buyer can pay later) than the normal due
date of the trade payables.

The Group applies HKFRS 9's derecognition
requirements when assessing whether and when to
derecognise the trade payable. The Group derecognises
trade payables, recognises a new financial liability at fair
value, and recognises a gain or loss based on the
difference between the carrying amount of the original
financial liability and the fair value of the new financial
liability based on management assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE—_ZT_—_

2.

FH=A=+—HILFR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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e MEERMNE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill and deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group the
ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from associate’s undistributed
profits is not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

2.26 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Pension obligations (defined contribution
plans)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations (defined contribution
plans) (Continued)

The Group also operates the mandatory
provident fund scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) for its
Hong Kong staff. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme
administered by independent trustees. Each of
the employer and the employee has to
contribute an amount equal to 5% of the
relevant income of the employee to the MPF
Scheme, subject to a cap of HKS$1,500.
Contributions from the employer are vested in
the employees as soon as they are paid to
relevant MPF Scheme but all benefits derived
from the mandatory contributions must be
preserved until the employee reaches the
retirement age of 65 subject to a few exceptions.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a provision for bonuses
where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or hold shares for a specified
period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the
purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant
date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (and share premium).
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28

2.29

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells yarns, grey fabrics,
non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics as well as
garments in the market. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specific location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and the customer has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract. For domestic sales, revenue is recognised
when the products are shipped to the agreed delivery
locations in accordance with the contracts, and
customers confirm the acceptance. For oversea sales,
revenue is recognised when the products pass the
ship’s rail in the port of shipment. The Group enters
into sales contracts with customers for each transaction.
Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the
price specified in the contract. The Group does not
expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods to the
customer and payment by the customer exceeds one
year. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.29

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sales of goods (Continued)

Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.
No significant financing component is deemed present
as the sales are made with a credit term of less than 90
days to its customers in Mainland China and 120 days
to its customers in other countries, which is consistent
with market practice.

A receivable is usually recognised when revenue
recognised as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. The Group's
contract liabilities mainly comprise advanced payment
and 5% deposits from certain of their customers before
delivery of goods.

Arrangements that involve shipment of goods to a
customer might include promises related to the
shipping service that give rise to a performance
obligation. Management should assess the explicit
shipping terms to determine when control of the
goods transfers to the customer and whether the
shipping services are a separate performance
obligation.

Shipping and handling services should be considered a
separate performance obligation if control of the goods
transfers to the customer before shipment, but the
entity has promised to ship the goods (or arrange for
the goods to be shipped) for overseas sales. Shipping is
not a promised service to the customer as control of a
good does not transfer to the customer before
shipment for domestic sales. This is because shipping is
a fulfilment activity as the costs are incurred as part of
transferring the goods to the customer.

Management assess the Group is the principal for the
shipping service and it is a separate performance
obligation for overseas sales. The gross amount of
revenue allocated to the shipping service is recorded.
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e MEERMNE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-_—_F+-A=+—HLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Interest income

2.31

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of other income. Interest income is presented as
finance income where it is earned from financial assets
that are held for cash management purposes. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices.

The Group leases buildings, warehouses and
equipments. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods and have no extension or termination
options. Rental contracts for buildings and warehouses
are typically made for 2 to 24 years. Rental contracts for
equipment and others are typically made for 2 to 10
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable.
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78 M= (1R)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_HFH-A=t+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.31 Leases (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received

uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
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e MEERMNE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.31 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of lease liability and
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While
the Group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held
by the Group.

All land in the Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual land ownership right exists. The Group
acquired the right to use certain land. The premiums
paid for such right are treated as prepayment for
operating lease and recorded at cost as right-of-use
assets, which are depreciated over the lease periods
using the straight-line method.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.
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78 M= (1R)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.32 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.33 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company's
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, when appropriate.
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e MEERMNE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to hedge certain of its risk
exposures on changes in interest rates.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in China,
Southeast Asia and Americas. Most of the
Group's transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, HKD or United
States dollars ("USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk primarily through
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables, and borrowings
that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the
relevant group entity. It manages its
foreign exchange risks by performing
regular review and monitoring of its
foreign exchange exposures and purchase
of forward foreign exchange contracts
(Note 22). In 2022, the Group has entered
into the forward foreign exchange
contracts and cross currency swap
contracts to manage the expected
fluctuation of RMB against USD or HKD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2022, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 9.2% (2021:
2.3%) against USD with all other variable
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB281,135,000 (2021:
RMB65,944,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of the net foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of USD-denominated
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables, and borrowings.

At 31 December 2022, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 9.3% (2021:
2.9%) against HKD with all other variable
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB247,307,000 (2021:
RMB84,925,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of the net foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of HKD-denominated
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables, and borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to raw material price
risk because of the volatility of the price of
main raw material, cotton. The
management of the Group analyze the
trend of raw material price on weekly basis.
To manage its price risk, the Group has
entered into the cotton future contracts
and cotton option contracts and decides
to enter long term contracts to mitigate
the impact from raw material price
changes, and diversify the suppliers if they
expect significant fluctuation in the future.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for pledged bank deposits, cash at
bank (Note 16) and long-term receivables
(Note 15), the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets. The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. Management does not anticipate
significant impact resulted from changes in
interest rates on interest bearing assets.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at
variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. As at 31 December
2022, approximately 53% (2021: 29%) of
the Group's borrowings were at fixed rates
and the remaining were at floating rates
before entering into cross currency swap
contracts. As at 31 December 2022,
approximately 70% (2021: 67%) of the
Group's borrowings were at fixed rates and
the remaining were at floating rates after
entering into cross currency swap
contracts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—_F+-A=1+—RHILEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

The Group manages certain of its cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk by
purchasing cross currency swap contracts.
Such cross currency swaps have the
economic effect of converting borrowings
from floating rates to fixed rates. As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group in
substance converted majority of its
borrowings from floating rates to fixed
rates through purchasing cross currency
swap contracts. So there is no significant
interest rate risk for the Group.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk because the Group has more than
5,000 customers. The carrying amounts of
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables and
financial assets at FVOCI and other receivables
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

The Group generally grants credit terms of less
than 90 days to its customers in Mainland China
and 120 days to its customers in other countries.
The Group’s management performs periodic
credit evaluations/reviews of its customers and
ensures that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group places
deposits with major banks in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institution.

Trade and bills receivables and financial assets at
FVOCI, and other receivables are subject to the
expected credit loss model.

To lower the Group's exposure to credit risk, the
Group may request 5% deposits from certain of
their customers before delivery of goods. In
addition, 100% (2021: 100%) of the bills
receivable of the Group are endorsed by banks as
at 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-_—_F+-A=+—HLEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

(b)

3. BXEKRER®

Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMERBRERE)
Credit risk (Continued) (b) =ERRKE)
(i) Impairment of trade and bills receivables ) BEWREZREENER
and financial assets at FVOC/ B FEEAREEE
FTA B M2 E W i E
A& E A
The Group has trade and bills receivables REEBRETEBHY
and financial assets at FVOCI from sales of 7% 4 5 45 Rl 35 955 78 A7
products that are subject to HKFRS 9's EEEEREN N EmH
expected credit loss model. The Group ERNRKE S MEER
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to IE&?§@$@§+§HE
measure expected credit losses which uses BEiEt AR M2
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all E’]fﬁmﬂﬁg REBER
trade receivables from initial recognition. RAEBHBREEDE
To measure the expected credit losses, oSt S {b 75 A 5T = T8 BB
trade receivables have been grouped EEEE  RYIPHER
based on shared credit risk characteristics B BATBEWE 55K
and the ageing days. The expected loss EREREFESRAY
rates are based on the payment profiles of TEHAES 18 - AFT=TEH
sales over a period of 36 month before EEEE BWESHK
31 December 2022 and the corresponding HERBE#EEEERR
historical credit losses experienced within FrEL K AR 248 - TRHA
this period. The historical loss rates are B = . ——
adjusted to reflect current and +=ZA=+—H#A36(&
forward-looking information on REARISH & M T RIE R
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability Ko 7 B R 0 HH 3R B 4 B
of the customers to settle the receivables, MAEEEEE- ?@EE?
including Gross Domestic Product and T§$T’Eﬁ5ﬂ§klf/ﬁ&@%
industrial added value. On that basis, the BEPEE R
loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 j]ﬁ’]?“%ﬂ%@.%ﬁ']“
was determined as follows for trade AT R ATHE MEE B (B 1
receivables: NEEBEREEL
B) oW E%E - RN
T F+ZA="+—
HEEKE ZHIBEE
BEDEENAT
Within 181 days to1 1 year to Over
180 days 2 years 2 years Total
180 KLk 131E|§1f¥ 1582F BiB2F st
RMB000 RMB000  AMBOOD AMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFTL
At 31 December 2022 R-B--£+=-F=+-8
Gross carrying amount EEAE 1,042,541 37,782 9,917 183 1,090,423
Expected loss rate FEHEEX 0.67% 7.81% 53.66% 100.00% 1.41%
Loss allowance EREE 6,970 2,949 5,321 183 15,423
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-£+=ZA=+-8
Gross carrying amount EEAE 1,269,986 ! 20397 1648 1,293,965
Expected loss rate BB K 0.16% 4.86% 36.84% 100.00% 0.88%
Loss allowance BEEE 2070 7515 1,648 11327

The loss allowance of bills receivables and

financial assets

at FVOCI as at

31 December 2022 and 2021 was

immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_HFH-A=t+—HILFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and financial assets at FVOCI (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade and bills
receivables are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against
the same line item.

Impairment of deposits, other receivables
and long-term receivables

The Directors of the Company consider the
probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has
been significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis during the year ended
31 December 2022. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares risk of a default
occurring on the assets as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial
economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
change to the third party’s ability to
meet its obligations;

actual or expected significant
changes in the operating results of
the third party;

significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the
third party, including changes in the
payment status of the third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BBREEBEE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMERBREEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERKE)

(i) Impairment of deposits, other receivables (i) BE > BMEWKRZIR
and long-term receivables (Continued) REFEW AR Bi1E ()
Impairment on deposits, other receivables Ze - BMEWERR
and long-term receivables are measured as RABEW R SORETZ 12
either 12-month expected credit losses or BAEHREEEENE
lifetime expected credit loss, depending on HEAEE R =
whether there has been a significant ERTEERREVS
increase in credit risk since initial TR LA R 75 A& 15 10
recognition. To assess whether there is a MiE o BEEERR
significant increase in credit risk the EBAREEMN - AFILE
company compares the risk of a default BRMmEQBAEESR
occurring on the asset as at the reporting A B AR B B A 46
date with the risk of default as at the date RAEHNELORRE -
of initial recognition. It considers available HeZEaBeERKA
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking BEATEMEER - W7
information. If a significant increase in BREREBIE 12 A /IER
credit risk of a receivable under the TREKERIENEER
circumstance of aging over 12 months has % B ¥ MR LA R K IR
occurred since initial recognition, then = - BREE TR
impairment is measured as lifetime H{EEREFE - BZ
expected credit losses. On that basis, the AEE R _F+
loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 “RA=t+—HZEER
was determined as follows for deposits, B ES - EMEWR
other receivables and long-term R REBAEKERERE
receivables: EMAT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
F-RE12 E-RE2 F=RHED
BAEEE HENGEE HEAGE
EEE B#E E#8 @i
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ANRETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT
At 31 December 2022 R-B-ZF
+=A=t-H
Gross carrying amount BEREE 759,898 - 33,034 792,932
Expected loss rate BHBEX — — 100.00% 4.17%
Loss allowance BEEE — - 33,034 33,034
At 31 December 2021 A
+=A=1+—H
Gross carrying amount BEREAE 541,163 = 34623 575,786
Expected loss rate EHEBX = = 100.00% 6.01%
Loss allowance BEEE = = 34623 34,623
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBRAREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMERBEZEZ)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERKE)
(i) Impairment of deposits, other receivables (i) BE > BMEWKRZIR
and long-term receivables (Continued) REFEW AR Bi1E (8)
The loss allowances for deposits, other R+ A=+—Hm%
receivables and long-term receivables as at & EERFIERE
31 December reconcile to the opening loss HAFE SR TB A S 1R B 1
allowances as follows: B3 HR W) s R B B MY U BR
LU
2022 2021
—E-= T4
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT ARBFT
Opening loss allowance at R—A—HBHNEHY
1 January EERE 34,623 —

(Decrease)/increase in loan loss  FRE R IE R A
allowance recognised in profit B ZXE5 18 B 1

or loss during the year CRLA) /N (1,589) 34,623
Closing loss allowance at RTZA=+—H8H8
31 December HREBERE 33,034 34,623
Net impairment losses on financial assets REmERANEHEE
recognised in profit or loss H9 B 1B 5 75 AR
During the year, losses of RMB39,615,000 FR - BEARE
(2021: RMB30,873,000) are accrued in net 39,6150007C (Z & = —
accrual of impairment losses on financial F: AR 30,873,000
assets. Account receivables of T EFTRTERERE
RMB18,304,000 are written off in 2022 EREERFE - N
(2021: nil). T F  BRERRA
R % 18,304,0007T B £
RHE(ZT - —F
) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_T-_—_F+-A=+—BILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3. BXEKRER®
3.1 BBEMEZE)

() Liquidity risk () RBELEMK
Prudent liquidity risk management includes AEEEREENRBES
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of R b EIR - FEBFTAE B A
funding through an adequate amount of HEERERBEMR SR
committed credit facilities. The Group aims to AEBHAMES AEEE 5 7(:_t
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping BRERAANEAREER
committed credit lines available. Details of the BME URFBERCELE
undrawn borrowing facilities available to the Mo BAAREENREAE
Group are disclosed in Note 21 to the ERMEFBREEVHEEmE
consolidated financial statements. M sk #255 o
The table below analyses the Group's financial THREINAEBNSREE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based AT bk Ty iR AERE 2 B4R R
on the remaining period at the balance sheet WREBEEBRZES A ZIH
date to the contractual maturity date. The H &R er BRI AT 947 o R
amounts disclosed in the table are the NEENSERAE AR
contractual undiscounted cash flows. BB ERE o
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
YR—F —FEmMF MEEEF EFEUL
RMB000 AMB000 RMB000 AMB000
ARBFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 31 December 2022 R-BE-—%
+:EE+—E
Borrowings e 5,155,158 2,323,407 1,064,807 —
Supply chain financing it Fgﬁﬁgﬂﬁ 549,041 - — -
Interest payable on borrowings BEEMFIS 282,318 124,224 22,681 —
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 142,054 — — —
Trade and bills payables EHE S REEFE 4,597,463 — — —
Accruals and other payables (excluding BRERREMEN
non-financial liabilities) R (T ek
TRAR) 551,927 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 65,884 52,701 114975 131,429
11,343,845 2,500,332 1,202,463 131,429
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-F
+=B=+-H
Borrowings BE 3831662 1783962 1599415 —
Interest payable on borrowings BERMHE 129,073 71,067 20,881 —
Derivative financial instruments fTHEERMIA 165,975 = = =
Trade and bills payables EHESREERE 4,576,337 — — —
Accruals and other payables (excluding BREAREMER
non-financial liabilities) ER(TREF
TREE) 413,985 — — -
Lease liabilities HEAR 34,557 23378 71,381 15,161
Long-term payables & BT IR 30,726 — — —
9,182,315 1,878,407 1,691,677 15,161
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. UHERER®E)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EsERER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to REBEEESHNERARELRSE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going BEFELENRE N BREERE
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders Wk AEMERFEE AT R -
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an I 4 FEIR A8 B AN DUR D B AN
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. Ko
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the REFIFABEREE  KEES
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to RERARFRSRESEHET
shareholders or issue new shares. it o
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group HMENEMAR]—&K  NEBETA
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This BEABHLERERER o fbb =L
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. BEFERNERNBEE - B
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including FHENEERE(BERAEESR
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the BERANI R 2R E) R IEREE
consolidated balance sheet), supply chain financing, gl - #fEgEmns  HEaEEE
lease liabilities and long-term payables less pledged HE AR OB B IR RIT I R R
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Total RS EFEWE - EARETEU
capital is calculated as 'total equity’ as shown in the HEBEEBERANIRZ[BiER]
consolidated balance sheet less non-controlling HBRIEIE RS N B EFREATH o
interests plus net debt.
The net gearing ratios at 31 December 2022 and 2021 R_E-_—Fh_FT-_—F+—-H
are as follows: =St—RAZFEEBBLENT :
2022 2021
—B-—fF —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT ARBFT
Total borrowings (Note 21) BEBRE(MF21) 8,543,372 7,215,039
Supply chain financing (Note 20) HIESERYE (K7 220) 549,041 —
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEaE (A7) 314,382 114,249
Long-term payables (Note 23) = HA FE 1T BR 3K
(Bt7t23) — 29,871
Less: pledged bank deposits and cash B BERRITERK
and cash equivalents (Note 76) Re KB
ZEY
(Htetie) (2,580,068) (2,695,709)
Net debt BEFR 6,826,727 4,663,450
Total equity excluding non-controlling ErERs - MBRIEZEHIY
interests B 9,501,623 10,038,270
Total capital RN 16,328,350 14,701,720
Net gearing ratio FEEABRE 42% 32%

The increase of gearing ratio during the year is a result
of the increase of net debt due to proceeds from
borrowings and increase of supply chain financing and
lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation
Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group held
forward foreign exchange contracts, cross currency
swap contracts, cotton future contracts, cotton option
contracts and bills receivables held both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling of these assets. These
forward foreign exchange contracts have been fair
valued using forward exchange rates that are quoted in
an active market. Cross currency swaps are fair valued
using forward exchange rates that are quoted in an
active market and interest rates extracted from
observable vyield curves. Cotton future contracts and
cotton option contracts are fair valued using forward
cotton price that are quoted in an active market. Bills
receivables held both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling of these assets are fair valued using
interest rates that are quoted in an active market.

3.

MBRBREER @

3.3
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AT EER
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ERTER  ZFFRIMWOT
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REMERHEZZFEEMBZENE
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BIKRRERE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AQAFREMEEE)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DNFEERE)
The following table presents the Group's assets and TRINTAEENEEREE  H
liabilities that are measured at fair value at b =S —E-_—%+—-AH1
31 December 2022 and 2021 =+—H®HAFEFE:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—R Fo& F=H st

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
RETT AR¥TT AR¥ETT AR¥TT

At 31 December 2022 N8
+=—H=+—H
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFERR
other comprehensive income BEEAHEMET
W SR EE - 380,615 — 380,615
Derivative financial instruments EEmMIA — 99,353 - 99,353
— 479,968 - 479,968
Liabilities =
Derivative financial instruments TESmITA — 142,054 — 142,054
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& F® F= @t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ANRETFrTr AREFIT ARMFT AREFT
At 31 December 2021 R-B=—F
+=A=+—H
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFEAEHR
other comprehensive income BEg AHEMEE
W& & E = 299,848 = 299,848
Derivative financial instruments MTESRIA = 55,653 = 55,653
— 355,501 — 355,501
Liabilities 81E&
Derivative financial instruments TESRmT A — 165,975 — 165,975
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1 Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses these estimates at each

balance sheet date.

4.2 Impairment of trade and bills receivables and

financial assets at FVOCI

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and bills receivables and financial
assets at FVOC!I based on the expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade and bills receivables. The loss allowances for
financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. Management uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Management reassesses the provision

at each balance sheet date.

4.
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4,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.3

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial condition and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the projected
performance and resulting future cash flow projections,
it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.4 Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and income tax charges in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Committee of Executive Directors of the Company. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Committee of Executive Directors reviews
the Group's internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The Committee of Executive Directors considers the business
from both a product and geographical perspective. From a
product perspective, management assesses the performance
from sales of yarns, grey fabrics, non-woven fabrics and
garment fabrics as well as garments.

China now includes Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macao.
Southeast Asia now includes Vietnam and Cambodia.
Americas now includes United States, Mexico, Nicaragua and
Honduras.

4.
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For th& year end/\d\y December 2022
BE-Z-__HF-A=+—HILFE

i

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The revenues from external customers in Asia and Americas
accounted for 89.9% and 9.5% (2021: 90.5% and 8.6%) of the
Group's total revenue respectively.

The Committee of Executive Directors assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on revenue
and operating profit.

The segment information for the year ended 31 December
2022 is as follows:

S TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. DHRPER )

5!5EEE;‘)‘I‘I&%*J‘WI\*BE)EE’JH&)\ 2l
AN EE AU A H89.9% K 05% (—F = —
£ 1 90.5% f28.6%) °

WITEFZESRERA ML L 5 M
REE DA 2 FAE -

BE-_Z-_—_H+-_A=1T—HLHFE
ZDBERIMT

Year ended 31 December 2022

Garment fabrics and Garments

ARREE 2%

Southeast

Southeast
China Asia  Americas Others China
TE  FEE EJ] it HE
RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB'00  RMB'0O0

Non-woven fabrics Total

i 1]
Southeast Southeast
Asia  Americas China Asia China Asia
REE EJ e REE TE  FEE
RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'0OO  RMB'0OO  RMB'00O  RMB000

Grey fabrics

RMB'900

ARBTT ARETE ABETR ABRTR ARRTT ARETT ARBTL ARETT AREFR ABKTR ARRTT ARETT

Total revenue aA 25160952 8,268,556 239,632 469,647 3985993 1,165346 1365820 797,831 523,424 39,469 95,987 42,112,657
Interseqment reenve (loie)  ABRANE)  (8566668) (6998754 (210,178 — 780 (1060308 (779) (69872  (523403) — (1339 (18307303
Revenue (from external WA (RESSZE)

customers) 16,594,284 1,269,802 29454 469,647 3,458,713 105,038 1,088,371 727,959 2 39,469 22,596 23,805,354
Timing of revenue recognifion  RABTEH

— At a paint in time —REBRES 16594284 1,269,802 29454 469,647 3,458,713 105,038 1,088,371 727,959 21 39,469 22,596 23,805,354

Segment results ABEE 210057 248,397 (42,021) 46,000 185915 (12,855) (411) 15,587 3,857 (840)  (71,904) 581,782
Unallocated profi FATRR 20,079
Operating profit HEy-l 601,861
Finance income BERA 31,783
Finance costs SBER (504,604)
Share of profts less losses of ~ AMEMEREAE L

investments accounted REMRH

for using the equiy Bl

method 36,159
Income tax credit By 30027
Profit for the period B 201,186
Depreciation and amortisation NERES (407,538)  (323,725)  (45910)  (18,114)  (94,090)  (41,603)  (34,083)  (10,230)  (23,080) - (30,677) (1,029,050)
Note: The Group's inter-segment yarns revenue mainly include HieF - REBR D HBEPERBAEEBIEMR

factories in Southeast Asia selling products through trading
companies in China.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_T-_—_F+-A=+—BILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 7HER#E
The segment information for the year ended 31 December BHE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—RHILFE
2021 is as follows: ZOHERMT :

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F--E+-A-t-AHEE

Yams Garment fabrics and Gaments Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics Total
95 HH R ith Eoh ag
Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast
China Asia  Americas Others China Asia  Americas China Asia China Asia

#E REE XN Rt 9B REE O X B REE 4B RE
RBOD RSO AMSOW MBOW AWSUD RIBDW RSO BN AWOD  AYBOW  RUBWU AWBOW
NGETE ARETE ARETR ARETL ARETE ARETE ARBTE ARETE ARETE ARETZ ARETE ARETR

LN 26900083 9193801 100476 478657 4494406 943819 1153676 808%65 571326 10,121 156853 44919183
FEUA (791399) (8008375 (101476) (7387) (2615 61210 (40555  Q22130)  (575719) — (143529 (18397.990)

Total revenue
Inter-segment revenue

= 3F

Revenue (from external KA (RENBEE)
customers) 18986,091 1,185,426 - ma0 4170791 82607 91312 586,835 1607 110,121 1334 26501193

Timing of revenue recogniion WA 2R

— Ata point in time —REERES 18986091 1185426 - na0 4170791 82,607 9312 586,835 1,607 110121 1334 26521193
Segment results AREE 129788 166082 (916 101391 34T 38 gM o408 BOIS (600D (5220) 355087
Unallocated losses FOEER (127676)
Operating profit i 3403197
Finance income BERA 4589
Finance costs HHER (167250
Share of profts less losses of ~~ ARMEREAEZ

investments accounted REMEH R

for using the equiy BE

method 39617
Income tax expense FreRER (598533)
Profit for the period Bk 241616
Depreciation and amortisation TEREY (453526)  (310,362) (17673) (16676)  (102897) #3613) (33183) (12,667) 3747) - B2 (1,037556)
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N For th\e\year end\j\d)\g December 2022
&=

DAL () -
| QfES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2022 are

as follows:

Total segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets of the Group

Total segment liabilities
Unallocated liabliies

Total liabilities of the
Group

Addition to non-current
assets

ARaEE
*OEEE

rEmAKE

AREaR
KERE

rEEEAR

REFRBRE

Southeast

China Asia
e REE
RMBO0O  RMB000

Americas
£
RMB000

Others
-4
RIB000

Garment fabrics and Garments

5. DHRPER )
RZB-Z—_F+-_A=+—HZO#HE
ERBEWT

As at 31 December 2022
WZZZE+ZA=t-H

Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics Total

ANREE Y] &0 4R

Southeast Southeast Southeast

Asia  Americas China Asia China Asia
REE EJ) tE REE tE REE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'VOO  RMB00O  RMBU0O  RMBU0O  RMBUOO

ABRTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ABRTL ARRTR ABRTR ABETT ARBTT ARRTT ARKTR ARRFR

10815352 6,156,506

(5,968,788) ~ (3,037,955)

83009 724,655

1,189,212

(862,945)

381479

507,466

(326,382)

14397

(206,986)  (1,140,683)

1415621 626556 365726 454,044 2668 537,003 25,523,039

628,260

26,151,299

(407,921)  (213425)  (398,391) (135)  (503,779) (13,067,390)

(2,982,433)

(16,049,823)

116,623 27,350 2026 120,625 - 6,176 2,391,030

152 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED KIIEIBREEAR AT



SARMSmEME (8 N

K

S
n

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHEZ_—_F+-_A=t—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 7HER#E)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021 are N_EZ—F+_A=T—HzZ2HHE
as follows: ERBEHAT :

As at 31 December 2021

e
Yamns Gament fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics Total
FEs AR REE ih T Eek|
Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast
(hin Asia  Americas Others Ching Asia  Americas Ching Asia Ching Asia
e RER 3| i e REE £ tE REE e REER
ANBO00- RMBOGD  RMBOGD  AMBORD  AMBODO  AMBOO  RMBOO  RMBUDD  RVBOAD  AMBORD  AMBODO  AMBOMD
NEEFT A\RETT ARETL ARETL A\RETT AREFT AREFT ARETL ARETL \RETL AREFT AREFT
Total segment assets AEEE 1105040 5169955 SOL30 408889  36G68T0 150814 6742 WIS 3516 78 5658 07678
Unallocated assets FOREE 405,006
Total assets of the Group ~~ AEEHEE 2444884
Total segment liabilities AHHEEE (3416648 (4190308 (388,146)  (271000)  (749688)  (970023) (418489 (80737) (31,360) (804)  [@77AT) (11273774)
Unalocated liabiltes APREE (2568,158)
Total liabilities of the Group ~ A£E4EE (13841,932)
Addition to non-current REFRBEE
assets 885,199 609513 252939 19835 215009 2413 09110 21,104 871 10614 2346607
Sales analyses of the Group by products are shown below: REBZREREIDHHEEDTIIRAT ¢
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEB%F AR Fr
Stretchable core-spun yarns BHE YR 8,865,690 10,292,499
Other yarns H a4z 8,721,760 10,107,339
Grey fabrics b il 727,980 588,442
Woven garment fabrics 1% K T R 2,647,893 2,570,170
Knitted garment fabrics i R 866,442 1,041,746
Jeanswear 4 1F RS 91,344 672,485
Trading 25 1,822,180 1,125,067
Non-woven fabrics ma M 62,065 123,445
23,805,354 26,521,193
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L E

BIEE (1)

For the._year en‘d/eéﬁj December 2022

BE—_ZT_—_

FPEA=t+—HILFE

FREEHOLD LAND

KAEREL

2022 2021
—B-—fF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#FiT AR FT
Freehold land KAERELT 188,492 163,957
2022 2021
—=E—-= T —fF
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AR FT
Opening net book amount FYEREFAE 163,957 167,794
Additions NE 9,147 —
Currency translation differences EEsE N ERE 15,388 (3,837)
Closing net book amount FREHEFE 188,492 163,957

The Group's freehold land is analysed as follows: REBEZKAERTHDITHOT -
2022 2021
—E-—f —E-—HF
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FiT AREFT

Freehold land K AEERE+ b

— In Cambodia — RRIER 127,491 116,711
— In Turkey — RtTHA 29,973 19,065
— In Mexico — REWEE 14,995 13,727
— In Uruguay — REHE 10,656 9,532
— In Nicaragua — RIE AL 5,377 4922
188,492 163,957
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Bz

7.

T-—F+-_A=1+—BLLEE

e 5 2
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. ME- -BERRE
Machinery Furniture
and and Motor  Construction
Buildings equipment fixtures vehicles in-progress Total
BF HERRE BRAREE RE RRIR @t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2021 RZB=--f-fF—H
Cost or valuation BAS A 4,129,468 9,070,279 113965 59,749 530,862 13,904,323
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (763,727) (4,144,869) (65,650) (35,942) — (5010,187)
Net book amount REFE 3,365,741 4925411 48315 23807 530,862 8,894,136
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE--%5+ZR
=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 3,365,741 4925411 48315 23807 530,862 8,894,136
Additions RE 326,382 171,141 6,85 12,846 1,749,047 2,265,701
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) W BB KB AR (Hf7£37) 251,397 114721 391 3,795 6 370,310
Transfers B 131,254 612,193 503 880 (744,830) —
Disposals (Note 35) & (Hrit35) (514432) (735,568) (5753) (2,306) (21,856) (1,279915)
Depreciation charges (Note 28) WEXH (Hi£28) (172,711) (757,260) (10,269) (7.214) — (947,454)
Impairment charges (Note 28) MBS (H2£28) = (57,202) = = = (57,202)
Currency translation differences ERERER (9,234) (2,803) (839) (12) (3,569) (16457)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 3,378397 4270633 38633 31,79 1,509,660 9,229,119
At 31 December 2021 R-Z--%+-A=+-H
Cost or valuation A E 4165476 8432929 74872 66,729 1,509,660 14,049,666
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (787,079) (4,162,29) (36,239) (34933) — (5,020,547)
Net book amount BEFE 3,378,397 4270633 38633 31,79 1,509,660 9,229,119
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-Z-—&F+=R
=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount FOEmFE 3,378,397 4,270,633 38,633 31,796 1,509,660 9,229,119
Additions RE 7,058 36,487 18,115 9,091 1,816,550 1,887,301
Revaluation L) 8,198 - - - — 8,198
Transfers #3 383,283 1,299,907 2,045 2,196 (1,687,431)
Disposals (Note 35) & (f1£35) (21,389) (116,519) (4,893) (809) (324,000) (467,610)
Depreciation charges (Note 28) WEX W (Hit28) (156,050) (738,567) (11,576) (9,548) — (915,741)
Transfer to investment properties BREREME W)

(Note 8) (238,353) — — — — (238,353)
Currency translation differences EREXER 46,447 52,877 2,585 941 1,014 103,864
Closing net book amount FRERFE 3,407,591 4,804,818 44,909 33,667 1,315,793 9,606,778
At 31 December 2022 —Z%+=H

Sr=Ff
Cost or valuation BAS A 4,302,575 9,387,736 71,818 73,084 1,315793 15,151,006
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 25t & RIHES H

charges (894,984)  (4,582,918) (26,909) (39,417) - (5,544,228)

Net book amount BEHE 3,407,591 4,804,818 44,909 33,667 1,315,793 9,606,778
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Buildings are shown at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation. As at 31 December 2022, buildings
with net book amount of RMB3,407,591,000 were stated at fair
value.

The valuation performed as at 31 December 2022 was
determined using the depreciated replacement costs
approach and was within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
Current gross reproduction costs of the buildings are adjusted
for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of
obsolescence and optimization.

The revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income tax
liabilities, was regarded as other comprehensive income and
credited to revaluation reserve in equity (Note 19).

If buildings were stated on historical cost basis, the amounts
would be as follows:

ME-BERSEE#E)
EBFRBIINDB L GEMESRN(EHIE
—F—R)ETHHERATFERERZD
WEIE R_TE——F+=—fF=+—
B BRMEFEAARY3407,591,0007T A9
EFURFETEE -

R oF+ A=+ —HETZHE
TRAMESERALEE  WHEARTE
BEAEZSRNAN - EFHATHEEEEMK
AERERELEAMBERE RELIEA
AL AR -

EEABKINBRBERNECERSHAE £
ABHMEPEWFTEFAERZANER
e (BIsE19) -

WEFABEELEKNAESEE  €EER/W
T

2022 2021

—E-—F — T4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FrT ARKTFT

Cost X A 3,984,098 3,855,197
Accumulated depreciation B2 E (838,897) (763,620)
Net book amount BEmEFE 3,145,201 3,091,577

During the year ended 31 December 2022, depreciation of
RMB818,096,000 (2021: RMB855,847,000) was included in cost
of sales, RMB4,647,000 (2021: RMB4,061,000) was included in
selling and distribution costs and RMB92,998,000 (2021:
RMB87,546,000) was included in general and administrative
expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, finance cost of
RMB63,607,000 was capitalised as part of property, plant and
equipment (2021: nil) (Note 30).

As at 31 December 2022, no property, plant and equipment
were pledged, while as at 31 December 2021, property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB164,427,000 as collateral
of the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 21).
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AE%M6%WﬂM%%EﬁA%E&
DM R ARK929980007T (Z T —
F: AR¥587,546,0007T) ITE B 5 A —
MR ATHRI S

REBEE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEF

Z - AR¥63607,000tHEEER(=Z

——F BERNCEME  BEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHEZ_—_F+-_A=t—HILFE

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8. REWZ
2022 2021
—B-—fF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR#FT AR Fr
Year ended 31 December 2022 BEZE-E-_—-%+=A
=+—BLEFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE — —
Transfer from property, plant and EEAEME BERX
equipment (Note 7) =t (Hat7) 238,353 —
Transfer from right-of-use assets EERTAEEE 49,508 —
Depreciation e (18,970) —
Closing net book amount FRREFE 268,891 —
At 31 December 2022 R-ZBE-Z_F+ZA
=+-—A
Cost B AR 287,861 —
Accumulated depreciation and R TERBREI L
impairment charges (18,970) —
Net book amount REFE 268,891 —
The Group's investment properties are stated at historical cost AEENKREMERSREHRRIEESL
at the end of each reporting period. FATI B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 8.
()  Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment
properties

REWE (@)
(i) REVEREZRBEIANEH

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FTT AR T

Rental income from operating leases &L EMNHEES WA

(Note 27) (Brat27)

26,843 —

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

FERXEREE RaERINRNT :

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FT AR TF T

EMUk A — 58
(Htat27)

Other income — net (Note 27)

(18,970) —

The above investment properties are located in China
and depreciated on a straight-line basis over 3 to 20
years.

The fair value of the investment properties as at 31
December 2022 was RMB289,799,000. The valuation was
determined using the sale comparison approach and
was within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Sales
prices of comparable properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The most significant input to this
valuation approach is price per square metre.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

9. LEASES

9. HE
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) RREEEEBRBIANSE
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following HERENESRBENGFEEER
amounts relating to leases: BRAT
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥TFT ARBFT
Right-of-use assets FHEEE
Land use rights s A A 1,287,843 1,124,394
Buildings and warehouses BFEREE 263,242 65,376
Equipment and others AR K Eo Aty 30,125 37,420
1,581,210 1,227,190
Current lease liabilities BNEAfEE B fE 55,687 31,622
Non-current lease liabilities JEREAHEEAE 258,695 82,627
Total lease liabilities HEARARE 314,382 114,249

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2022
financial year were RMB494,582,000 (2021:

RMB139,353,000).

As at 31 December 2022, no land use rights were
pledged as collateral of the Group's bank borrowings

(2021: RMB34,388,000) (Note 21).

The Group leases various machinery and equipment
under finance lease agreement. The original lease terms
are from 3 to 4 years. Under the terms of the leases, the
leasors transfer ownership of the assets to the Group by

the end of the lease term.

TR _HFUBTEFREEEE
N A R #494,582,0007T (Z & = —
£ AR139,353,0007T) ©

R-B-—F+-A=+—08" %
4 AR AR EBRITE
ENERR(CT-—F: AR¥
34,388,0007T ) (FaE21) °

rEBEREREHERZHERR
ez R - SMEEHR B3RS
FoREBEGRH  HEAREM
EHMREWMA B EENMBEEE
RAKHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

9. LEASES (Continued) 9. MHE#®)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (b) ERGEVRZREIANESEHE
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the RAEWERINNATEBEHEENK
following amounts relating to leases: 1
2022 2021
—E-= T4
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥EFTT AR T
Depreciation charge of FHREEEREEA
right-of-use assets
Land use rights T HbfE R 31,204 31,724
Buildings and warehouses BFEREE 52,111 42,661
Equipment and others R R HAth 7,363 12,056
90,678 86,441
Interest expense (included in finance cost) F| B GGt A
(Note 30) ER)(#E30) 10,183 5,393
Expense relating to short-term leases BHERHAEENAX
(included in selling and distribution (FFASHE K iEF
costs and administrative expenses) TARITERAL)
(Note 28) (K1at28) 27,690 4,174
Expense relating to leases of low-value BERTIR R L a5 5
assets that are not shown above as HEMRKEBEEM
short-term leases (included in cost of B (GFAHEE
sales and administrative expenses) MARITBFAS)
(Note 28) (B17t28) 152 21
The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was R FWNEERESRLBER
RMB332,523,000 (2021: RMB124,388,000). AR #332523,0000 (ZE = —%:

AR #5124,388,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

10.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

10. B EE

Customer
Goodwill relationship Total
GRS BEFBER #at
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AR FT ARBT T ARMFT
At 1 January 2021 R=-T=—
—HA—H
Cost X A< 17,641 54,918 72,559
Accumulated depreciation REHITE = (9,153) (9,153)
Net book amount AR FE 17,641 45,765 63,406
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—#§
+=A=+—H
IEFEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 17,641 45,765 63,406
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) U E&HI B A 7
(BtaF37) 9,333 — 9,333
Amortisation charges (Note 28) BE R (B 7E28) = (3,661) (3,661)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 26,974 42,104 69,078
At 31 December 2021 R-E=-—F
+t=ZA=+-—H
Cost or valuation DN AR =] 26,974 54,918 81,892
Accumulated amortisation RET#H — (12,814) (12,814)
Net book amount FREFE 26,974 42,104 69,078
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—ZT_C
+=—A=+-—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 26,974 42,104 69,078
Amortisation charges (Note 28) BSHR (M 7E28) — (3,661) (3,661)
Closing net book amount FARRHEFE 26,974 38,443 65,417
At 31 December 2022 N
+=—A=+-—H
Cost or valuation AN K Mk (B 26,974 54,918 81,892
Accumulated amortisation RET#H — (16,475) (16,475)
Net book amount REFE 26,974 38,443 65,417

During the year ended 31 December 2022, amortisation of
RMB3,661,000 (2021: RMB3,661,000) was included in general

and administrative expenses.

BHE T -+ _A=+—HItFE "
BH ARM3661000 (ZE-—F: A
R#3661,00070) Bt A— M RITEEY °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the._year en‘d/eéﬁj December 2022
ﬁi:?::if:ﬂi+*ﬁ¢¢§

11.
EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated
are as follows:

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

11.

balance sheet

DR ESIRNERE

UTRERGREERBRERNESE

2022 2021
—s=-= T
RMB’000 RMB000
AR%For ARKTFT
Associates /NG| 355,774 316,807
Joint ventures AEDHE 4,266 4131
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 360,040 320,938
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income NTRERGERRRERNSE
statement are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ETF T AR TF T
Associates i Rl/N]| 36,024 39,333
Joint ventures EEME 135 284
For the year ended 31 December HE+=-ZA=+—8
IEFE 36,159 39,617
(a) Investments in associates (a) MEBEEQARANRE
2022 2021
—sE=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR%For ARTFT
Share of net assets of unlisted associates 715 FE_E T EEL A A
BETE 355,774 316,807
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

11. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 11.

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investments in associates (Continued)

ERESIRNIRE (&)

(a) REBEQRNREE)

Movements of shares of net assets of associates
attributable to the Group are as follows:

AEBEEHEANEEFHEALH
m -

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB000

ARB¥TFT AREFIT

Opening amount R 316,807 286,037

Additions (1) NE () — 27,715
Share of profits less losses based on W5 B 45 ) R 2 FE (R

equity held i )5BS 18 36,024 39,333
Share of other comprehensive income M5 B 45 B0 R 2 FE (R

based on equity held H 2wk 2,943 —

Disposal (ii) £ & (i) — (36,278)

Closing amount HiR$ 355,774 316,807

0]

(ii)

The Group previously held 100% equity interest in
Treasure Reap Limited and its subsidiaries. On
31 December 2021, the Group transferred 55%
equity interest to Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh)
Investment Management Co., Ltd., a third party.
Upon the completion of the transaction, Treasure
Reap Limited and its subsidiaries became
associates of the Group.

The Group previously held 48% equity interest of
Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries. On 31 October 2021, the Group
acquired the remaining 52% equity interest. Upon
the completion of the transaction, Nantong
Textile Group Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the

Group's interests in the associates.

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at

31

December 2022 which, in the opinion of the

directors, are individually immaterial to the Group. The
associates as listed below have share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the
Group. The countries of incorporation or registration is
also their principal places of business.

() AEBEEFEBEEEERA
A & E M & A B 100% 0% #E -
RZEZ—F+A=+—
B AEES55%MEEE T
E-REMNEUE(EE)E
BEBARAT - XBHEMK
% YEBRARMEWE
RNEKAREEEE AT -

(i) ANEBERIFBEBLY BT
REBHBLBER G RE
B A EAI48%AEHE - R=F
——E+A=+—8 &&
B U AR T 5206 I8 HE - 32 5 5%
K% FBRHBIERERS
BAERARKREKE R A
RAEAEENZENBEAR °

T SR SR BB 2 A
CEET TR

UWTAR-ZZE-__F+=A=1+—
H EFERAENEAEETTE
DY REBEBZE NG - THBZER
AIZEAER L EARAER - WAA
SEEERFE o Hifaa gkt
BERNABHEETBLEED -

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=-—F%#H 163



o5 HBEEN L (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

11. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(@) Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group’s investments in associates that are
individually immaterial to the Group as at 31 December
2022 are:

11. URERZEIRNIEE ©)

(a) MREEQATNRE(E)
R-_ZE-_—_F#+-_HA=+—H" ' &
5 B 7 ¥ AN 5 B@ B I~ 2 K /9B
BARNIEE :

Place and date of incorporation

Particulars of issued

Name of associate

and form of legal entity

Principal activities

share capital

Interest held

MR IR BHAR

BENRERE EEERER TEXH BRTRAFE i s

Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in RMB166,167,000 45%
2 July 2015, British Virgin Islands
limited liability company

EREUEERARAR RERZES —FT-0F REBRLBEET AR 166,167,0007C 45%
tAZH BREERA REER

Henglun International (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding in USD5,000,000 30%
11 June 2019, Hong Kong
limited liability company

BERER(BE)BRRA BFE ZE-NFAAT-H REBEARERR 5,000,000% 70 30%
BEREERR

Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) Holdings Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding in HKD20,000 45%
16 November 2018, Hong Kong
limited liability company

EMELE (RE) BRERAT B —2-N\Ft-A REBETRERR 20,000 75 45%
+RB BREARA

Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence Technology Development Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of RMB10,000,000 30%

Co, Ltd. 9 March 2020, textile products

limited liability company

THREEENRERERAR PEANEE —F-FF HERHEH B AR #10,0000007C 30%
ZANA BREEAR

Treasure Reap Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in UsD100 45%
February 2017, British Virgin Islands
limited liability company

SEEARAT RERRES 2 tF REBRLBELETR 1003 7T 45%
R BREERA B

HLD (HK) Trading Limited Hong Kong, Trading of textile products HKD100 45%
24 February 2022, in Hong Kong
limited liability company

HLD (HK) Trading Limited BB ZEZ-FR REBETHRER 1007 7T 45%
ZtWmE - BEREERRA 25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

11.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investments in associates (Continued)

11.

(a) REBEQRNREE)

ERESIRNIRE (&)

Name of associate

Place and date of incorporation

and form of legal entity

Principal activities

Particulars of issued
share capital

Interest held

AR B AR

BENREH EEERER TEXH BRTRARE iigeT 33

Subsidiaries of Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited:

BEAEZRERARZMEAR :

Lanyan Denim Garment Vietnam Holdings Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding in HKD100 45%
2 June 2015, Hong Kong
limited liability company

BRSFRESEERERAR & “T-RE¥A~AZRH REBETREER 100/ 7T 45%
BREART

Hualida (Vietnam) Garments Limited Company Vietnam, Manufacturing of Vietnam Dong ("VND") 45%
January 2016, garments in Vietnam 39,492,000,000
limited liability company

ERE (M) REEAERAT e —2-RE-A PR RERR 39,492,000,000 4 /& 45%
BREAERA (THEE])

Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) Garments Company Limited  Vietnam, Manufacturing of VND46,580,000,000 45%
5 January 2021, garments in Vietnam
limited liability company

EMEME(EE) REECARRA MEZF--F-RAREA-  REBEREKX 46,580,000000%87 & 45%
BEREFRA

Subsidiary of Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) Holdings Limited:

EMELE (EE) EREBRAZHBAR

Hualida Vietnam (Hai Ha) Garments Limited Company Vietnam, Manufacturing of VND37,236,800,000 45%
9 March 2021, garments in Vietnam
limited liability company

EFIEHE (8T) REEEERAR ME T -F=ZARR  REBERERK 37,236,800,000 47 /& 45%
BREART

Subsidiary of Henglun International (Hong Kong) Limited:

BHRER(FR)ERARZMERR :

Henglun Textile (Vietnam) Company Limited Vietnam, Manufacturing of garment USD5,000,000 30%
November 2019, fabrics in Vietnam
limited liability company

Ees s (LE) BRAT ME —T-nFt+-A MRS 5,000,000% 7T 30%

BEBREARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

11. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 11.
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(@) Investments in associates (Continued) (a)

EsESIRNIRE (#)

REBEATNERE (&)

Place and date of incorporation Particulars of issued

Name of associate

and form of legal entity

Principal activities

share capital

Interest held

AR MR B AR

BENTEH EEERER TEXH BRTRARE oY $+3

Subsidiary of Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence Technology Development Co,, Ltd.:

THAEBHHBERBRARZMBAR :

Nantong Dasheng Third Cotton Textile Co,, Ltd. Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of RMB23,030,000 30%
26 April 2020, textile products
limited liability company

HRAEZRHBERAA TEAEER —ToREMA RERFEEHAR AR#23,030,00070 30%
ZtRE BREEAR

Subsidiaries of Treasure Reap Limited:

LEERRAIZMBEAR

Harvest Bright (HK) Industrial Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding in HKD100 45%
February 2017, Hong Kong
limited liability company

BE (BB EXBRLA FE “T—tH5-R REBETREZR 1008 7T 45%
BREARA

Hualida Thai Binh Garment Company Limited (formerly Vietnam, Manufacturing of garment VND304,000,000,000 45%

“Texhong Thai Binh Garment Company Limited") March 2007, fabrics in Vietnam

limited liability company

ERERTREFRAT HE-—TTLE=R REERERE R 304,000,000,0004 & /& 45%

(AR RIAFREBRAR])

EBREAAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_T-_—_F+-A=+—BILFE

11.

-
< N

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 1. UREREINERNIRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
(b) Investment in a joint venture (b) REELENRE
2021
—E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FTT ARBTFT
Opening amount R 4,131 3,847
Share of profit pak- Yyl 135 284
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 4,266 4,131

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group's interests in the joint venture.

Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at
31 December 2022 which, in the opinion of the
directors, is immaterial to the Group. The joint venture
as listed below has share capital consisting solely of
ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group.
The country of incorporation or registration is also its
principal place of business.

The Group's investment in a joint venture as at
31 December 2022 is:

AEERAZE
HRBIE -

1 20 HE 2 30 SR AE AR

ATRR-_F_—_F+_A=+—
B §$wﬁﬁ$%@ITi§Z
AEBERZERE - TIHAREREZ
BAEREBRRAK  YHAEH
BEREH  AEMAZSERBER
MRETRERME -

RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H8BXK%
EREEhENRE

Place and date of incorporation

Name of the joint venture and form of legal entity

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

share capital Interest held

MR R B AR
RELERR EEERER TEXH BRTRAFE iigey $+3
Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock Company Vietnam, Cargo transportation by VND20,000,000,000 50%
30 June 2016, land and sea; other
limited liability company assistant services; cargo
landing-over, storage,
management
consulting
RAFEDRBHG AT M —E-RFRASTR BEEYMES AHHE 2000000000088 /E 50%
BEREEDNT FR#s - EWEE -

7 EREN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ende&-31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—_F+-A=1+—RHILEFE

11. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(c) Summarised financial information for associates
and joint ventures

The tables below provide summarised financial
information for associates and joint ventures as a group.
The information disclosed reflects the amounts
presented in the financial statements of the relevant
associates and joint ventures and not the Group's share
of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect
adjustments made by the entity when using the equity
method, including fair value adjustments.

11.

DI ESIRNIRE (@)

(c)

BENAREELENBEVKE
#
TRE#BERARRGERE(E
A—EAR)WBERHMBHER - B
BREENRREBBLEARREE
TCENPBRERMZINNEE - M
VHRARE D HRSLHE - HO K
{EFT AR BR B B8 108 PR A et R B 4
HEAE  BREATFEAR -

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ANER#®Fr AR For
Current assets mEEE 938,566 672,379
Non-current assets ERBEE 807,329 705,268
Current liabilities mENEE 932,271 645,021
Non-current liabilities EmBEE 10,416 10,096
Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HILEE
2022 2021
—=E_—— — T4
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥F AR T
Revenue WA 2,035,016 1,575,033
Cost of sales 45 B R 1,867,487 1,332,931
Profit for the year FERF 73,239 94,806
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. REFE SNSRI A

Financial Financial Financial assets
assets at assets at at amortised
FVPL FVOCI cost Total
RAFEE
BRAFETA BESBA 3 $o12%N
Baf Ht2EBEN IRz &R
SRMEE SRMEE BE st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFic AREFic AREFic AREFic
31 December 2022 —EZZfF
+=A=+—-8
Assets as per balance sheet EEEBRMIEE
Trade and bills receivables and EWE 5 REBRIE R
financial assets at FVOCI (Note 74) BEATEF=AHES
FPAEMEE KA
SREE (H5t14) - 380,615 1,363,146 1,743,761
Derivative financial instruments TESmIA
(Note 22) (Htat22) 99,353 — — 99,353
Deposits and other receivables B & R&EH R BR X
(Note 15) (Htatis) — — 613,898 613,898
Long-term receivables (Note 15) R EARE W AR AR
(Hfet15) - — 146,000 146,000
Pledged bank deposits and cash and B EIFRITHER K
cash equivalents (Note 16) ReERBFELZED
(Htetie) - — 2,580,068 2,580,068
Total Fob 99,353 380,615 4,703,112 5,183,080
31 December 2021 —E-—fF
+=A=+—-8
Assets as per balance sheet EEEBRIEE
Trade and bills receivables and EWE 5 REBRIE R
financial assets at FVOCI (Note 74) BATEF=AHE
FPAE M EE KA
SREE (H5t14) = 299,848 1,719,812 2,019,660
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA
(Note 22) (Htat22) 55,653 = = 55,653
Deposits and other receivables & R&EH R BR X
(Note 15) (Htatis) = = 249,163 249,163
Long-term receivables (Note 15) R AR W AR AR
(Hfet15) = = 292,000 292,000
Pledged bank deposits and cash and B #EIFRITER K
cash equivalents (Note 16) ReERBFELZED
(Htitie) = = 2,695,709 2,695,709
Total 4aEt 55,653 299,848 4,956,684 5,312,185
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

12. ZERESNEMTAE)

Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
FVPL amortised cost Total
RAFETA R 8H AR A
BaRr SlERZ
-8R SRIAE et
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBFor AREFr AREFr
31 December 2022 —E-F
+=—RA=+—H
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBRMIEE
Supply chain financing (Note 20) HIEE R & (f1 52 20) — 549,041 549,041
Borrowings (Note 21) BB (HeF21) — 8,543,372 8,543,372
Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) #1444 Rt T A
(Kiat22) 142,054 — 142,054
Trade and bills payables (Note 25) ERE S REERIE
(K1at25) — 4,597,463 4,597,463
Accruals and other payables excluding TEIRE R KA MER
deposits and statutory liabilities BER(TefEke Rk
(Note 26) SEEBE)(Hit2e) — 551,927 551,927
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEAE (H79) - 314,382 314,382
Total #5t 142,054 14,556,185 14,698,239
31 December 2021 —E-—F
+=—H=+—H
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBRMIEE
Borrowings (Note 21) BE (H7721) = 7,215,039 7,215,039
Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) $T4 4RI T A
(Kt7E22) 165,975 — 165975
Trade and bills payables (Note 25) ENE S REERE
(Bt5t25) = 4,576,337 4,576,337
Accruals and other payables excluding TEIRE R REAMEMNRER
deposits and statutory liabilities K(TBRERS KA
(Note 26) E R &) (Hit26) = 413,985 413,985
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBE HF9) = 114,249 114,249
Long-term payables (Note 23) REAETBRK
(Bt5t23) = 29,871 29,871
Total @5t 165,975 12,349,481 12,515,456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHEZ_—_F+-_A=t—HILFE

13. INVENTORIES AND PROPERTIES UNDER 13. EERBRERYE
DEVELOPMENT
(a) Inventories @) =®E

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB¥TFT AREFIT
Raw materials R AT 4,515,136 5,104,790
Work-in-progress 2 m 604,728 596,777
Finished goods BLAK o 3,075,127 1,559,827
8,194,991 7,261,394

Less: provision for write-down of B WREEERI#E
inventories to net realisable value FE B (604,886) (109,727)
7,590,105 7,151,667

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to
RMB16,420,861,000 (2021: RMB16,272,629,000) (Note 28).

In 2022, the Group made an inventory provision of
approximately RMB495,159,000 (2021: RMB16,177,000).
These amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in
the consolidated income statement (Note 28).

BHRAERANABEREANESE
A& 58 A AR #16,420,861,0007C
(ZZF=—%F : AR¥16,272,629,000
70 ) (P 7E28) ©

M-T = —F KNEBEFIRFSE
HBH AR #5495,159,0007C (— T ——
F o ARBI16,17700070) c ZE &
BEFTARA =R [ HEKAE
A (KEEE28) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

13. INVENTORIES AND PROPERTIES UNDER 13. FERBEDYE (&)

DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
(b) Properties under development (b) BERHYE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FTT AR T

Properties under development expected to TEH1& T Y2 & A

be completed: L
— Expected to be completed after more ~ — FEHR121@ A %
than 12 months TERK 340,796 235,113

Properties under development comprise: R Y EBIE

— Land use rights — T fF R 236,440 229,283
— Construction cost — B 104,356 5,830
340,796 235,113

As at 31 December 2022, land use rights of N-_E-_—F+—-_H=+—H &

REAMEH T ERAEAEARE
236,440,000 (ZZE = —F : AR
229,283,0007T) * HEHIPR A40E70
E o

RMB236,440,000 (2021: RMB229,283,000) were in
Mainland China with lease terms of 40 to 70 years.

As at 31 December 2022, land use rights with net book NZEBE-__F+_A=+—H" 8

value of RMB32,959,000 (2021: RMB27,130,000) is under
development, and the construction cost is
RMB104,356,000 (2021: RMB5,830,000). The remaining
land use rights with net book value of RMB203,481,000
(2021: RMB202,153,000) has not been constructed yet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_T-_—_F+-A=+—BILFE

14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at FVOCI

14.

BURESREBERBERRAFE
STEEESEHFARMEENE
MERMEE

(a) BRLAVEFEEESBFAHMR

ENER

Current

HRENEREE
2022 2021
—E-—4F
RMB 000 RMB000
AR¥FTT ARBTF T
380,615 299,848

Bills receivables held both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling of these assets are classified as
financial assets at FVOCI.

Trade and bills receivables

HEEANHAERER B EZE]
ERBNEBREESBREATE
AAEAREFHFARMEEEEN
TREE -

(b) EREZRRBERE

2022 2021
—=E_—— —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥F T ARETT

Trade receivables FEUE 5 FIE 1,090,423 1,293,965
Bills receivable U E B R IE 288,146 437,174
1,378,569 1,731,139

Less: provision for impairment AR EEE (15,423) (11,327)
1,363,146 1,719,812

As at 31 December 2022, included in the trade
receivables were amounts due from related parties of
RMB13,984,000 (2021: RMB31,428,000) (Note 38).

The fair values of trade and bills receivables
approximate their carrying amounts.

N—_E-_—_F+_A=+—H &

W Z 5 FRIB A B I e U B 5 7R
Hit AR 813,984,000 (ZF = —
F: AR%314280007T) (FiFE38) o

EWE S RRBEFBRZRA
HiRm{E -

FEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND 14. ERESZREBERERREATE
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI (Continued) STERHSHTAHMEZEKS
NWEeRmEE©)
(b) Trade and bills receivables (Continued) (b) EWEZREEREE)

AEERTEFBRAMESFZEE
H—®AB0HRKN  MXFEMBER
BEZEEHRA120BA - BKE S
MEEFE(BEEEREERE S
BiEH 2 3IR) IREE A B KRR

The Group generally grants credit terms of less than 90
days to its customers in Mainland China and 120 days
to its customers in other countries. The ageing analysis
of the trade and bills receivables (including amounts
due from related parties of trading in nature) based on

invoice date is as follows: I U
2022 2021
—E—-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FTT AREFr
Within 30 days 30 755,648 1,258,767
31 to 90 days 31290H 364,322 397914
91 to 180 days 912 180H 210,345 49,572
181 days to 1 year 181REIF 38,154 1,934
Over 1 year THF A E 10,100 22,952
1,378,569 1,731,139
Less: provision for impairment R EEE (15,423) (11,327)

Trade and bills receivables — net EIWE 5 Rk EHEFKIA

— FHE 1,363,146 1,719,812

HRAEEREEAILETS  #EK
B MEBRFRESETNERERR -

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
trade and bills receivables, as the Group has a large
number of customers.

B K BB O
AEERABEW B RELEANF
SECTDAERREEBE B
ARKE S REEFRARBEME
FEAANBHBRES -

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and bills
receivables.

FRREE S REEFARASEE
PrE RS B R - SMERER KA
REBRAOFBHENME

Information about the impairment of trade and bills
receivables and the Group's exposure to credit risk,
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk can be found
in Note 3.1.

174 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED KIUIEIBREEAR AT



= 8 M B RME (1)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_T-_—_F+-A=+—BILFE

14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND 14. EWEBESREBREREZATE
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI (Continued) AEAHSB ARMEE KRS
WEemEE©)
(b) Trade and bills receivables (Continued) (b) EWESREERE(E)
Impairment and risk exposure (Continued) WERRKEESO (&)
Trade and bills receivables are denominated in the EUE 5 R EIEFRIBIE AT E A
following currencies: & :
2022 2021
=== —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT AR TFor
usD X 956,910 1,031,282
RMB AR 361,761 550,804
VND MEE 52,996 68,558
HKD ETT 2,538 80,495
Others Hfb 4,364 —
1,378,569 1,731,139
Movements of the provision for impairment of trade EWE S RBEFIAREREZS
and bills receivables are as follows: (I N
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FT AR TFT
At 1 January n—H—H 11,327 15,077
Accrual/(reversal) of provision for FHR(BE) BKE S K
impairment of trade and bills B FIBRERE
receivables 22,400 (3,750)
Written off i &5 (18,304) —
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—8 15,423 11,327
The creation and release of provision for impaired 1% R R R B RE FE R IE B R R
receivables have been included in net accrual of TR CFRIE-—FBIAG

impairment losses on financial assets in 2022 and 2021.
Amounts charged to the allowance account are written
off when there is no expectation of receiving additional
cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying amount of trade and bills
receivables.

' imﬂé&ZﬂfﬁEﬂé}%% © B8
HIRBEM RSN R B - EEER
o 1 Bk B R TR A

RBEBH  AEEERHNZAE
ERRASEKE S REBEFIARE
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

EENCFEPER=1+—HILEE

15. AARIE  BE > HBERERER

RECEIVABLES AND LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES X £ HA B WUAR X
2022 2021
—E-= —T-—fF
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AR FT
Prepayments, deposits, other receivables FE{fFXIE - & & »
H {th F& W AR X
Value-added tax recoverable FERIEER 433,356 390,317
Receivables from return of prepayments of  FE{ 2% & 1R [B] fE U BR 7k
equipment (Note (b)) (Kratm)) 222,000 —
Due from related parties (Note 38) FEUR RS sRIE (H15#38) 150,141 52,717
Receivables from disposal of subsidiaries Bt /8 1 A 5 B AR 3K
(Note (a)) (Htet @) 146,000 186,764
Prepayments for purchase of raw materials BB RME R TR I8 136,732 214,327
Prepaid income tax AT TSR 79,763 1,997
Deposits Ze 49,482 12,231
Prepaid expenses TR 2 29,826 35,013
Rental income receivables from investment & &% & U A FE UL
properties BR X 22,233 —
Other receivables H th & W BR K 57,076 32,074
1,326,609 925,440
Less: provision for expected credit loss B BEEEBERE
(Note (c)) (Bfet(c) (33,034) (34,623)
value-added tax recoverable impairment FERIGET R (E
(Note (c)) (B17Z(c) (18,804) —
Prepayments, deposits, other receivables TERTFIE - e REM
— net & Ui BR BT AR 1,274,771 890,817
long-term receivables REEBERR
Receivables from disposal of subsidiaries B /B8 A B H 65 FE Y BR 3R
(Note (a)) (Ktit () 146,000 292,000
The fair values of deposits and other receivables approximate Re REMERERRN AT EELRE

their carrying amounts.

BHEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, OTHER 15. ARIE &€ >  HMEWERER

RECEIVABLES AND LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
Note (a):

On 5 November 2021, share transfer and assignment of loan
agreement, was entered into between the Company as the seller and
Sinowin Holding (H.K) Limited (the “Purchaser”) as the purchaser for
the sale and purchase of the entire issued share capital of Great
Triumph Investments Limited (the “Target”), a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, together with the assignment of loan and
dividend payable to the Company at the total consideration of
RMB810,387,000. The consideration for the disposal of the equity
interest is RMB130,950,000, the consideration for the assignment of
the dividend payable to the Company is RMB68,571,000 which shall
be payable by the Purchaser to the Company within 12 months from
the date of the framework agreement, and the consideration for the
assignment of the loan payable to the Group is RMB610,866,000,
which shall be payable to the Group with four instalments with
interest of 5% per annum, and the last instalment will be on
1 December 2024. And as a security for the payment of the
consideration for the assignment of the loan, it was also agreed that
the equity interest for some subsidiaries of the Target shall be
pledged in favour of the Group until such consideration has been
fully paid.

As at 31 December 2022, the current and non-current portion of the
consideration outstanding were disclosed as other receivables and
long-term receivables amounting to RMB146,000,000 (2021:
RMB146,000,000) and RMB146,000,000 (2021: RMB292,000,000)
respectively.

On 31 December 2021, the Group transferred 55% equity interest of
Treasure Reap Limited and its subsidiaries to Hualida Vietnam (Quang
Ninh) Investment Management Co. Ltd with the consideration of
RMB40,764,000, which was disclosed as other receivables, and
received in May 2022.

The net proceeds received on disposal of subsidiaries in 2022 were
RMB186,764,000 (2021: RMB108,734,000). The net gains on disposal of
subsidiaries in 2021 were RMB33,702,000.

Note (b):

All the receivables from return of prepayments of equipment have
been received by the Group between January 2023 and March 2023.
Note (c):

In 2022, the Group made an expected credit loss and value-added

tax recoverable impairment of RMB33,034,000 (2021: RMB34,623,000)
(Note 3.1) and RMB18,804,000 (2021: nil) respectively.

RERHEBWERR (&)

Hti @) -

R-ZBE-——F+—AHA  AREHEAETHHE
BRIER(E8)BRARMEAES [EHF D
BEELEREARAB(BERAR]  ARQF
HE2EMBAR) 2HEBITRANALEZ
BREEMERETARNR  sIuBROEERE
REEBE - BRERARYS10,387,0007T °
HERENNRE A AR 130,950,000 @ &
ERARRREMNNREARARKE8571,0007T
BHEHPIER B PET+ @8 "RmA
DRSS - BEERNAEBMEZRNREAAR
#5610,866,0007C * BH U AL E - FF|
ER5% mE—HAZT_NF+=A—H-
AN - fEABEREEREMN KR - Hutin
FEZEEARETHBARNBRELRFA
@ EEBEAREBRH G AL -

RIZE-—F+-A=+—0 AIZREHN
BUEASE 5 & FERNEER 5 53 Bl 4% 5 A H 4 FE UK BR
% K HR e UBR SR R #5146,000,0007T (=&
— — & AR%146,000,0007T) & A R &
146,000,0007C (ZF = —4F : AR¥292,000,000
JL) °

RZE-Z—F+-A=+—0 KEEHLEE
AR A A N E KB A R)55%) A8 E T A
EUE(BER)RETEERAR  REAAR
#40,764,0007C + BEAHMERERITN =T
——FHAWEGLER -

RZZ=Z=F - HEMBARKEAATERIE
SRE A ARE1867640007 (CE-—F: AR
#£108,734,0007T) e R=T=—4F - HEMBR
Al F 58 A A R #33,702,0007T ©

HtaEm) -
AEBER - _=F—A&=-_FT-_=4=A4
U B 2R & IR [0 3% TE A FOB M FT  FEURGROE -
Bt -
RIZZEZZF - AEBEH R REHREEESE
K e RIS ERRE AR 33,034,000 (ZF =

—&F : ARM34,623,0007T) (Mf3E3.1) R AR
188040007 (Z B - —4 : &) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

16.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

EEARTERUARRERRE
ZEY

2022 2021

—E-= —T-—fF

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥T T AREFr

Pledged bank deposits BHEPRITFR 111,647 190,302
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY

— Cash at bank and in hand — RITRFEES 2,468,421 2,505,407

2,580,068 2,695,709

As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits with net book
amount of RMB104,179,000 (2021: RMB170,000,000),
RMB757,000 (2021: RMB6,367,000), RMB6,010,000 (2021: nil)
and RMB701,000 (2021: RMB13,935,000) were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s bills payable, guarantees for utilities,
bank borrowings and construction projects, respectively.

Pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

R-ZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H EEFE
DR A ANR 104,179,000 (ZF = —
F: AR#170,000,0007T) * AR
757,000 (Z T = —F : AR¥6,367,000
7T) - AR #6,010000T(ZF = — 4 :
)N ARE701,000 (ZTE=—4F : A
R#13,935,00070) WIRITIFREAEE R -
DREAREE RN EEFKIE  BIR
B SRITIEE A RESLIEE 2B G -

ERERRTEIUAERS LR EEY
BIATE®¥EHE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ETFTT ARMFT

RMB AR 1,385,664 1,109,919
usD ETT 989,224 1,155,426
VND W E 142,272 370,843
HKD BT 44,648 53,168
European Monetary Unit (‘EUR") BOM &k B ([BoT]) 5,519 2,070
Others Hfb 12,741 4,283
2,580,068 2,695,709

Majority of the cash and cash equivalents are deposited with
banks in Mainland China and Hong Kong. The conversion of
the RMB denominated balances into other currencies and the
remittance of funds out of Mainland China are subject to the
rules and regulations relating to foreign exchange controls
promulgated by the Mainland China Government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

17.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

17. BARRBEE

Number of shares Ordinary shares

KRGO E ZER
(thousands) HKD000
(FAz) FET
Authorised: JARE
Ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each EREEIBALZER
At 31 December 2021 and 2022 RZEZ—FK
—E-—F+—-A
=+—H 4,000,000 400,000
Number of Ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
igvig 4| ZER ROEE #at
(thousands) RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(FiR) AREFir AREFIT AREFTT
Issued and fully paid: BEEITEBRE
Ordinary shares of HKD0.1 each SR E{H0.1}8 T
EER
At 31 December 2021 and 2022 RZEBEZ—FK
—=E-—
+=A
=t+—H 918,000 96,958 462,059 559,017

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=-—HF3% 179



e MR E (18)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B

BT P A=ST—HIESRE

18. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 7 April 2014,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (“the Share
Option Scheme”), which will remain in force for a period of 10
years up to April 2024. A nominal consideration of HKS$1 is
payable on acceptance of the grant of an option. The
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group from time to time
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the ordinary share of
the Company in issued from time to time.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, share options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 5,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company were granted to two executive directors of the
Company on 23 March 2015. The subscription price is HKD8.7
per share. 1,670,000 share options are exercisable over the
period from 1 January 2016 to 22 March 2025, 1,670,000 share
options are exercisable over the period from 1 January 2017
to 22 March 2025 and 1,660,000 share options are exercisable
from 1 January 2018 to 22 March 2025. On 28 December
2015, share options to subscribe for an aggregate of
1,500,000 ordinary share of the Company were granted to one
executive director of the Company. The subscription price is
HKD5.7 per share. 300,000 share options are exercisable over
the period from 1 January 2017 to 27 December 2025,
300,000 share options are exercisable over the period from
1 January 2018 to 27 December 2025, 300,000 share options
are exercisable over the period from 1 January 2019 to
27 December 2025, 300,000 share options are exercisable over
the period from 1 January 2020 to 27 December 2025 and
300,000 share options are exercisable over the period from
1 January 2021 to 27 December 2025. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the above
options in cash.
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18. URGHBERMN

i AR RE A 2
BRER-_Z—NFNUNALtHBRBZER
SRERZE - RN BN —IEERAETE (88
AT REBEZ_F_MFmA I+
T FEAEAE DB AR o BRE L ERER
ENHEERERIET - EEREE
T 7N 62 [ A1~ B R 400 B0 F ] L i B AR R 5T
AT AR OB FTEEREETE
NFeera TERITHRNEB B ST S
BARRA]DEE /T EHARAIZ0% ©

BIEERETE AR _ZE—RHF=
BA-+=ZBEMBARA ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ
& 0] 288 5,000,000 A% R A &) i A% £ S
h%o%%ﬁ%tkwﬁnn1wwwﬁ
BREINR -_ZE—A"F—HA—HE_Z
“RAF=ZA -+ - HHME1T6 ;1,670,000
HEREIIR_ZT—tF—A—HZEZ
= Sy R E%ﬁﬁﬁ'&
1,660,000 ERERT R =T —NF—A—
Ei:g—ﬂifﬁ—+—5%ﬁﬁﬁ
RAARKR-_ZE—RHF+_A=-+/\HRA
—%$’Tﬁﬁ§$%mmA R
1,500,000 A A A EBEAR A B AR IE - REE
Lﬁthw%m 300,00015 B A% # AT 1A

—+F—HA—HE_ZT-_AF+=
H +t5%ﬁﬁﬁ 300,00015 B P& A]
RZE—N\F—H— Ei_g_ﬂfﬁ"”
Z A=+t HHRETE 30000017 B8 AR AE
AIR-—Z—NF—A—HBE-_ZT_AF
+= B =+t B HRETTE : 30000013 %
BAR-_ZE-_ZTF—HF—HE-ZT_A
F+=Z A=+ BT K%300,0001
BREIR T -_—F—AF—H=_%
“RAF+ A=+ tBHHETE - AEE
WHEETKETEEARCEONEE
Lt ARaE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHEZ_—_F+-_A=t—HILFE

18.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of options granted on 23 March 2015 was
determined using the Binomial Option-Pricing Model. The total
fair value of these options at grant date was RMB17,154,000,
and no administrative expenses was charged as all the
options have been vested.

The fair value of options granted on 28 December 2015 was
determined using the Binomial Option-Pricing Model. The total
fair value of these options was RMB3,171,000 and no
administrative expenses was charged as all the options have
been vested.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

18.

Vol

LB AEERSRE)
BRESTE (&)
R-ZEBE—FRE=A-_+=AFL2ER
HZAFEDRA-_EAHETEER
BT HWEERENRTEBEZATES
A ANRE17,1540007C ¢ i B R FTE B
REEE FE - WENTHRFE R -

R-ZE—RE+_A-_+t/\BEHZE
BEZAFEDRA ZBEANRREEER
NETE - WEBRECAFERLREAEAR
#53,171,0007C ©+ BARFIB BIREEE &
B WERITIERE K o

RITEBRESE M EARINEFH1T
EEZEBMT

2022 2021
—E-CF T4

Average Average

exercise exercise
price in HK$ (oL price in HKS Options
per share (thousands) per share (thousands)
BRET B R R BRETT fE AR i
Fi9ITEE (F4) RRskEiEdE (F1%)
At 1 January R—A—H 8.27 3,500 8.01 6,500
Exercised 21718 — — 7.70 (3,000)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 8.27 3,500 827 3,500

Out of the 3,500,000 outstanding options (31 December 2021:
3,500,000), 3,500,000 options (31 December 2021: 3,500,000)
were exercisable as at 31 December 2022.

R—ZE-_=—_F+=-A=+—8" &
3,500,000 RITEHERE (T = —F +
—A=+—H :3,500,00013) # - 3,500,000
nERE(CE_—F+=HA=1+—8:
3,500,00017 ) AJ {THE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

19. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

19. HitEERAREEF

(a) Other reserves (a) HftEE
Transactions
Share-based with non-
Capital  compensation Statutory Revaluation Translation controlling
reserve (i) reserve reserves (ii) reserve reserve interests Total
URABRER FiEhlt
X {(] BEEE  REREG) L4 EifE BERS @it
RMBO0O RMBOOO RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBOOO RMBO0O RMBO0O
AREFT  AREFr  ARETr  ARETT  AREFr  AREFr  ARETrT
At 1 January 2021 RZ2--§-f-H 162,041 21429 560,404 224884 (9328) (17,120) 942310
Shares issued upon exercise of share  {T{FEBARER B1TRE
options — (9,284) — — — — (9,284)
Transfer to statutory reserves BETETRHE - - 105,679 - - = 105,679
Currency translation differences ERBEEE - - - - (1.838) = (1839)
Transfer fiom revaluation reserve to ~~ SHEFEMMEMRRHIE
retained eamings for buildings BRERBET
revaluation
— Gross — 8% - - - (11.279) - - (1.279)
— Deferred income tax (Note 24) — BREMEH
(Hratz) = = = 2575 = = 2575
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR = - (73:435) (47,194) - — (120629)
At 31 December 2021 RZB--%+2A
==F 162,041 12,145 592,648 168,986 (11,166) (17,120) 907,534
At 1 January 2022 R-B-—f£-HF-H 162,041 12,145 592,648 168,986 (11,166) (17,120 907,534
Transfer to statutory reserves BREEERE - - 27,137 - - - 27,137
Currency translation differences EWREER - - - - 41,121 - 41,121
Surplus on revaluation of buildings BT EfE R
— Gross — 8% - - - 8,198 - - 8,198
— Deferred income tax (Note 24) — BRAEH
(Hrzt24) - - - 23,662 - - 23,662
Transfer from revaluation reserve to ~ SLEFEfMERREE
retained earnings for buildings BEREREET
revaluation
— Gross — 8% - - - (10,097) - - (10,097)
— Deferred income tax (Note 24) — BRAEH
(Hrzt24) - - - 2,293 - - 2,293
At 31 December 2022 RZFZZ%+ZA
E=FH 162,041 12,145 619,785 193,042 29,955 (17,120) 999,848
Notes: Haz -
(i) The capital reserve represents the difference between 0) EAREFEIED BTRAESEER

the amount of share capital issued and the net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired under a group
reorganisation in 2004.
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19. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(Continued)
(@) Other reserves (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(b)

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the
Company's subsidiaries established and operated in
Mainland China are required to appropriate a portion of
their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior years' losses)
to statutory reserves, at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors. Such transfer is not
required when the amount of the statutory reserve
reaches 50% of the corresponding subsidiaries’
registered capital.

Statutory reserves shall only be used to make up losses
of the corresponding subsidiaries, to expand the
corresponding subsidiaries” production operations, or to
increase the capital of the corresponding subsidiaries.
Upon approval by resolutions of the corresponding
subsidiaries’ shareholders in general meetings, the
corresponding subsidiaries may convert their statutory
reserves into registered capital and issue bonus capital
to existing owners in proportion to their existing
ownership structure.

Retained earnings

-
< N

19. HitEBERARE RN @)

(a)

(b)

Huf#s (E)

Kt - (&

(i) REPBEREBEMGZBG - AQ
BIEF B AR A E 2 B
NRIBRESHESSMERZ
LE ) - 4R B — B0 9 bR B 1R 0R A
(CESHBEFEBRE) BETH
EoMEATRENSHEDERR
B BB R B FE & AR AY50% Bl
EIEL MK

VA TE {7 4 12 7T A 5O 4 8K AR BE B I8
REEIE - EFEAARNE QR AL
FE AR & 33 0 AR B Y 1 R B
Ao BESIAMMNE A RRER
BERARE EPUREREB - 106
P I8 2 B B AT o ELE SE R fs BB 4
RUREM AR - WIRIR A RR B+
P EE 19 1) 15 2 B AT AT AR ©

R B i Rl

2022 2021
—s-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT AT
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 8,571,719 6,390,471
Profit for the year FERF 156,808 2,685,170
Transfer from revaluation reserve to mEARBERSE
retained earnings R &
— Gross — #F 10,097 11,279
— Deferred income tax (Note 24) — BIEFTIS
(Hfat24) (2,293) (2,575)
8,736,331 9,084,345
Dividend relating to 2021/2020 —E=— /T FF
il ¥5) (447,492) (150,461)
Dividend relating to 2022/2021 B - —F
il ¥5) (318,944) (377,115)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A A — 120,629
Transfer to statutory reserves RS E T EE (27,137) (105,679)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 7,942,758 8,571,719
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20. SUPPLY CHAIN FINANCING 20. HEEME
2022 2021
—EB-—fF —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT AREFT

Current B &A

Guaranteed (Note (a)) EER(MZE) 426,093 —
Unguaranteed EER 122,948 —
549,041 —

Note: Kt -

(@  Supply chain financing of RMB426,093,000 (2021: nil) were @ MN-TE-_—F+-A=+—8 - HEHE
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 A AR 426,093,000 (ZFE=—%F:
December 2022. m)EREBETHEARER -

The carrying amounts of the supply Chain Financing are HEEBRENREEUARESE -

denominated in RMB.

At 31 December 2022, the Group's supply chain financing R-E-_—_F+-_A=1+—H KEEHD

were repayable within 1 year. HIEEREAM FEANEE -

21. BORROWINGS 21. BE&
2022 2021
—E-C—fF — T
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT ARBFT
Current BN &R
Unsecured bank borrowings R IRIRITIEE 36,799 339,943
Secured bank borrowings (Note (a)) EEMRITEE
(Mit(@) — 40,000
Other bank borrowings (Note (b)) HEMiR{TEE
(Htet b)) 5,118,359 3,451,719
5,155,158 3,831,662
Non-current Ik B AR
Unsecured bank borrowings EERIRITEE 330,521 263,087
Secured bank borrowings (Note (a)) BEBRITEE
(K7t () 205,771 —
Other bank borrowings (Note (b)) HaiR1TEE
(Ktzz®)) 2,851,922 3,120,290
3,388,214 3,383,377
Total borrowings BEE#E 8,543,372 7,215,039
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

21. BORROWINGS (Continued) 21. BE &)

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of RMB5,771,000
were secured by the pledged bank deposits with amount of
approximately RMB6,010,000 (Note 16).

As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of RMB200,000,000
were secured by entitled export tax rebates to be collected.

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings of RMB40,000,000
were secured by the Group's properties and land use right
with net book values of approximately RMB164,427,000 (Note
7) and RMB34,388,000 (Note 9), respectively.

(b) Other bank borrowings of RMB7,970,281,000 (2021:
RMB6,572,009,000) were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of
the Group as at 31 December 2022.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

Hiaz -

(@)

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 - R17&
B AR®S5,771,0007T A4 B A R
6,010,0007T (M 5E16) B B IR IB1TIFE K
{EIEIR -

R-ZBE-_—F+=-A=+—8 ' R17&
B A R #200,000,0007T A B # W ER )
CER B o

R-ZB-——F+=-A=+—8 " Ri7&
B AR 40,000,000 7T A K £ B REEFE
D BI#) B AR #164,427,0007T (M 5£7)
B AR #34,388,0007T (F7E9) B9 % &
T Hb{E AR E R -

R-_ZE-—F+-_H=+—8 HMR
ITEE ARY7,970,281,0007T (ZF = —
£ AR#6,572,0090007C) HAEEE
TFHIB R RVESER -

EENREERATERE

2022 2021
:g: — = —

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB¥FT AR TF T

RMB AR 3,495,201 2,274,571

HKD BT 2,597,559 3,043,207

usD ETT 2,444,841 1,897,261

Australian Dollar (“AUD") SBAFITE T (DRIT]) 5,771 —

8,543,372 7,215,039

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=-—#F3% 185



SR B ()

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ende&-31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—_F+-A=1+—RHILEFE

21. BORROWINGS (Continued)

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum are
as follows:

Bank borrowings RITEE 2.2% 3.9%

1. B8 @)

EFHERFENRMT

2021

usp RMB HKD
XL AR®  Ex

2.5% 0.8% 1.4% 4.0% 1.3%

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

W=F-—F+-A=+—0  A%EfH
EERBTBIT -

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥TFT AT

Within 1 year 1R 5,155,158 3,831,662
Between 1 and 2 years 12246 2,323,407 1,783,962
Between 2 and 5 years 2&E54F 1,064,807 1,599,415
8,543,372 7,215,039

The fair values of the borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts as at the balance sheet date, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The Group has undrawn borrowing facilities of approximately

RMB2,299,757,000 (2021: RMB2,624,561,000). These facilities are
subject to review at various dates during 2023.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities during years 2022 and 2021.
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HRTHRZ BT RE  REER - &
EZAFEEEKEERES -

AEBADACEERERNDARE
2,299,757,000c (ZE = —F : AR
2,624,561,00070) ° ZERMEBN T ==
FAREAHPESER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_T-_—_F+-A=+—BILFE

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

22. (TE€®MIA

2022 2021
—E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Assets: EE ;
Cross currency swap contracts (Note (a)) R EE4
(ﬁ7nf&ﬂ) 66,000 3,725
Forward foreign exchange contracts (Note (b)) &= ERINE S X (72 (b)) 23,862 19,869
Cotton option contracts (Note (c)) TRICHAE S 4 (et () 7,096 29,874
Cotton future contract (Note (d) BIEHEE D (HiE @) 2,395 2,185
99,353 55,653
Liabilities: =
Forward foreign exchange contracts (Note (b)) & BiSNE & #) (ATaE b)) 131,991 2,056
Cross currency swap contracts (Note (a)) RYXEBEEREBREH
(Btit @) 10,063 160,921
Cotton option contracts (Note (c)) RIEEEE A (M) — 2,998
142,054 165,975
Non-hedging derivatives are classified as current assets or FEHHTET AN BEARBEENEE -
liabilities.
Notes: Biat -

(a)

(d)

The cross currency swap contracts as at 31 December 2022
comprised eight contracts with notional principal amounts
totaling RMB1,703,641,000 (2021: twenty-six contracts with
notional principal amounts totaling RMB3,490,612,000).

The forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31 December
2022 comprised one hundred and seventy-two contracts with
notional principal amounts totaling RMB6,743,389,000 (2021:
sixty-two contracts with notional principal amounts totaling
RMB902,208,000).

The cotton option contracts as at 31 December 2022 comprised
one contract with notional principal amount of USD2,897,000
(2021: nine contracts with notional principal amount of
USD66,069,000).

The cotton future contract as at 31 December 2022 comprised
one contract with notional principal amount of USD32,482,000
(2021: one contract with notional principal amount of
UsSD5,850,000).

(@)

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —%&

R-_E_—_F+-A=+—H XX&
BRBEOBEN\DERELASBEAA
R #1,703,641,000L 2 & (=T = —
F PR ELASRBAARE
3,490,612,0007C 2 & #)) °

F T__F+-A=+—H  =HH
AHBE—BEttTHEEASHE
EAE%W%%%WEZAWLJ;
—F AT ZNBRELSBERARYE
902,208,0007CZ & 4)) °

RZB-—F+-A=+—08 " }87EH
EEHNBIE—MHRELRSEF2897,000
ERAN(ZE_—F: ABEER
£ %8 566,069,000 TTZ B #)) °

R-ZE-—HF+-A=+—08  18itH
BEEHBE— ﬁ%%$i%%ﬂ%mm
ERTZEN(CE N E=E TN
%ﬁﬁﬁmww%nzAm>
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

23. LONG-TERM PAYABLES 23. REVEMNIERN

2022 2021
—E_CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR FT
No later than 1 year —F R — 30,726

Less: future finance charges on long-term B REERNERRZ
payables RRFEEE A — (855)
— 29,871

The present value of long-term payables is as KEJEMEER ZIRE

follows: (N
No later than 1 year —F R — 29,871
As at 31 December 2021, included in the long-term payables R-ZTE-—F+-A=+—8 EHER
were amounts due to third parties for purchasing machinery EXTEENBEMSERBREE=
and equipment with a carrying amount of RMB29,871,000. 7 EREE A AR 29,871,0007TH)FKIE ©
Details of the Group's exposure to risks arising from long-term BEASERKBAEMNEREXAAEERNRE
payables are set out in Note 3.1. B et 1B DA EES. ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHEZ_—_F+-_A=t—HILFE

24,

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred

income tax liabilities is as follows:

K

By

N

24. EEFREHR

BEMSEREERBELEMEHEEZD

Hanw -

2022 2021
—ES--F B —%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR%For ARETFT
Deferred income tax assets; RIEFBHEE
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — BE1I2EARBKE 2
after more than 12 months BT IBE E 119,076 54,893
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — 1218 A RE 2
within 12 months RERIEE & 223,038 68,805
Deferred income tax assets — gross BEFTSTAE — H45 342,114 123,698
Set-off of deferred income tax assets HIHELEFSHEE (36,497) (31,715)
Deferred income tax assets — net BEFBHEE — F58 305,617 91,983
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFMERHEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled — BBREAEINZ
after more than 12 months RIEFRIEEE (251,529) (304,985)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled — EREARTMNZ
within 12 months FEERIEEE (20,998) (13,212)
Deferred income tax liabilities — gross BEFSTAE — 45 (272,527) (318,197)
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities HIHELERSHEaE 36,497 31,715
Deferred income tax liabilities — net EEFMEHaE—F5 (236,030) (286,482)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

24. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 24, BEFRBH (&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FRREEMESREERBENE S (WE
during the year, without taking into consideration the ZRIKEERNE VAR AR AEER) A
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as ™
follows:
Deferred income tax assets; BEMBHEE :

Lease Temporary

Tax losses liabilities differences Total
BIEEE HEAE HRER Bt
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETIT ARETT AREFTT ARETTT

At 1 January 2021 N-_E_——%F
—H—H 22,685 31,849 65,786 120,320
(Charged)/credited (k) B
— to the consolidated — RiFAER
income statement (12,707) 1,390 2,597 (8,720)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) Uiz B B B8 A )
(H15t37) 12,098 = = 12,098
At 31 December 2021 MN-TE-—F
+=-—A=+—H 22,076 33,239 68,383 123,698
Credited B
— to the consolidated — Rz EE
income statement 142,432 144 75,840 218,416
At 31 December 2022 RIZE__F
+=-A=+—H 164,508 33,383 144,223 342,114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

24. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities:

24. EIEFFEH (&)

BELEFSHREALRE :

Fair value Withholding
adjustments tax
on assets relating to
relating to Full unremitted
business  Revaluation  Right-of-use deduction of earnings of
combinations  of buildings assets equipment  subsidiaries Total
BREK =l
etz F B2 A
BEZ RENEF
DNVERE BFER KRAEEE THINARE HEMB gt
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETT AREFT AEEFT
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F
—HR—8 104,219 58,010 30,608 — 130,430 323,267
Charged/(credited) mne/(8:2)
— to consolidated income — REGEkER
statement (8,965) (2,575) 1,107 — 15,737 5,304
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) Yt FEFI B 1A &)
(Hfit37) 15,494 = = = = 15494
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A (10,016) (15,852) — — — (25,868)
At 31 December 2021 R-BE-—F
+ZA=1+—8° 100,732 39,583 31,715 — 146,167 318,197
Charged/(credited) mne/(8:2)
— to consolidated income — REAKRER
statement (9,793) (2,293) 69 5,104 (15,095) (22,008)
— to other comprehensive income ~ — REME2E K — (23,662) = = = (23,662)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZZE——
+-A=+—H8 90,939 13,628 31,784 5,104 131,072 272,527

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2022, the Group did not recognise deferred tax
assets of RMB42,961,282 (2021: RMB50,680,727) in respect of

tax

losses amounting to RMB226,187,000

(2021:

RMB256,195,000) as the Directors believes it is more likely than
not that such tax losses would not be utilised before they

expire.

BEMSHEEDRAE 2B EEE
R WELAE RTREE 1B B 18 2 JE R Bl E FIl
REBRENZ=AR - NZTZ_F+=
A=+—H ZA5EEITEHXARE
226,187,000 (ZE=Z—F : ARK
256,195,0007T) ) £ 18 &5 18 fE RIE RE B 1R
BEARKE49061202TC(ZEZ—%F: A
R#50680,72770) ' REZESEHEEH
TRIAEBRA Al e E Em AT NEE A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

24,

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the tax losses with no deferred tax
assets recognised carries forward are as follows:

24. EEFREH (#)

B"_—\,__i‘f’ A=+—8 CHERL
EIREHIBEEE 2 RIBFELENT

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F ARKTFT

Year of expiry of tax losses MIBEEEREE
2022 —E-= — 432
2023 :%::i 2,451 2,451
2024 —E-OF 47,154 129,478
2025 —E-RF 57,531 57,836
2026 —E-RHF 67,875 65,998
2027 —EF 51,176 —
226,187 256,195
Deferred income tax of RMB2,293,000 (2021: RMB2,575,000) AER®2293000c(ZE=—F : AR

was transferred from other reserves to consolidated income
statement. This represents deferred tax on the difference
between the actual depreciation on buildings and the
equivalent depreciation based on the historical cost of
buildings.

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB131,072,000 (2021:
RMB146,167,000) have been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payables on the earnings of subsidiaries
when remitted to the Company. As at 31 December 2022, the
unremitted earnings of subsidiaries is RMB2,621,440,000 (2021:
RMB2,923,340,000). There are no unremitted earnings with no
deferred tax liabilities recognised (2021: nil).
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2,575,0007T ) B i FE FT 1S TRTJEEE{M%{%
ERTEAPENRER - MAREFHE
BT ERBRBEETFNEL KA EMNHE
EITE ZHHEZEMEERIE -

AEBE B A FEAKRD AR EF
EMNBENHRERECRESHAaBARE
131,072,000t (ZEBEZ—F : AR¥
146,167,0007L) c M —_ZE-_—_F+—-A =
+—H WBARKENENAAREK
2,621,440,000L (ZEZ—F : AR¥
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_T-_—_F+-A=+—BILFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

25. ENESREERKE

2022 2021
—ES--F B —4%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR#FT AR Fr

Trade payables FERTE 53R 562,329 1,433,658
Bills payable FERT EBR IR 4,035,134 3,142,679
4,597,463 4,576,337

As at 31 December 2022, included in trade payables were
amounts due to related parties of RMB20,288,000 (2021:
RMB25,111,000) (Note 38).

The fair values of trade and bills payables approximate their
carrying amounts.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables (including
amounts due to related parties of trading in nature) based on
invoice date is as follows:

R_ZE-_—F+_F=+—8 ENES
HEFRBRSEMNBEINTBARE
20,288,000t (ZEBE - —F : AR¥
25,111,0007T) (K 5E38) °

BNEZRZBFAZAFEEERE
BRE

RN E S RERSE (REEE SRR
SYWES 2 HE) REEEN BRSO
mF :

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥TT ARBFT

Within 90 days 9%0HA 2,873,836 3,801,252
91 to 180 days 91THZ=180H 1,695,273 750,893
181 days to 1 year EEESE:S 18,667 8,580
Over 1 year T1F A E 9,687 15,612
4,597,463 4,576,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ende&-31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—_F+-A=1+—RHILEFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 25. BENESREERIE &)
Trade and bills payables are denominated in the following EN B S REEFBRIATEEE :
currencies:
2022 2021
—B-—fF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARMFT AR FT
usb EP 2,811,221 3,322,273
RMB AR 1,574,544 966,214
HKD BT 123,741 7338
VND WA 60,432 268,499
EUR BT 23,496 5274
Mexican Peso (“MXN”) BEFER
(TEAEIFWR]) 4,029 6,739
4,597,463 4,576,337
26. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EREARHEMEMIER
2022 2021
—Zz_— —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ T AR FT
Payables for purchase of property, plant and BB E Y% - BENEREZ
equipment JE 1 BR 3K 295,091 198,605
Accrued wages and salaries FEET T & K % 282,420 400,966
Accrual of operating expenses R ERE 194,605 172,109
Tax payables other than enterprise income tax B FiIE (> TS
BN 49,796 88,628
Interest payable FERT RIS 11,250 4,705
Loans from a minority shareholder B—RIVERRCERK 10,000 —
Other payables E A FE T BR 3K 40,981 38,566
884,143 903,579
As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the carrying KRB F+_A=+—"HBHEKR_-_ZT—

amounts of the Group’s accruals and other payables
approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHEZ_—_F+-_A=t—HILFE

27.

Vol

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSSES — NET 27. Hs W ARHMEE — FH
2022 2021
—E_CHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ T AR Fr
Other income — net EMWA — F58
Subsidy income (a) HEEITA (@) 115,179 95,543
Rental income (Note 8) M WA (H7E8) 26,843 —
Depreciation of investment properties WEMENE (KiLs)
(Note 8) (18,970) =
Total other income — net At AREE — 558 123,052 95,543
Other losses — net EhEE — ¥
Gains on acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT B 2 R M
(Note 37) (Bt5t37) — 13,665
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 15) BB A Ak
(Ktst15) — 33,702
Financial assets at fair value through profit EAVEFABEEN
or loss TRIEE
— Realised gains (Note 35) — BRI
(Kt a£35) 27,741 —
Compensation for order cancellation BUHRT RS E 12,567 =
Derivative financial instruments at fair value R AF(EFF AEBZRH
through profit or loss: MEESFITA
— Realised losses (Note 35) — B#EEE
(Bfst35) (11,182) (133,302)
— Unrealised gains (Note 35) — REF W
(Kt a£35) 67,621 13214
Net foreign exchange losses — net 5 EsiE — ¥ 8
(Note 31) (Bt7E31) (162,354) (33,136)
Others Hth 30,847 20,443
Total other losses — net HihEiE4a%E — ¥ (34,760) (85414)

(a) The subsidy income was mainly related to incentives for
development in Mainland China provided by municipal
governments based on the amounts of value added tax and
income tax paid. The Group has received all the subsidy
income and there was no future obligation related to these
subsidy income.

(@ HEWATEARRENPEAMERA
ES A TBUTRERD MEEN RS
SREHZEE - AEEE WM HH
B - AR T EEEZ SR Z
RIREME »
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

28. EXPENSES BY NATURE 28. BAX (IBRMESHE)

2022 2021
—B-—fF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR FT AR FT
Raw materials and consumables used FEA R M B KO8 F i 17,944,112 16,898,906
Changes in inventories of finished goods and &K m R ERMTFEEE)
work in progress (Note 13) (B7at13) (1,523,251) (626,277)
Employment benefit expenses (Note 29) BEERAMAESZ (Fit29) 2,594,979 2,888,955
Depreciation and amortisation e REE W
(Note 7, Note 9, and Note 10) Htto Rzt 10) 1,010,080 1,037,556
Impairment charges on property, plant and ¥ % - BE K& &R E
equipment (Note 7) BR(#i77) — 57,202
Losses/(gains) on disposal of property, plant L EME  ME K& &XE
and equipment (Note 35) BB (W) (HiE35) 3,780 (1,394)
Office expenses EiNE 125,675 88,317
Utilities 8 KRR 1,528,920 1,541,231
Transportation costs JER )N 428,899 528,214
Auditor's remuneration Z BB &
— Annual audit services — FEBEZRE 3,500 4,300
— Special audit services — FRIE R 3,000 —
— Non-audit services — FEFZIR 1,335 780
Rental expenses for buildings, machinery and #BF - SR EMA S
others (Note 9) B (B1aE9) 27,842 4,195
Net accrual of provision for decline in value of 17 &R BB AT 12558
inventories (Note 13) (Btat13) 495,159 16,177
Other expenses H 608,140 639,090
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution SHERRA - $HE KD
costs and general and administrative AR —MRITEREAX
expenses Rk 23,252,170 23,077,252
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_T-_—_F+-A=+—BILFE

29. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES

29. BERABX

2022 2021
—E-—F —T_—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Wages, salaries and bonuses T& - M RIEsT 2,146,760 2,476,017
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  BKE KA — FEHR
and retirement benefits (Note (a)) T KRR T
(B 5t (@) 190,453 166,709
Other welfare benefits (Note (b)) H @Al (# 57 wm) 168,653 164,752
Other employment benefits H g BEF 89,113 81,477
2,594,979 2,888,955
(a) Pension costs — defined contribution plans and (a) EBHRERE — RAEHRRFERE
retirement benefits RERI
As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland ZRPE AR E'J&Ei‘ﬁ%ﬁi
China, the Group has participated in state-sponsored REBEAEFEAMES S HE
defined contribution retirement plans for its employees RE ) AT RFRIKET B o $E
in Mainland China. The Group and the eligible EREEWREEEDFIEERR
employees are required to contribute 13% to 22% and © BI13% 2 22% M 7% 2 8% 1F (T 4
7% to 8%, respectively, of the employees’ basic salary KGEIBLER)  LEBBBETBM
(subject to a cap) at rates as stipulated by the relevant BE - BRIEEFEHZIN - AEH

municipal governments. The Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable
to the retired employees. The employees of the Group
in Hong Kong join MPF Scheme, a defined contribution
plan. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group contributed approximately RMB118,956,000
(2021: RMB89,601,000) to the aforesaid state-sponsored
retirement plans.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Vietnam, the
Group contributes to stated-sponsored employees'’
social insurance scheme for its employees in Vietnam.
The Group contributes to the scheme at a rate of 20%
of the employee’s salary. The stated-sponsored social
insurance scheme is responsible for the entire
obligations payable to retired employees. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group contributed
approximately RMB58,288,000 (2021: RMB55,313,000) to
the aforesaid state-sponsored social insurance scheme.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in other countries
and regions, during the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group contributed approximately RMB13,209,000
(2021: RMB21,795,000) to the social insurance scheme of
other countries and regions.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —%&
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JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

29. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(b) Other welfare benefits

All of the Group’'s employees in Mainland China
participate in employee social security plans, including
medical, housing and other welfare benefits, organised
and administered by governmental authorities. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
contributed approximately RMB168,653,000 (2021:
RMB164,752,000) to these plans and the Group has no
further obligations for the actual payment of these
plans.

(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include two (2021:
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 40. The emoluments payable to
the remaining three (2021: one) individuals for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

(b)

(c)

29. EERAFEX (&)

H R
NEBMPARBEARNMHNFEREHZ
HEBSHSRENE - ZTEERE
AR REESINEENERE B
EREMER REBE_FT ==
+—A=+—HBLFE AEEH
il EF B A A R 5 168,653,000
TT(ZZE——F: AR¥164,752,000
o) MASEEHZEENER
R — S EAE -

AREHFMAL

REEE  AEBRAU RS HHA
TEAWAU(=ZF=—F : W) B
EF EMSRNKE4000MAR
Bm-BET_—_F+-A=1—
ALFERNTFHT = (ZF=
—F ) AT ZHENT

2022 2021

—E=—= B

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥ETF T AR TFT

Basic salaries and allowances HAFH & KERL 7,999 775
Bonuses 14T 4,634 4324
Benefit scheme contributions BRIET B3k 369 21
Other benefits H g 27 8
13,029 5,128

(d)  The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
except for the directors, whose emoluments have been
disclosed in Note 40, fell within the following bands:

(d)

BREE (HME 2 R0 EE)
S AfimEHFMALTZBMEN T
ATEE :

Number of individuals

A
2022 2021
—=== —E-—%F
Emolument bands B &5 [

HKD4,500,001 — HKD5,000,000 4500,0018LE
5,000,0007% 7T 1 —

HKD5,000,001 — HKD5,500,000 5,000,0017%& 7T &
5,500,000/ JT 1 —

HKD5,500,001 — HKD6,000,000 5,500,00178 7T &
6,000,000/ 7T 1 —

HKD6,000,001 — HKD6,500,000 6,000,001 T2
6,500,000/ 7T — 1
3 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_T-_—_F+-A=+—BILFE

30. FINANCE COSTS — NET

30. MIER— 8

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FiT AR Fr
Interest expenses FMERZ
— Borrowings — 55 364,426 195,620
— Long term payables — REIE R 855 5,895
— Lease liabilities (Note 9) — HEsEHH9) 10,183 5393
375,464 206,908
Net exchange losses/(gains) on financing B E B EAME R
activities (Note 31) BE (W) F58
(Kt7#31) 192,747 (39,656)
Less: finance costs capitalised in building and 3 : EAME R E - R
machinery in property, plant and KRB HIET Rk
equipment (Note 7) RO HE A
(Bt7t7) (63,607) —
Finance costs M%ER 504,604 167,252
Finance income — interest income on B TSR A — R1TIF 30
bank deposits A B U A (37,743) (44,589)
Net finance costs M5 ER S 466,861 122,663
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ende&-31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—_F+-A=1+—RHILEFE

31. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSSES)/GAINS 31. BXR (F8) KR FE
The exchange differences included in the consolidated RiFERRKRFTAZELZEBEAT
income statement are as follows: BHE
2022 2021
—E_CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ T AR FT
Net finance (losses)/income (Note 30) % (B518) AR &
(Kt7#30) (192,747) 39,656
Other losses — net (Note 27) H Al B8 % 88 (A2t 27) (162,354) (33,136)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains BE 3 (B518), W TR (355,101) 6,520
32. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 32. FT8Bi(IK%R) BAxX
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated RiFERERNBR SR SBOT ¢
income statement represents:
2022 2021
—E_— —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR T T AR FT
Current tax on profits for the year FEm Az BIAAF IR 210,397 584,511
Deferred income tax (Note 24) EIEFTIS T (HTaE24) (240,424) 14,024
(30,027) 598,535
(a) Hong Kong profits tax (a) BBFEB

Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to

REB T 2 M B R AER

profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%). 165% (=T = — 4 : 165%) 2 i &

BT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—_H+-_A=+—HLFE

32.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

(b) Mainland China enterprise income tax (“EIT”)

Effective from 1 January 2008, the subsidiaries
established in Mainland China are required to
determine and pay the EIT in accordance with the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the "New CIT
Law") as approved by the National People’s congress
on 16 March 2007 and Detailed Implementations
Regulations of the New CIT Law (the “DIR") as approved
by the State Council on 6 December 2007. According
to the New CIT Law and DIR, subsidiaries established in
Mainland China are subject to EIT at rate of 25% during

the year (2021: 25%).

As approved by the relevant tax bureau in Mainland
China, sixteen subsidiaries are entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15% during the year (2021: sixteen
subsidiaries are entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15%). Such preferential tax treatments require annual
assessment on meeting the stipulated conditions and
re-application to maintain the lower tax rate status

every few years.

(c) Vietnam income tax

The income tax for the major subsidiaries in Vietnam

are as below:

As approved by the relevant tax bureau in Vietnam,
subsidiaries established in Vietnam are entitled to four
years' exemption for income taxes followed by nine
years of a 50% tax reduction, based on the income tax
rate of 20% (2021: 20%), commencing from the first
profitable year after offsetting the losses carried forward
from the previous years, and are entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 10% for 15 years,
commencing from the first year generating income

from the operation.

The applicable tax rates for all subsidiaries in Vietnam
range from nil to 20% during the year (2021: nil to

20%).

32. A% (E&R) BX @)

(b)

(c)

FERESEFRER ([DEFRE
Bl

B-EENF—F—HE  BFEH
WA 2 B A R] - BERBEEH
ARREAEGHR_ZFEZTLF=ZA+
NEBBZPECERSHE(H
PEMETE])  MEKRR=Z
THE+ - AANBHEZHDER
BRCREHE AR (TEHE A
8)]) BESHBRCERSH R
BT ERTE L R E i 48
8 R B AR S 2 B AR R
FRNEBMOCEMSHR HEA
25% (T = —4F : 25%) o

RABEAM AR R A - TX
KB A RN FERNEEZH15%H
BERE (ZZE=Z—F: T KB
NEERZFF15%NEEHRE) - it
BRREBRRBREFFHES
MEREGRN  WASREFEN
B AR BRIER B E

MR TS B

AN EZME QR ZFAER
T

KBEAERBRGERIE - EREK
VHRBARAEREEBTFE
HENEEZEEENFER X
720% ( —Z = —4F : 20%) B FT1SH:
FRE 2EMEHRNE  EBNAF
BRI EM RS ER  WHEERE
BEARAZEEFEREZER
FR8 R R 10%ZE + A 4F -

FRN - EHEOTEWNE QR AE
AR NFEEZE20%( T = —
G BTE0%) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_HFH-A=t+—HILFE

32.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

(d) Other income or profits tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly,
is exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income

tax.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the British
Virgin Islands were incorporated under the International
Business Companies Acts or the Business Companies
Acts, 2004 of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly,
are exempted from payment of British Virgin Islands

income tax.

The Company's subsidiary established in Macao is
subject to an income tax rate of 12% (2021: 12%). No
provision for Macao profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profit arising in or derived

from Macao during the year (2021: nil).

The Company’s subsidiary established in Uruguay is
subject to an income tax rate of 25% (2021: 25%). No
provision for Uruguay profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profit arising in or derived

from Uruguay during the year (2021: nil).

The Company’s subsidiary established in Cambodia is
subject to an income tax at the rate of 20% (2021:
20%). No provision for Cambodia profits tax has been
made as the Group had no assessable profit arising in
or derived from the subsidiary during the year (2021:

nil).

The Company'’s subsidiaries established in Nicaragua are
subject to income tax at the rate of 30% (2021: 30%).
As approved by relevant tax bureau in Nicaragua, the
subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from profits tax

during the year (2021: exempted).

The Company’s subsidiaries established in Samoa are
exempted from profits tax during the year (2021:

exempted).

The Company's subsidiary established in Turkey is
subject to an income tax at the rate of 23% (2021:

25%).
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PriS#

AARFBRPIAK S Z B AR BIE
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FTER - AR ASEBRNFERBEE
SB P E A SR AR P B BN JE AR AR i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

32.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

(d)

Other income or profits tax (Continued)

The Company's subsidiaries established in the United
States are subject to income tax rate within the range
from 27.5% to 30% during the year (2021: 27.5% to
30%).

The Company’s subsidiaries established in Mexico are
subject to income tax at the rate of 30% (2021: 30%).

The Company's subsidiaries established in Honduras are
subject to income tax at the rate of 25%.

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the
consolidated entities, as follows:

32. FifeBi (%) BIX (&)

(d)

Hifr 8RR EBH (&)

FR - ARBEEEKRLZHEA
AIBRN F275%E30% (=T = —
F 1 275%FE30%) Z TR AT E
i o

AKABERATHIY 2B R FIA
30% (- = —5F :30%) 2R
~ETBFL ©

ZAUNCIRE:S (ol D2 vl i) PN
RIR25% Z RN

N ER B B B 45 0 B v 1 A9 B BB AR
BEAREGRE BRI T
MEAFEZERSETR 22400
T

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FiT AR Fr
Profit before income tax, after excluding & B3 %1 Bilsa A (A& 40
share of profits of investments BR B (S ARE R A A BR
accounted for using the equity method ~ Z & EF)) 135,000 3,300,534
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ZiE AR BN B A A
applicable to profits of the respective i | = T
subsidiaries FAE IR (21,803) 616,736
Effect of income tax exemption FriSHishte v o & (47,582) (95.131)
Expenses not deductible for income tax  “NEEAFTSE B AR
purposes " E A 64,656 43,520
Tax losses for which no deferred income I £ &R IR T FT15 71
tax assets was recognised BEMTIAEE 7,555 14,469
Utilisation of previous unrecognised By BT KRR
taxable loss JERTLEE (15,372) —
Withholding tax relating to unremitted EEWERRAREN
earnings of subsidiaries BFH TR (15,095) 15,737
Others H Al (2,386) 3,204
Income tax (credit)/expense PSR %), FX (30,027) 598,535
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

32. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)
(d) Other income or profits tax (Continued)

10% withholding income tax is generally imposed on
dividends relating to any profits earned in PRC
commencing from 2008 to foreign investors, while for
some PRC entities held by companies incorporated in
certain places, including Hong Kong and Singapore,
preferential tax rate of 5% will be applied if such
companies are the beneficial owner of over 25% of
these PRC entities according to PRC tax regulations.

33. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

32. B (ER) B @)

(d) E#FERFEH (&)
PEREFEHEHIMRAEES
R=ZT)\F Rz (% BI A F B0
BB —RBIBI0EIRMEH - M
ShE THE (RIEEE KA ME) &
A% S22 2 R AT A 60 EL B8 )

= MRS R AR B2 B

il

Gl RS E T ERBNERS Y
EXEBAA BZH%NEER
}__%«__(o
33. BRER
(a) EHX

SRR R AR R T A
R DA IS B (T R R 2 A
FHBEH -

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F

Profit attributable to owners of KA RVHER AE G T
the Company (RMB'000) (AR%Fr) 156,808 2,685,170
Weighted average number of ordinary BT R INGE
shares in issue (thousands) T E (A FEF) 918,000 916,715
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) — SRR EARZF|
(FRAEET) 0.17 293
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

33. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 33. BREN#)
(b) Diluted (b) #E

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting SREERF T B RFARIEHITEI
the weighted average number of ordinary shares BT @R MNEFEHEEE - ARE
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive FrEE# sy 2 BrLEilkEs
potential ordinary shares. For the Company’s share BeRARBZERENS A2
options, a calculation is done to determine the number AIBREARITE BN 2 R
of shares that could have been acquired at fair value B2 E FTEEANRATE(E
(determined as the average annual market share price EARNRRRG ZFHFEME)
of the Company's shares) based on the monetary value WIEMRGOEE - st EmE2
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share & B mBRRERERITENE
options. The number of shares calculated as above is M BEETHRMDEE LE -

compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
Profit attributable to owners of RN EVHER AP =T
the Company (RMB'000) (AR®TFT) 156,808 2,685,170
Weighted average number of ordinary BT R INE
shares in issue (thousands) EEE (U FiET) 918,000 916,715
Adjustments for: HE
— Share options (thousands) — BERRHE (U FEF) 144 904
Weighted average number of ordinary BRESE RN 2 Bk
shares for diluted earnings per share INREFIaE (X F51)
(thousand's) 918,144 917,619
Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share) 15 % #E58 2 7|
(BRAREET) 0.17 293
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT_FFPTA=+T—HILFE

34. DIVIDENDS

The dividend paid in 2022 were RMB766,436,000 (2021:
RMB527,576,000), being HKDO0.95 per ordinary share (2021:
HKDO.70 per ordinary share).

34. RE

RIZZEZ_FELZNHNRESBAAR
#766,436000c(Z T =Z—F : AR
527,576,0007T) * B L@ A%0958 T (=
T —F: FREBRKROIOBIL) °

2022 2021
—E_CF T —F
RMB’000 RMB000
AEB%F AR F T
Final dividend for the year ended (ZEZT_—F+ZA=
31 December 2021 of HKDO.57 T—HIEFERARE
(2020: HKD0.20) per ordinary share FREBROS7TEIT
—EERF
020/ 7T) 447,492 150,461
Interim dividend for the year ended  E T - —F+ /A=
31 December 2022 HKDO0.38 T—HIEFERHRE
(2021: HKDO0.50) per ordinary share SR EBAZ038E T
—E - —4F:
0.50%7T) 318,944 377,115
766,436 527,576

No proposal of final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2022 has been made per ordinary share (2021:
proposal of final dividend of HKDO0.57 per ordinary share,

BE_ZT-_ S+ _A=+—HILFE"
BERSREBERBERRARE (2T
—F RERAREFREBRSTE

amounting to RMB427,817,000).

TG HAS R A AREEA427.817,0007T) ©

Proposed final dividend for the year ended

31 December 2022 of HKD nil
(2021: HKDO0.57) per ordinary share

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETFTT AR T
HE_T-_—_F+_H
=+—HIEFERE
REPRR SR T BB T
BL(ZE=Z—F:
0577 7T) — 427817
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItFE

35. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a)

Cash generated from operations

35. REREEHR

(a)

The reconciliation from profit before income tax to cash

REMEENRE

BR TS T ATS M R L T E A RIR

generated from operations is as follows: SHENT :
2022 2021
—=E—-= —T-—fF
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AR FT
Profit before income tax R B 45 5t Bl A1 171,159 3,340,151
Adjustments for: KR
— Amortisation, depreciation and —# WERRBE
impairment (Note 27 and Note 28) (Hiat27 RMTaE28) 1,029,050 1,094,758
— Share of profits less losses of — DL AERE
investments accounted for using ABRZIZE &
equity method B 18 (36,159) (39,617)
— Losses/(gains) on disposal of property, — HEWE - BE K
plant and equipment (Note 28) miEEE
(Wzs) (B 7E28) 3,780 (1,394)
— Net accrual of provision for decline in  — TFEREBE 2
the value of inventories (Note 28) TEIR)F R
(K1:E28) 495,159 16,177
— Accrual/(reversal) of provision for — EWE S FIBRE
impairment of trade receivables BE RS
(Note 14) (Bm)(Aet14) 22,400 (3.750)
— Accrual of provision for impairment of — FHR B FUE
prepayments, deposits and other e REMEK
receivables (Note 15) BRPOR BB
(Kiit15) 17,215 34,623
— Finance costs — net (Note 30) — UBEBER — F8
(K1#E30) 466,861 122,663
— Fair value gains on derivative financial — $TA & @ T HE &
instruments and assets (Note 27) BENTFEKZ
(Kiit27) (67,621) (13,214)
— Settlement on derivative financial — TESRTEEH
instruments (Note 27) (Kiit27) 11,182 133,302
— Settlement on financial assets at fair ~ — EAFEF ABES
value through profit or loss (Note 27) JeRMEBEELE
(Btzt27) (27,741) —
— Gains on disposal of subsidiaries — HEWEB AR — (33,702)
— Gains on acquisition of subsidiaries — BB A W — (13,665)
— Net exchange differences — BN EFEFE (168,679) 30,735
Changes in working capital (excluding LEELEY (IFE
the effects of exchange differences on BRE ZEHZFED
consolidation): BRI -
— Inventories —FE (933,597) (3,567,279)
— Properties under development — ERPYE (105,683) (6,433)
— Trade and bills receivables — RUREBHREE
IR 253,499 (280,822)
— Prepayments, deposits and other — BENRIE Eek
receivables A & Y BR 3K (44,742) (710,170)
— Trade and bills payables — BB RER
FIH 612,563 1,842,468
— Contract liabilities — AHBE 297,824 393,529
— Accruals and other payables — RIRBRAKEM
J& it ;R IR (132,467) 633,833
— Pledged bank deposits — BERRITER 71,431 (129,692)
Cash generated from operations KEMEEME® 1,935,434 2,842,501
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35. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 35. AEREBER#)
(a) Cash generated from operations (Continued) (a) REFRELENES(Z)

RiFARERER  HEWE K
FEREEAEHARRE

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment include:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥TFT ARBFT
Net book amount — property, plant and ~ BRE/FE — ¥ %
equipment (Note 7) W E K& (fat7) 467,610 1,279,915
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 15) HEMB AR (Mi15) — (1,224,432)
Receivables from sales or return of SHEE SR B R B TER K
prepayments of equipment T8 7 FE WG IE (227,991) —
(Losses)/gains on disposal of property, HEME  BE MEE
plant and equipment (Note 28) (BB), W=
(Btet28) (3,780) 1,394
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE  BEMEE
plant and equipment Fr1S 38 235,839 56,877
(b) Non-cash financing activities (b) FBEEHMETH
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Supply chain financing HERERE 549,041 —
Addition of right-of-use assets RNEGAREEE 250,042 17,169
799,083 17,169
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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(c)

35. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 35. REREER (4

Net debt reconciliation FELHE
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the AEFHINSE2NFERNFEED
movements in net debt for each of the years MRFEBES -
presented.

2022 2021

—E-—4F

Net debt RMB'OOO RMB000
FEK AR¥®FT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeEEY 2,468,421 2,505,407
Pledged bank deposits BHEBIRITF R 111,647 190,302
Supply chain financing HEERE (549,041) —
Borrowings BE (8,543,372) (7,215,039)
Lease liabilities HEAR (314,382) (114,249)
Long term payables RHEIETBR X — (29,871)
Net debt FETS (6,826,727) (4,663,450)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEEY 2,468,421 2,505,407
Pledged bank deposits BIEREITER 111,647 190,302
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BER — BEMEX (4,790,950) (2,231,410)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BEM — ZBF=E (4,615,845) (5,127,749)
Net debt FERS (6,826,727) (4,663,450)
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BE—_ZT_—_

35. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

FPEA=t+—HILFE

Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

35. RERBER @)
(0 FEBHERE)

Other assets

Liabilities from financing activities

HitEE RERMETH AR
Borrowings
Cash and Pledged and supply
cash bank Lease Long term chain
equivalents deposits liabilities payables financing Total
ek BEARST 4] RER
REeZEY BR HEAR ENES HEERE @t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB 00O RMB000 RMB000 RMB 00O
ANBEFT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Net debt as at 1 January 2021 RZZ=-§-A—-HHK
BEH 2,683,613 260,610 (185,745) (153912) (7,063,103) (4,458537)
Cash flows Leng (178,206) (70,308) 56455 124,041 (410,760) (478,778)
Acquisition of subsidiaries M B AR = = = = (370,300) (370,300)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR = = = = 589,468 589,468
Disposal of leases REMHE = = 15,041 = — 15,041
Foreign exchange adjustments SNERE = = = = 39,656 39,656
Net debt as at 31 December 2021 R-Z--%+=8
=+-BNFEYR 2,505,407 190,302 (114,249) (29871 (7215039 (4663450)
Cash flows Beng (36,986) (78,655) 60,092 30,726  (1,135,586)  (1,160,409)
Addition of lease liabilities RERERE - - (250,042) - - (250,042)
Accrued interest expenses EEF B FY - - (10,183) (855) - (11,038)
Supply chain financing HERRE - - - - (549,041) (549,041)
Foreign exchange adjustments ShEFHEE - - - - (192,747) (192,747)
Net debt as at 31 December 2022 R-ZE--f+=8
Zt-BHFES 2,468,421 111,647 (314,382) —  (9,092,413)  (6,826,727)
36. &I

36. COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date that have not
been incurred are as follows:

REHEAMEAFX (BREL) DT :

2022 2021
—s-= T4
RMB’000 RMB000
AR T T AR Fr

Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB REAE
Contracted but not provided for BT 4B KBS 706,762 1,142,477
Authorised but not contracted for BEREBKRITLD 532,240 1,314,408
Total capital expenditure commitments BRI AR B 1,239,002 2,456,885
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 37. ¥%86t

Acquisition of Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd.

Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries (the
“Nantong Textile Group”) manufacture and sell top-grade
textile products in PRC. The Group previously held a 48%
equity interest in Nantong Textile Group and the investment
in Nantong Textile Group was previously accounted for under
the equity method.

On 31 October 2021, the Group acquired the remaining 52%
equity interest in Nantong Textile Group from a third party for
a cash consideration of RMB58,035,000. Upon completion of
the transaction, Nantong Textile Group became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

The companies in the Nantong Textile Group are set out as

WEEBEGAEREEGARARAF
MANMBEREESBRAERARRE
MEBLR ((mESEEE) EHERE
WHERBHBER - ARBEANFKER
BA AR B 4% - REBMAEE
RE LA AR -

R-ZZBE-—F+A=+—8  A"EFEIKH
S REARES580350000E —HE=
W BN EER T 5200 - AR
S5EK%E  BRSHBEBRKAREE 2
BB AR -

MBMBEEZ AEEHINWT

follows:

Name of companies Place of incorporation Principal activities

NCIECE =t B 3L 3t B FTEEK
Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd. Nantong, Sales of top-grade textile products
Mainland China
PR EEREE S ELEER D E H B K B R HE =B EE R
Nantong Chongtian Spinning Co., Ltd. Nantong, Manufacturing and sales of
Mainland China textile products
FARERHHERDE H B K B R L& 35S 4 BE o
Nantong Tianlang Enterprise Management  Nantong, Enterprise management
Co., Ltd. Mainland China
ARRREEERARAA H B K B R PRER
Nantong Printing & Dyeing Textiles Import ~ Nantong, Trading of textile products
And Export Co., Ltd. Mainland China
FEBHAGBRELAERAR H B K B R BEEHBER

WiEEIS R E AR EREIRR - WIFR
HEABROBERHETE—&D -

The acquisition is expected to enhance the overall growth of
the Group and is undertaken as part of its plan to expand its
top-grade textile products offerings.
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 37. ¥¥&6t#)
Acquisition of Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd. KEEESBEREEGFBLERAT
(Continued) (%)

The details of the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities R ERE WEBR - BB EERFT
assumed at the acquisition date of the acquisition is AEAEATFEBE ZFBHMAT :
summarized on an aggregate basis as follows:

Fair value at
acquisition date

RUWE R~
A¥E
RMB000
ARBFT
Total purchase price is comprised of: HEEEARE:

— Cash consideration — HaRE 58,035
— Fair value of previously held equity interests — SERIFTFERE 2 A FE 44,953
102,988

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired FTBE TR EERFIAEEEZ

and liabilities assumed (100% of Nantong Textile CRRAELHE (FEHBERE100%

Group) )

Cash and cash equivalents RekB2EEY 65,889
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) Wz - BB NEE (A7) 370,310
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 58,447
Deferred income tax assets BEEFTSHEE 12,098
Inventories FE 70,402
Trade and bills receivables JEWE 5 Rk RIEFHIA 16,276
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTFIR R E R H M E YRR 20,096
Borrowings == (370,300)
Trade and bills payables BN E S REEKIEA (48,649)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE AR R H M ERKIA (84,217)
Income tax payables FERT ARG HR (1,203)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFTSHAE (15,494)
Total identifiable net assets ARG EEARTE 93,655
Goodwill (Note 10) & (fat10) 9,333
102,988

Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired REWEHNBARMNESRRESE
(=K 65,889
Consideration for acquisition settled in cash LATR & AR BB R (E (58,035)
Cash inflow on acquisition WS IR & 7,854
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37.

38.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Acquisition of Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd.
(Continued)

A gain of RMB13,665,000 in relation to the revaluation of the
previously held equity interest was recorded in ‘other losses
— net’ in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement
from 1 November 2021 to 31 December 2021 contributed by
Nantong Textile Group was RMB86,401,000. The Nantong
Textile Group also made profit of RMB12,068,000 over the
same period.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021, the
Group's consolidated pro-forma revenue and profit for the
year ended 31 December 2021 would have been
RMB26,833,632,000 and RMB2,686,188,000, respectively.

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those as defined under Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 24 and include key management of the
Group. General speaking, parties are considered to be related
if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group is controlled by New
Green Group Limited (incorporated in BVI), which directly and
indirectly owns 59.34% of the Company’s shares. The
remaining 40.66% of the shares are widely held. The ultimate
parent of the Group is Texhong Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman lIslands). The ultimate controlling
party of the Group is Mr Hong Tian Zhu, the chairmen of the
Group.

37.

38.

EBRa6t@)

WEEBEGAEREEGARARAF
(%)

FREMBERERENKEARE

13665000 LRt ABZ - T - —F+— A
T HLFEMNGEERERIEMEE
—FE|R -

Q—é__ﬁz"f’ A—HBE-_T—— ¢
+ZA=1+—8  :mBssEETEE
ZERABRERZROBRABARE
86,401,0007T ° 7 18 471 44 5= B 71 1A [B) AR 8%
58 F A R #12,068,0007C °

R T —F—F—H%4E - IR
EEEE—_T - —F+_A=1+—HILHF
ErGaEZERERTBEED B AARE
26,833,632,0007T & A FR#& 2,686,188,000 7T °

EHEBLINXS

BT RBB G ERE 24RAERE -
VEABRAEETEEERE - ABME -
MER—FTRRERIFEEES ST

EMBREERETAH S —HIEE
REEN  RIRR BT - HREFEZHK
FIEH] - TR SRR T o

MRZE-_—F+-_A=+—H K&EEH
New Green Group Limited (75 B iE & BY
S 5hl - HEERREREE R
DA 2 59.34% ° BR1A R T 2 40.66% 4%
BZ2RE AEBIERERAR
Texhong Group Holdings Limited (7B 2
BHEAMKL) - AEB 2 HEKEHT R
REBFERFHERIELE o
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38. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. HEBMAINXS (&)
The related parties that had business transactions with the BEALEEETEBIGNBEE TN

Group are as follows:

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

)y AN ARAF

Hualida (Vietnam) Garments Limited Company Associated company

FEHE (R REEEARAF] /NG|

Nantong Dasheng Third Cotton Textile Co., Ltd. Associated company

MBRE=RGBERAF /NG|

Henglun International (Hong Kong) Limited Associated company

BRER(EE)ERAF /NG|

Henglun Textile (Vietnam) Company Limited Associated company

8 AN EIERCNAN

EBimans (Bm) BR QA A WN|

Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence Technology Development Associated company
Co., Ltd.

IHRAEBEMRERARA /NG|

Hualida Thai Binh Garment Company Limited Associated company

EMERFREER AR /NG|

Treasure Reap Limited Associated company

LERRAA R /NC]

HLD (HK) Trading Limited Associated company

HLD (HK) Trading Limited NG

Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) Garments Company Limited Associated company

EMELE(BE)REEEERAF A WN|

Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock Company Joint venture

RALFE YR R F) BRELE

Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited A company controlled by the chairman of the Group
RIATHERBEABR AR HASEEFEMZESZA
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38. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

38. EHEB AR S (&)

Transactions with related parties (a) EHEBINXS
2022 2021
—s-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FT AT
Sales of goods HEEm
— Henglun Textile (Vietnam) Company ~ — B4 #h4% (#5)
Limited BRAF] 46,768 71,591
— Nantong Dasheng Third Cotton Textile — EI# K4 = 1845 4%
Co, Ltd. BRAF] 10,895 3,461
— Hualida (Vietnam) Garments Limited — EFE (GBE)
Company REZEEFRAR] 6,267 398
— HLD (HK) Trading Limited — HLD (HK) Trading
Limited 4,550 —
— Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) — EREFEWE (EE)
Garments Company Limited REZEEFRAR] 393 —
68,873 75,450
Sales of property, plant and equipment HEWMZE - BER&E
— Henglun Textile (Vietnam) — Bfmas (BE)
Company Limited BRAA 5,991 5,976
Providing/(withdrawing) shareholder loan 32 #t,($2E) i 3
B&
— Henglun International (Hong Kong) — BHRER ()
Limited BRAF] 72,631 (763)
— Treasure Reap Limited — EEBRAT 18,802 —
91,433 (763)
Purchases of goods EBEEM
— Nantong Dasheng Third Cotton Textile — FIi A4 = 12404
Co,, Ltd. BERAA 24,533 —
— Hualida (Vietnam) Garments Limited — FERE (BE) iR
Company EEBRAR 68 4
24,601 4
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38. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

38. HEBAENRS (&)
(a)

HEBATNRS (&)

2022 2021
—s-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Purchases of utilities BEEHHRME
— Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited — X4 T 2 & [&
AR AA 293,128 261,329
Purchases of services BB R
— Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock — K 4T #7497 A 1D
Company A 51,835 69,801
— Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited — K& T % & [& 5
BRRAA] 1,870 820
53,705 70,621
Purchases of land use rights BB T
— Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited — K& T % & & #5
BRAA] 226,313 —
Purchases of property, plant and BEME - WENEE
equipment
— Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited — X4 T & [& 55
AR AR 72,464 —

In the opinion of the Company's directors and the
Group’s management, the above related party
transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of
business, and in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements and/or the invoices issued by

the respective parties.
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38. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. HEBAOINXS &)
(b) Balance with related parties (b) EERAEETS HIAEER
2022 2021
—ZzT_— —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ T ARBFr
Trade receivables FEWE 558
— Henglun Textile (Vietnam) Company — B ()
Limited BERAA] 13,293 27,617
— Hualida (Vietnam) Garments Limited — FERE (BE) iR
Company EEBERAQA] 393 280
— Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) = fﬁ’ﬂitﬁ (B%E)
Garments Company Limited fREETHR
NG 297 =
— Nantong Dasheng Third Cotton Textile — EIiR A4 = 1240 4%
Co,, Ltd. BERARAF] 1 3,531
13,984 31,428
Trade payables FEE 5 5KIA
— Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited — %EII%. [
AR AR 18,655 15215
— Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock — XYL #7491 A5
Company N 1,202 8514
— Nantong Dasheng Third Cotton Textile — EI# K4 = 1845 4%
Co,, Ltd. BRAA] 431 —
— Hualida Thai Binh Garment Company — — ZEF3ZE K FiR#E
Limited AR AR — 1,382
20,288 25111
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFRIE © e REM
receivables FEJ%ZBE/TA
— Henglun International (Hong Kong) — EiHE IR (i@%)
Limited BRA 105,248 32,617
— Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence = 5I§§7(E§ﬁlé$4ﬁ
Technology Development Co., Ltd. %Eﬁﬁﬁ@ Al 20,100 20,100
— Treasure Reap Limited —E2EFRA 18,802 —
— Henglun Textile (Vietnam) Company E%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁk(t@)
Limited BRRAA] 5,991 —
150,141 52,717

The amounts due from related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

FEURBRRE T R IRREEH - T8

RILEREE -
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TO THE CON§OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

N For the.year ended 31 December 2022
<\/_ BE—_T -+ A=t+—HILFE
38. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. BEHEAM A MR Z ()
(c) Key management compensation () FEEHEEH M

2022 2021
—EB=-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥EFTT AR T
Salaries, wages and bonuses Fe TEREA 19,857 47,932

Pension costs — defined contribution BIKEHRA — AE
plan HRET S 735 599
Other benefits H M AE A 94 179
20,686 48,710
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39. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 39.

OF THE COMPANY

(a)

Balance sheet of the Company

(a)

FRAMNEERER

AARNEERERRERED

As at 31 December

N —_ =

2021
—E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB000
T Fr
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment %% - B N 573 19
Investments in subsidiaries iNCINEPNGIECE -y 4,126,252 4,125,927
4,126,825 4,125,946
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{J K18 « R $ K&
= {th 18 YT i 7K 315,255 310,605
Due from subsidiaries JE WK 1 188 2 B] BRI 1,783,878 3,302,828
Derivative financial instruments TETm T A 61,362 33435
Cash and cash equivalents RehBHeZEY 106,242 56,039
2,266,737 3,702,907
Total assets EEHE 6,393,562 7,828,853
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of RAGHEBE AELES
the Company
Share capital: nominal value PR : H{E 96,958 96,958
Share premium 1% 17 V5 (B 462,059 462,059
Other reserves H i 15 184,464 184,464
Retained earnings NPl 2,316,782 2,921,035
Total equity EEEE 3,060,263 3,664,516
LIABILITIES a8\
Non-current liabilities FnBEE
Borrowings EE 1,932,465 2,410,044
1,932,465 2,410,044
Current liabilities REEE
Bills payable IE I R SRR . 30,801 31,551
Accruals and other payables TEIR B e AL FE(RRIR 19,630 35,752
Due to subsidiaries &1 PR 88 28 R1 3K 7,343 2,258
Borrowings - 1,311,057 1,597,776
Derivative financial instruments TEEBMT A 32,003 86,956
1,400,834 1,754,293
Total liabilities wnes 3,333,299 4,164,337
Total equity and liabilities BEZRAE 6,393,562 7,828,853
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by RAREEBBERER-ZT_=F

the Board of Directors on 28 March 2023 and was

signed on its behalf by:

Hong Tianzhu

Zhu Yongxiang

At \BEEESHE A Hh
TIEERRESTEHRE -

HRH

KK
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39. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 39. ARFMNEEEBRRREESED

OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AAQTKFEEEE
Other Retained
reserves earnings
Hith & HREEA
RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRBTFT ARBFT
At 1 January 2021 RZE=——F—H—H 193,748 2,489,650
Profit for the year FE A = 958,961
Shares issued upon exercise of 1T R IR 31T AR 1
share options (9,284) —
Dividend relating to 2020 —ECTFRE — (150,461)
Dividend relating to 2021 TR —FZRE — (377,115)
At 31 December 2021 W_E-_—%+=A
=+—H 184,464 2,921,035
At 1 January 2022 RZEBE-_—_F—HA—H 184,464 2,921,035
Profit for the year FERT — 162,183
Dividend relating to 2021 T —FZRE — (447,492)
Dividend relating to 2022 T FZRE — (318,944)
At 31 December 2022 RZE=-_=F+=A
=+—H 184,464 2,316,782
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40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and Mr. Tang Daoping are the chief
executive officer and chief operation officer of the
Group, respectively.

The remuneration of every director is set out below:

Name of Director Salaries

Esfig g #e
RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR  AREFZ

40. EEEANRES
(a) EERTHRARME
RXFFRERZBFREDRIB/A
SETRERNREERE -

RN TFTEUEENOMESMT

Estimated Employer's
Discretionary Housing money value of contribution to
bonuses allowance  other benefits benefit scheme Total

ARz ExEA
BftA EERE fHtesEE BE e a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETZ  ARET%

Executive Directors: BiES:
Hong Tianzhu (chairman) ERR () - 1,009 781 - - 1 1,791
Zhu Yongxiang Foke - 960 2,198 - 27 106 3,291
Tang Daoping BT - 1,052 4,940 - 27 122 6,141
Hui Tsz Wai AR - 877 121 - - 88 1,086
Independent non-executive Directors; B JFE{TES -
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRIE 268 - - - - - 268
Cheng Longdi RER 134 - - - - - 134
Tao Xiaoming EEL 161 - - - - - 161
563 3,898 8,040 - 54 317 12,872
@ Mr Hui Tsz Wai resigned from Executive Director on * FFEEER_ZT__F=A=

31 March 2022.

T—BBEHERITES -
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40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

40. EEEANEERSE (@)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EEBRTHARZM: (&)
(Continued)
Estimated Employer's
Discretionary Housing ~ money value of  contribution to
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses allowance  other benefits  benefit scheme Total
HinfgHz EEEF
244 e e fil=pzan EE2Y fAHEEER HE 5 it
AMBO00 B0 AMBO00 AMBO00 B0 AMBO00 AMBO00
AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT
Executive Directors: BiEE:
Hong Tianzhu ERR = 1,009 3,561 = = 1 457
Zhu Yongxiang Foke — 687 16,942 — — 15 17,644
Tang Daoping - - 1020 10380 - % i 1203
Hui Tsz Wai AR = 3987 2024 = m 01 6443
Ji Zhongliang* HHA* = 368 = = 10 20 398
Independent non-executive Directors;  BUFFHITEE :
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE 245 = = = = 245
Cheng Longdi RER 13 = = = = 13
Tao Xiaoming L 147 = = = = 147
515 7071 3407 = 146 468 41607
& Mr Ji Zhongliang resigned from Executive Director on * HEREER_ZT_—FHA=
3 May 2021. HEENTTES -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, HE_ZE-_—FR-_F-__F+=
emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s A=T—BLHE mMEAETE
services as a director, whether of the Company or its SRERS (TwmAR TS HKE
subsidiary undertaking, are set out as above. ANE) 2 B ES S a0 Epra o
(b) Directors’ retirement and termination benefits (b) EEEERAKLEAERN
None of the directors received or will receive any FR BEEELABESETMNR
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the ERM R I ERAEA °
year.
(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making () HREMESHRERNE=SFRMHZK
available directors’ services B
The Group did not pay consideration to any third FA - AEERERREESRE
parties for making available directors’ services during MEME = ZARE -
the year.
(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (d) FEUEE -HIZEZEIHBE

dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were made
available in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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40.

41.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Group’s principal subsidiaries, all
of which are unlisted, as of 31 December 2022:

40. EEEAN R ER (2

() EERXRS ZHHAEGHNZEXE
=
AR ETIEHAEEEKE
W MARREEERREERES
B Rz BN FRKF AEREE
BRZEARS RHERAH -

41. FEHNB QT
TRIIRAEBHEZ T -_—F+_-A8
=t+—H®MEENBAR (B AEI LET) :

Particulars of issued

Place and date of incorporation  Principal activities and share capital or
Name of subsidiary and form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
MR IR B BER BRTRAS

WEAREHE EEERER TEXBREELH BARKHFHE Fis s

Directly held:

EEER:

Texhong Textile Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in British Virgin UsD100 100%
26 May 2004, Islands
limited liability company

RAGRAERERAF RERTAS REBRIABRAER 100% 7T 100%
—ZENFRA=TARB
BEREERT

Sunray International Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in British Virgin UsD1 100%
21 January 2005, Islands
limited liability company

HHERERER AR RERTAHS REBRLBESRELR 1% 100%
“EERE-A=+-H"
BREART

Texhong Vietnam Investment Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in British Virgin USD50,000 100%
6 September 2006, Islands
limited liability company

RABEREFRAH RERTAS REBRRHBRELER 50,0005 7T 100%
ZETRENARR
BEREARA

Prosperous Time Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in British Virgin USD1 and 100%
12 May 2015, Islands (CNY393,812,283
limited liability company

HRERERAR RERTAS REBRIAEBRAER IXTRARY 100%
“T-nfRATZH" 393,812,2837C
BEREFERT

Winnitex Textile Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in British Virgin USD100 and 80%
November 2018, Islands HKD2,425,766,506
limited liability company

Winnitex Textile Holdings Limited HRBERLEHS REBRZHSRERER 100E€T R 80%
—B-NE+-R 2,425,766,50678 7T
BREERT
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41.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

41. FERBLT (&)

Place and date of incorporation

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued
share capital or

Name of subsidiary and form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
EMRIEHRAER BRTRAS

WEAREE EEERER TEXBREELE ARSI Fis s

Indirectly held:

BiEEs:

Jiangsu Century Texhong Textile Co., Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of yarns, USD15,000,000 100%
6 June 2000, grey fabrics, dyed clothes and
limited liability company dress; processing of cotton in

Mainland China

THECRIHEERAA BRI - RPBERBRERHED R £ 15,000,000% 7T 100%
—ETREAARE o R RARE  RBEMT
BREMARA

Nantong Century Texhong Textile Co,, Ltd. Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of yarns, USD5,500,000 100%
7 June 2002, grey fabrics and dyed fabrics in
limited liability company Mainland China

HREERIHEERAR hEALEE RPERERERHEDR - £ 5,500,000% 7T 100%
“ET-FAALR "3
BEREFRA

Xuzhou Texhong Yinfeng Textile Co,, Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of yarns, USD7,800,000 100%
12 May 2004, grey fabrics, clothes and dyed
limited liability company fabrics in Mainland China

BIMNRILREHBBERAR RE AN - R ERBRERHEYR £ 7,800,000 7T 100%
“TEMFRATZR iy E il
BREERA

Xuzhou Texhong Times Textile Co,, Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of USD43,000,000 100%
29 December 2004, top-grade yarns, thread, grey
limited liability company fabrics, textile knitting products,

and garments in Mainland China

BMNRABERABERAA REABARMN RPEREEERHERRYE - 4300000075 100%
—ETME+=A=t+hA - &R SEEREERR
BEREARA 7813

Texhong (China) Investment Co,, Ltd. Shanghai, Mainland China, Investment holding and trading of USD100,000,000 100%
21 June 2005, textile products in Mainland
Limited liability company China

R (PE) REBRAA hEANLE REERERTEALEESHHE 100,000,000% 7T 100%
—ZERFAAZt—HB- b
BEREFRT
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 4. FERBAT &)

Particulars of issued

Place and date of incorporation  Principal activities and share capital or
Name of subsidiary and form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
SR BHAR BRTRAS
WEARAR EEERER TEXBREEHY BARTHFHE iigey §:3
Xuzhou Texhong Yinlian Textile Co,, Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing top-grade yarns, USD20,500,000 100%
30 March 2006, thread, grey fabrics, dresses, in
limited liability company Mainland China
BN BEABERDA FEABHN RPBEABEES RS 20,500,000 7T 100%
ZZTRF=A=TH" 5 AhRRE
EREAEAT
Sunray Macao Commercial Limited. Macao, Trading in Macao MOP$300,000 100%

19 December 2005,
limited liability company

HERMBERBERAR B - REME S 300,000:2 5 % 100%
“ERRET-AtNB -
BEREARA

Changzhou Texhong Textile Co, Ltd. Changzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of textile, RMB53,145,000 100%
1 January 1979, decoration and garment in
limited liability company Mainland China

FMRIHBERAF RERBEMN R EAEUEREES RS & AR ¥53,145,0007T 100%
“nthE-A-H" mRER
BREERT

Renze Textile Joint Stock Company Vietnam, Manufacturing of yarn in Vietnam UsD30,000,000 100%

24 October 2006,
limited liability company

CEGBRHBRAR etz N R REY & 30,000,000% 7T 100%
“EERETA-TEE -
BREERA

Weishan Texhong Technology Limited Shandong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of yarns in RMB58,000,000 100%
12 April 2018 Mainland China
limited liability company

BRI REBRAA FERMLR ETERBERHEDR AR ¥58,0000007C 100%
“E-\F@A+=H-
BREERA

Yinlong Technology Company Limited Vietnam, Manufacturing of yam in Vietnam USD40,000,000 100%
11 April 2012,
limited liability company

RERBRERAA i REEREY R 40,000,000 75 100%
“ZT-—§WA+—-AH"
BEREARA
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41.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

41. FERBLT (&)

Place and date of incorporation

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued
share capital or

Name of subsidiary and form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
EMRIEHRAER BRTRAS

WEAREE EEERER TEXBREELE ARSI Fis s

Shandong Texhong Textile Co, Ltd. Shandong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of yarns in RMB700,000,000 100%
1 May 2004, Mainland China
limited liability company

WRRILGHBERAR hEAMILR RREARERHEYDR AR #700,000,0007C 100%
—ZZMERA-B  BRE
NG

Galaxy Technology Company Limited Vietnam, Manufacturing of yams, grey fabrics, USD80,000,000 100%
13 September 2014, garments and dyed fabrics in
limited liability company Vietnam

RAMBKBERRT M- NEBREDSR £ RRRE 80,000,000 70 100%
“E-mEAATZR il
BREARA

Shandong Lanyan Textiles Co,, Ltd. Shandong, Mainland China, Manufacturing of yarms, grey fabrics, USD3,000,000 100%
21 August 2015, garments in Shandong
limited liability company

IRBES BREBB AR REAMILRE RIRBED R - B RHK 3,000,000% 7T 100%
“Z-aFNA=T—-H"
BEREARA

ChangZhou Texhong Grand Textile Co., Ltd. Changzhou, Mainland China, Trading of textile products in USD19,500,000 100%
August 2016, Changzhou
limited liability company

FMRIEXSBERAR hEABEMN REMEEHRER 19,500,000 7C 100%
—E-RENR
BEREERA

Foshan Ruhong Textile Co, Ltd. Foshan, Mainland,China, Manufacturing of yams in Foshan USD3,000,000 100%
August 2016,
limited liability company

BLMITHHEERAR hER AL L RED & 3,000,000% 7T 100%
—Z-RENA
BREMARA

Shanghai Hongrun Textile Co,, Ltd. Shanghai, Mainland China, Trading of textile products in RMBS5,000,000 100%
7 January 2009, Mainland China
limited liability company

HEITRESBERAR hEANLE RPBERMEENSER AR #5,000,0007T 100%
ZZTNF-RLH
BEREARA

Taizhou Century Texhong Textile Co, Ltd. Taizhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of USD18,580,000 100%
23 April 2002, industrial-use textile products and
limited liability company top-grade blended-spinning in

Mainland China

FMERRAGHBBERLA BRI - RRERBEERHETERGM 18,580,000% 7T 100%
“EZ-FEMA-Ft=H" EmRkEnEsmn
BREARA
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

4. FERBAT &)

Place and date of incorporation

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued
share capital or

Name of subsidiary and form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
MR IR B BER BRTRAS

WEAREHE EEERER TEXBREELH BARKHFHE Fis s

Nantong Texhong Yinhai Industrial Co,, Ltd. Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of garment, USD13,500,000 100%
20 May 2004, textile knitting products and yarns
limited liability company in Mainland China

BRRIREEXERAR hEALEE R E A RERHE 13,500,000% 70 100%
“ZTNFRAZTHE - KK HBREEERRYR
BEREERA

Shandong Lanyan Jeanswear Co, Ltd. Shandong, Mainland Manufacturing of yamns, grey fabrics, USD1,000,000 100%
China, 21 August 2015, garments in Mainland China
limited liability company

WRMESHFREBRAR FERMILR RRERBEEDE - EHREK 10000005 70 100%
—E-RENRZT-H-
BREERT

Taizhou Texhong Yintai Textile Co,, Ltd. Taizhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing top-grade garment USD6,640,000 100%
26 May 2006, and special textile for
limited liability company construction in Mainland China

EMRABRGBERAR RERBEN M B A B = R KA R4 6,640000% 7T 100%
“ZERFRAZTAR Bm
BEREFRA

Xuzhou Texhong Intelligence Textile Co,, Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing of yarns in Mainland USD100,000,000 100%
25 May 2017, China
limited liability company

BMRIBRSBERAA REABHEMN R E A EEL R 100000,000% 7 100%
“E—t£nA-t+hA"
BEREERT

Hongan Textile (Huaian) Co, Ltd. Huaian, Mainland China, Manufacturing of yams in Mainland USD1,500,000 100%
27 October 2017 China
limited liability company

AZHEER)BRAA HEAER R E A B iR 15000005 70 100%
“E—tE+AZTER
BREART

Nantong Textile Group Co,, Ltd. Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of USD15,000,000 100%
11 September 2002, top-grade textile knitting
limited liability company products and garments

ERNBEREESBEERAR hEARMEEE WERHERRIHBERRRRK 15,000,000% 7T 100%
“ZZ-FNAT-RB-
BEREFRA

Zhejiang Qing Mao Weaving, Dyeing & Printing Co,, Ltd. Shaoxing, Mainland China, Manufacturing of cotton and cotton USD51,000,000 80%
1 October 2002 blend yarns, greige, dyed and
limited liability company finished woven fabrics

HLERSBERERAR hEALAR SEERRARRIRYR - £ - & 51,000,000% 70 80%
—ET-F+A-R- BHREEH
BEREFERT
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41.

42,

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

41.

TENBAF @)

Place and date of incorporation

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued
share capital or

Name of subsidiary and form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
MR IR AR BRITRAR

WEAREE EEERER TEXBREELE ARSI Fis s

Winnitex Limited Hong Kong, Sales of woven garment fabrics HKD1,000 80%
24 January 2003,
limited liability company

EXEARAT Bk HERBD 1,000/ 7 80%
“ET=F-RA-1MmB-
BREEARA

Twin Dragon Marketing, Inc. USA, Sales of denim fabrics and apparel USD4,063,000 65%
incorporated company

Twin Dragon Marketing, Inc. XE - HEFFAENKERE 4063,000% 7T 65%
B ERRA

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Texhong (China) Investment Co., Ltd. is a wholly foreign
owned investment holding company incorporated in
Mainland China.

None of above subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at
any time during year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: None).

The English names of certain subsidiaries established in
Mainland China represent the best effort by the Group's
management to translate their Chinese names, as they do not
have official English names.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As announced by the Company on 7 November 2022, 8
December 2022 and 3 February 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated 9 December 2022, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement
(the "Asset Purchase Agreement”) with Texhong Industrial Park
Vietnam Limited for the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of
certain parcels of land located inside Texhong Haiha Industrial
Park and certain infrastructure erected thereon. The maximum
consideration for the Acquisition is US$54.6 million.
Completion of the Acquisition is subject to the fulfilment of
the conditions precedent set out in the Asset Purchase
Agreement, and the parties to the Asset Purchase Agreement
have scheduled for completion of the Acquisition to take
place on 31 March 2023.
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